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I am pleased to present to you the annual results for 2013.
FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2013
was HK$1,733.3 million (2012: HK$1,410.1 million), an increase of
23% compared to the year before. The profit attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$337.6 million (2012: HK$401.4 million),
representing a 16% decrease from 2012.

The decrease in profit for the year was the result of:

(1) a decrease in revaluation gains in respect of the Group's
investment properties portfolio; and

(2) an increase in tax charge.

However, on a positive note, gross profit from operations as well as
share of profit of joint ventures have both increased.

Earnings per share amounted to HK22.40 cents (2012: HK26.64
cents), while the net asset value per share attributable to owners of
the Company was HK$9.33 at the end of 2013 (2012: HK$8.93).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company has recommended a final
dividend of HK6.5 cents per share for the year ended 31st December,
2013 (2012: HK4 cents per share) payable to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 6th June, 2014.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(1)

(2)

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“2014 AGM”)

The 2014 AGM is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 22nd May,
2014. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2014 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed on Wednesday, 21st May, 2014 and Thursday, 22nd May,
2014, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to be eligible to
attend and vote at 2014 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 20th May, 2014.

For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the 2014 AGM. For determining the entitlement
to the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December,
2013, the register of members of the Company will be closed
on Thursday, 5th June, 2014 and Friday, 6th June, 2014, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order for a Shareholder to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 4th June, 2014. Subject to approval
by the Shareholders at the 2014 AGM, dividend warrants are
expected to be despatched to the Shareholders by post on or
around Friday, 27th June, 2014.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is engaged principally in the development of high-
end apartments, villas, office buildings and commercial properties,
property investment and property management in China. During
the year and up to 4th February, 2014, it was also engaged in the
manufacture, sales and trading of cement and clinker in China (please
see below for details).

An outline of our achievements in 2013 is described below:

(M

We have introduced a strategic investor into our Fuzhou Dengyun
Resort and Shanghai Tian An Villa projects. We expect the
investor to further improve the potential profitability of these two
projects.

Total attributable recognised sales (including joint ventures) of
the Group amounted to 189,600 m? in 2013 (2012: 177,300 m?),
an increase of 7%. A total attributable gross floor area (“GFA”) of
approximately 296,000 m2 (2012: 343,300 m2) was completed, a
drop of 14%.

By the end of 2013, a total attributable GFA of approximately
1,332,700 m? (2012: 688,800 m2) was under construction,
representing a 93% increase from last year, including Shenzhen
Tian An Cloud Park (Phase 1), Shanghai Tian An Villa (Phase 2
Part 1), Shanghai Tian An Place (Phase 1 Part 2), Wuxi Manhattan
(Phase 1 Part 2 and Phase 2), Nantong Tian An Garden (Phase
5 Part 2), Changzhou Tian An Villa (Phase 2 Part 2), Huizhou
Danshui Tian An Sun Life City (Phase 1 Part 1), Fuzhou Dengyun
Resort (Phase 1), Changchun Tian An City One (Phase 4 Part 1),
Guangzhou Tian An Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park (Phases 7
and 8), Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park (Phase 6), Foshan
Tian An Centre (Phase 1), Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 2),
Nantong Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1 Parts 1 and 2), Changzhou
Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 3), Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase
1), Chongging Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 2), Qingdao Tian An
Cyber Park (Phase 1 Part 1), Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (Phases 2
and 3) and Tianjin Tian An Intelligent Port (Phase 1).

Rental income continued to increase and was up by 3% as
compared with 2012. Shenzhen Tian An Park Place, being
Tower 3 of Tian An Golf Garden (Phase 3), will be retained as
investment property and is expected to enter the apartment rental
market in the first quarter of 2014 after internal renovations are
completed.

Cyberpark: Our southern cyberparks have been progressing

well. The projects in Shenzhen, Panyu, Longgang, Foshan and
Dongguan all performed in line with our expectations.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited



ES

BEERSE

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT

RERMEILLZBBWME - RERL
B (—H) BEHRLEZH(—H—
#)  ARRZEEE(—H) RFEARLH
B (—HI— ) MBEETRE K > XD
FIATHE R E MEHE - BRRXZEEN
(ZH]) - BRRLEISH (—H_8) - &
MNRLZBEEH (=) - TTRRLEEER(—
) BEERLHBHER(—H) EERLH
B (—H8—4t) ~ RERZHBEWM(— AR
=) RRERLZEEE(—H)NEED K
Fh - YRR -_FT-—MFEL—_T—AF

EL e

KEMPRFRIFEREEATH A RO T E
MEBEEERAIRLZEAR] EA—EX
PR ERSH - Y AZERBNING - 18
BE—HEmmEAEL531,600F 5 K(RIE
HWTE)NEEEERENRETEELE
IR - AEBINIEETEE
HISUM IS - AR EREERH
S RIEIN - (BIEHARTRVE E AL E AR FE
IR AR e R o

BAINCRIER AR AR ([BAAKE] (R
T——FBFAANEE FHHEAR
FERERBLURE R EBTHNEEMNE
EREMABER)BE_E—=FREE
EF A2 6B8B L RZTE——F2
26.88 & BT ATIEM ©

KLZUA532.8EBEBE T ZREHER G K
JE#956.06% M B EITTRAE R —HF
—AMBRK - WEAX18.94% K8 T
o HEMKRFNAIEEST TR
ZE—NFALR - AEERBBRANRE
REeRHEREE A EEIRKEES
REMBERIBENRSIEE - FTES5EE
ER2BES  LERARKEMIRHEE
FEOsRNEE -

—E-MEZEE

“ZT-MFERFHT

(M

2)

SR 5 B B R B AR L5t
R 2 8 SR L 2 T T
B8R 7 R R A AR

AREB LR FHBERMER - AR
RERERKRHBORFHHE -

F4 Annual Report 2013

5)

As far as our eastern and northern cyberparks are concerned,
Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1), Wuxi Tian An Intelligent
Park (Phase 1 Part 1), Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1) and
Nantong Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1 Part 1) have completed
their construction works and we have commenced sales and
letting for these projects. Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 2),
Nantong Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1 Part 2), Changzhou Tian
An Cyber Park (Phase 3), Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1),
Chongging Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 2), Qingdao Tian An Cyber
Park (Phase 1 Part 1), Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (Phases 2 and
3) and Tianjin Tian An Intelligent Port (Phase 1) have commenced
construction and we expect them to be completed in 2014 or
2015.

Tian An’s urban renewal project in Huawei New City Area in the
Longgang District of Shenzhen has been renamed “Tian An Cloud
Park”. This is a large scale cyber park of approximately 4 times
our standard size. Construction works of all seven towers of phase
1 of the project with GFA of approximately 531,600 m? (including
basement) have reached the superstructure stage. We have been
clearing the land for future phases. Although this means an
increased outlay of capital, it is expected to reduce complications
when we start developing these phases.

Allied Cement Holdings Limited (“Allied Cement”), which was
a listed subsidiary of the Group during the whole of 2013 and
engaged principally in the production and trading of cement and
related products in Shandong province and Shanghai, reported a
profit attributable to its shareholders of HK$32.6 million in 2013,
an increase from HK$26.8 million in 2012.

Tian An’s sale of approximately 56.06% of the issued share
capital of Allied Cement was completed on 4th February, 2014
at the consideration of HK$532.8 million, with a remaining
interest of approximately 18.94%. The gain on the sale amounted
to approximately HK$84 million and will be accounted for in
2014. We consider that the consideration for the share capital
is substantially above its carrying value and represented an
attractive opportunity to realise a capital gain on our investment
in the cement division. The proceeds are intended to be used as
working capital, in particular, for investment in assets that may
offer better return.

PLANS FOR 2014

Objectives for 2014 are as follows:

(1)

We will continue to adjust the quality of our landbank through
acquisitions and disposals and sale of our end products to
balance the demands of short term returns and long term capital
appreciation.

We will adjust our products and pricing where necessary to assist
the sale of our products in the current difficult environment.
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(3) We hope to responsibly gear up our projects rather than over-
utilising equity in order to increase our return on equity.

(4) We will review our management and cost structure so as to
improve efficiency and reduce expenses where possible.

LONG TERM CORPORATE STRATEGIES

(1) The Group will retain certain development properties for
investment where we believe these properties will provide
increasing rental streams and corresponding increases in capital
value.

(2) We will concentrate our effort on developing our cyberpark
projects and urban renewal projects where we believe our
products are competitive. We may increase our cyberpark
landbank if the initial capital outlay is reasonable.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The central government is still concerned with the perceived high
property prices. Accordingly, it has restricted the number of homes
that can be purchased as well as foreign investment in the property
sector and imposed individual income tax on properties sold by
individuals. It has also increased the extent of its low cost housing
programme in all major cities. Moreover, the monetary policy was still
tight in 2013. With government controls still in place, the sentiment in
the short term is somewhat negative. However, we remain confident
of the longer term prospects of the property market in China.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and
the staff for their diligence and contributions to the Group in the past
year, to the Shareholders for their understanding and support, and to
the customers for their trust.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 21st March, 2014

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
1. INCOME SOURCES

Income derived from operations in property development, property
investment and joint venture investments in the PRC constituted the
most significant source of revenue to the Group. An analysis is as
follows:

(1) Property development

Revenue derived from property development of the Group (including
subsidiaries but excluding associates and joint ventures increased
from HK$177.8 million to HK$487.2 million compared with 2012.
Projects offered for sale during the year mainly consisted of Nantong
Tian An Garden (Phase 5), Wuxi The Manhattan (Phase 1) and
Shenzhen Junan Garden.

(2) Property investments

During the year, Shanghai Tian An Centre, Shanghai Racquet Club
& Apartments, Nanjing Tian An International Building, Dalian Tian
An International Tower and Beijing Park Apartments had satisfactory
leasing result and led to rental income of the Group increase from
HK$407.6 million to HK$418.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 3%.

(3) Associate and Joint venture investments

2013 2012
THAT

HK$’000

FTERT
HK$’000

EMERR - Contribution to profit:
FE(G B2 N a)m F (E18) Share of profit (loss) of associates 14,346 61)
FEIE & B RER T Share of profit of joint ventures 324,835 245,009
339,181 244,948
10 AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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2. XFEHE 2. MAJOR SALES
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For the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group's sales activities
were concentrated principally on the following projects:

3
SHERHEE
Attributable
GFA sold

F 75 Km?

Project

KKK ZZ B &5 (—HA) Danshui Tian An Sun Life City (Phase 1) F= Residential 21,300

ST K 22 BE e BRSOk Shenzhen Tian An Longgang Cyber Park % Commercial 23,600
(=8) (Phase 3)

Hoe KT HIEH Dongguan Tian An Cyber Park %, Commercial/ 28,500
(—HAZ==5) (Phases 1 to 3) F= Residential

BMRZHBEHERHEE Guangzhou Tian An Panyu Hi-Tech m% ~  Commercial/ 16,900
(POER - A BRI 7<ER) Ecological Park (Phases 4, 5 and 6) F= Residential

188 1L K 22 7 g B Ak Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park [EE3 Commercial 15,600
(=5 - mEgRFHA) (Phases 3, 4 and 5)

EERTHIEH(—H) Chongging Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1) % Commercial 10,400

BINRZ RS (—H) Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1) %,  Commercial/ 7,300

F= Residential

FBARLZER Nantong Tian An Garden {E=E Residential 7,500

miHERtE(—H) Wuxi The Manhanttan (Phase 1) F=E Residential 5,400

RERLZE W (M) Changchun Tian An City One (Phase 4) *= Residential 23,000

KEBRLZHIEH(—H) Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1) [ Commercial 10,700

EftIg g Other projects %,  Commercial/ 19,400

F=E Residential
AEt Total 189,600
3. T#As 3. LAND PORTFOLIO

NEB A #9,922,500F F K EIEEE
EtwHEE(AEEREBETRELD
B7378200F T K  BIEE R TR EWE
#9389,400F HRMEBEREF RFERYZE
#96,988,800F 75K) + FEM N L& R -
BN 2N - BRI EE - BB EE
BN IR R BN BRE KB K2
B -

The Group currently has a landbank of total GFA of approximately
9,922,500 m? (total GFA attributable to the Group is approximately
7,378,200 m2, consisting of approximately 389,400 m? of completed
investment properties and approximately 6,988,800 m? of properties
under development and for development), located mainly in
Shanghai, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Huizhou, Dongguan, Foshan,
Chongging, Nantong, Wuxi, Changzhou, Jiangyin, Nanjing, Fuzhou,
Changchun, Dalian, Tianjin and Qingdao.

3/  Annual Report 2013 11
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RZE—=F+-_A=+—H  KEBEEZE As at 31st December, 2013, the Group’s land portfolio principally

THBEIT consisted of the following:
(1) BETRFBEDF (1) Properties under development and for development
REBEEMN
BHEE
GFA
[EES = attributable
Commercial Residential to the Group
FF K m? F K m2 F K m2
E=5lg Northern China 1,446,200 956,200 2,402,400
= Eastern China 1,436,700 1,161,500 2,598,200
Escea) Southern China 745,900 1,242,300 1,988,200
st Total 3,628,800 3,360,000 6,988,800
) BEITREYXE (2) Completed investment properties
TEBEEMN
BHEE
GFA
[HES = attributable
Commercial Residential to the Group
F 75K m? F 55K m? F 75K m?
B3l Northern China 65,300 23,000 88,300
FEH Eastern China 175,700 68,400 244,100
2R Southern China 57,000 = 57,000
1=t Total 298,000 91,400 389,400

12 AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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34 (87%)

39 (74%)

80 (69%)

27 (73%)

4. EMPLOYEE AND TRAINING

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group including its subsidiaries
but excluding associates and joint ventures, employed 2,315 (31st
December, 2012: 2,294) persons. The Group maintains a policy of
paying competitive remuneration packages and employees are also
rewarded on performance related basis including salary and bonus.

The profile of the Group’s management staff as at 31st December,
2013 is listed below:

REEELE
University
Graduates

508 = A
Age 50 or Below

5058 A £
Age Over 50

30 (77%) 23 (59%) 16 (41%)

39 (74%) 42 (79%) 11 (21%)

92 (79%) 91 (78%) 25 (22%)

33 (89%) 31 (84%) 6 (16%)

Note: The numbers in bracket show the percentage of management staff in the

region.

Quality staff has always been the Group’s indispensable intangible
asset. Training programmes were organised during the year to ensure
that both the market sensitivity of the front line people and the cost
consciousness of the back office staff were well maintained. The
emoluments of key management personnel can be seen by reference
to notes 11, 12 and 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

13
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
1. LIQUIDITY AND FINANCING

The Group always maintained its liquidity at a healthy level with
a balanced portfolio of financial resources. As at 31st December,
2013, the total bank balances and cash reserves of the Group were
approximately HK$1,951.8 million, providing sufficient working
capital for the daily operations of the Group.

As at 31st December, 2013, the total borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$4,754.3 million (31st December,
2012: HK$4,003.4 million), including current liabilities of
HK$2,676.3 million (31st December, 2012: HK$2,061.4 million) and
non-current liabilities of HK$2,078.0 million (31st December, 2012:
HK$1,942.0 million). The gearing ratio (net debt over total equity) of
the Group was 19% (31st December, 2012: 19%). The borrowings
were mainly used to finance the properties for development and
properties under construction. Decrease in finance costs is mainly due
to the increase in amount capitalised on property under development.

Approximately 70% of the Group’s outstanding borrowings will
mature within 2 years. Since most of the investments and operation of
the Group are carried out in the PRC, most of the bank borrowings are
denominated in Renminbi which will be repaid in the same currency.
Around 70% of the Group’s borrowings bear interest at fixed rates
while the remainders are at floating rates.

Due to maintaining flexible and sufficient cashflow for acquiring
the potential quality landbank and accelerating construction works
for our development projects, the Group intends to obtain proper
bank borrowings with reasonable pricing terms. The management
continuously monitors its gearing ratio and raises new external
borrowings when necessary.

2. RISK OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATION

The Group is required to maintain foreign currency exposure to
cater for its recurring operating activities and present and potential
investment activities, meaning it will be subject to reasonable
exchange rate exposure. However, the Group will closely monitor this
risk exposure as required.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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3. PLEDGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2013, bank deposits of HK$12.6 million,
bills receivable of HK$11.4 million, interest in a subsidiary of
HK$425.2 million, other principal protected deposits of HK$79.2
million, aggregate carrying values of property, plant and equipment,
development properties and investment properties of approximately
HK$326.2 million, HK$3,539.0 million and HK$7,072.1 million
respectively, were pledged for banking facilities and other loans
granted to the Group and mortgage loans granted to property
purchasers and bills payables.

4. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A portion of a property for development that is held by a joint venture
with carrying value of HK$3.0 million is under idle land investigation
by the local authority. The piece of land owned by the joint venture
was held under several land use right certificates. The development
of more than half of the piece of land was either completed or under
development, except for a portion which is retained for the remaining
development of the whole project. Another property for development
that is held by a subsidiary of the Group with carrying value of
approximately HK$42.0 million is also under idle land investigation
by the local authority. This piece of land owned by the subsidiary has
been developed by several phases and more than half was completed,
except the last portion which is under the planning approval by the
local authority. The Group is currently working diligently to prevent
the possible classification as idle land, including negotiating the
feasibility of development plans with local authorities. Based on legal
advices, the Group has assessed the issue and considers that the idle
land confiscation may not materialise.

As at 31st December, 2013, guarantees given to banks in respect of
mortgage loans granted to property purchasers and bank facilities
granted or utilised by the joint ventures amounted to approximately
HK$1,985.1 million. All the guarantees provided by the Group were
requested by banks and under normal commercial terms. Legal
actions were taken against the Group resulting in possible contingent
liabilities of approximately HK$154.7 million. The Group has assessed
the claims and obtained legal advice, and considers that either it is
too early to assess the range of possible liability at this stage or no
additional provision is required to be made.
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PROJECT REVIEW

1. MAJOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
Southern China

Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

Located at the heart of Shenzhen and adjacent to Shenzhen Golf
Club, this large-scale project occupies a site area of approximately
273,500 m? with a total GFA of approximately 787,700 m2. The Cyber
Park consists of industrial buildings, office and commercial buildings,
cyber technology buildings, deluxe residential apartments and multi-
function clubhouse in an “Urban Industrial Complex”.

The lettable commercial GFA is 48,810 m?, including remaining areas
of Shenzhen Cyber Times Building, Shenzhen Tian An Innovation
Science and Technology Plaza (Phases 1 and 2) and Shenzhen Futian
Tian An Hi-Tech Venture Park.

Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park has expanded its successful pattern to
other cities, including Guangzhou Panyu, Foshan Nanhai, Dongguan,
Shenzhen Longgang, Changzhou, Jiangyin, Tianjin, Chongging and
Qingdao, so as to develop into a group company.

For accomplishing the upgrade industries transformation and urban
renewal of Shenzhen, Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park plans to have
area upgrade and redevelopment. The total GFA of the Park will
increase accordingly.

Shenzhen Tian An Longgang Cyber Park (50%)

Located in the core area of Longgang in Shenzhen, this project has a
site area of approximately 118,850 m? and total GFA of approximately
356,500 m2. The model of Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park is used to
develop this project. The construction of Phase 4 will be commenced
after the approval of the increase of plot ratio.

Shenzhen Tian An Cloud Park (50%)

This project is a “Model project of urban renewal” and located in
Huawei New City Area, Longgang District, Shenzhen. Shenzhen Tian
An Cloud Park will have a site area of approximately 760,000 m? and
plan to have a total GFA of approximately 2,800,000 m2. The project
is planned to be developed into a combination of new technology
and a modern city complex, including industrial R&D, commercial,
residential and apartments properties. Construction work for Phase 1
with a GFA of approximately 531,600 m? (including basement) had
been commenced and expected to be completed in 2015.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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Dongguan Tian An Cyber Park (39%)

Situated right at the new city central area — Nancheng District of
Dongguan. Upon acquiring the land nearby the project in 2012,
it covers land area of approximately 278,987 m? with total GFA of
approximately 823,100 m2. The project is planned to be developed
into an integrated business park with comprehensive science and
technology buildings, commercial and residential composite.
The construction of Phase 4 of industrial/office buildings will be
commenced in 2014.

Guangzhou Tian An Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park (50%)

Located in the central district of Panyu in Guangzhou, this large
scale project has a site area of 513,088 m? and a total GFA of
approximately 712,500 m2. Construction of Phases 7 and 8 with GFA
of approximately 160,500 m? is expected to be completed in 2014.
The park development consists of industrial/office buildings, science
and technology buildings, high-class residential buildings and multi-
function club house.

Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park (45%)

Located in Guicheng of Nanhai. Upon acquiring the land nearby the
project in 2012, it covers site area of approximately 165,252 m? and
total GFA of approximately 472,900 m2. This project is developing
with the similar pattern as Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park and planned
to develop into a business district with hotel/office buildings. Phases
6 and 7 with GFA of approximately 79,000 m? are under construction
and expected to be completed in 2014.

Huizhou Danshui Tian An Sun Life City (100%)

Located in Danshui of Huizhou and lying by both sides of Danshui
River, this project has a site area of approximately 393,570 m? and
total GFA of approximately 783,000 m2. The project is planned to be
developed into a comprehensive commercial/residential composite.
Since the local government had modified the surrounding planning
of the land, the master planning for property development had been
modified accordingly. Phase 1 Part 1 with GFA of approximately
38,800 m2 is under construction and expected to be completed in
2014.
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Eastern China
Shanghai Tian An Place (99.99%)

This project is situated at the Golden Honggiao District where the
oriental and international residents like to reside and adjacent to
the entrance of the transit station of Subway No. 9. The project
will be developed to a deluxe residential district with a site area
of approximately 338,113 m? and a total GFA of approximately
470,000 m2. Construction of Phase 1 Part 2 of the project will be
completed in 2015.

Shanghai Tian An Villa (100%)

This project, located near the Shanghai Sheshan National Travel and
Resort Area, combines the art of western architecture and eastern
architectural style, integrating island living, water facing, garden
and greenery. Construction work for the Phase 1 low density high-
class villas with GFA of approximately 32,200 m? was completed.
Phase 2 Part 1 villas with GFA of approximately 16,300 m? are under
construction. Since the local government is modifying the surrounding
planning of the land, the master planning for property development
is being modified accordingly. Construction of new phase will be
commenced in 2014.

Shanghai Tian An Sunshine Peninsula (100%)

Located in the Putuo District of Shanghai, this project is to be
built along the 1,100 m bank of Suzhou River with a site area of
approximately 58,930 m2. This project has been re-planned as a
commercial and entertainment complex. Design planning has been
approved. Construction work of Phase 1 will be commenced in 2014.

Wuxi The Manhattan (100%)
This residential project is situated to the southwest of Wuxi city
centre on a site of 59,480 m? to be developed into a total GFA

of approximately 148,500 m2. Construction of Phase 2 had been
commenced in 2013.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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Wauxi Tian An Intelligent Park (100%)

This project is located in Wuxi New District, with a site area of
approximately 106,960 m? and a total GFA of approximately
213,900 m2. The project is planned to be developed into integrated
business park with comprehensive science and technology buildings,
commercial and residential composite. The construction of Phase 1
Part T with a GFA of approximately 107,200 m? was completed and
under leasing and sales.

Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

This project is located in Changzhou Wujin Hi-Tech Industrial Zone,
with a site area of approximately 203,061 m? and a total GFA of
approximately 578,700 m2. The project is planned to be developed
into comprehensive science and technology buildings, commercial
and residential composite. Phase 3 is expected to be completed in
2014.

Changzhou Tian An Villa (100%)

This project is located in the Wu Jin District, the planning and
development focus of the Changzhou government. With a favorable
location, it is one of the largest deluxe villa district in Changzhou.
The project occupies a site of 473,335 m2. Phase 2 Part 2 is expected
to be completed in 2014.

Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (100%)

This project is located in Nanjing Baixia Hi-Technology Industrial
Development Area with a site area of approximately 92,766 m? and
a total GFA of approximately 210,100 m2. The project is planned to
be developed into comprehensive science and technology buildings,
commercial and residential composite. Construction work of Phase 2
with approximately 51,800 m? is expected to be completed in 2014.

Nantong Tian An Garden (100%)

Situated on a site of 203,800 m? with a total GFA of 239,300 m? at
the heart of the New City Zone of Nantong, this is the first massive
ecological residential project in Nantong. Construction work for
Phase 5 Part 2 with GFA of approximately 27,100 m? is expected to
be completed in 2014.
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Nantong Tian An Cyber Park (100%)

This project is located in Nantong Gangzha Economic Development
Zone, with a site area of approximately 160,367 m? and a total GFA
of approximately 398,200 m2. The project is planned to be developed
into integrated business park with comprehensive science and
technology buildings and commercial composite. Construction work
of Phase 1 Part 1 with GFA of approximately 89,700 m? is expected
to be completed in 2014. Construction of Phase 1 Part 2 with GFA of
approximately 23,800 m? is expected to be completed in 2015.

Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

This project is located in Jiangyin Economic Development Zone,
Jiangsu, with a site area of approximately 173,200 m? and a total
GFA of approximately 363,700 m2. The project is planned to be
developed into integrated business park with comprehensive science
and technology buildings, commercial and residential composite.
Phase 1 of residential with a GFA of approximately 64,600 m? is
under construction and expected to be completed in the first quarter
of 2014.

Chongqing Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

Chongging Tian An Cyber Park is located in commercial centre area
of Dadukou District, Chongging, with a site area of approximately
357,800 m? and a total GFA of approximately 894,900 m?. The
project is planned to be developed into integrated business park
with comprehensive science and technology buildings, commercial
and residential composite. Phase 2 of residential with a GFA of
approximately 89,600 m? is under construction and expected to be
completed in 2014.

Northern China

Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden (60%)

This project for high-class residential development is located in the
Dalian Economic & Technology Development Zone. Phases 1 and 2
with a total GFA of approximately 84,100 m2 have been completed.
Master plan for Phase 3 is waiting for approval.

Dalian Tian An Jinma Centre (100%)

This project is located at the main road, Jin Ma Road, of the Dalian

Economic & Technology Development Zone and will be developed
into commercial/residential buildings with a total GFA of 134,400 m2.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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Changchun Tian An City One (100%)

This high class residential project is situated within the Changchun
High-Tech Industrial Development Zone. Erected on a site of
approximately 414,954 m?, the project with a total GFA of
approximately 413,100 m? is being developed by stages. Construction
work for Phase 4 Part 1 with a total GFA of 82,400 m2 will be
completed in 2014.

Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

This project is located in Zhangjiawo Industrial Zone, Xiqing District,
Tianjin, with a site area of approximately 588,075 m? and a total
GFA of approximately 1,216,100 m2. The project is planned to be
developed into integrated business park with comprehensive science
and technology buildings, commercial and residential composite.
Phases 2 and 3 with a GFA of approximately 139,700 m?2 are under
construction and expected to be completed in 2015.

Tianjin Tian An Intelligent Port (100%)

This project is located in Dongli District, Tianjin, with a site area of
approximately 582,000 m? and a total GFA of approximately 1,319,400 m2,
The project is planned to be developed into urban integrated business
complex with Grade A office buildings, comprehensive science and
technology park, commercial and residential composite. Construction
work for Phase 1 with a GFA of approximately 185,800 m? is
expected to be completed in 2014.

Qingdao Tian An Cyber Park (50%)

This project is located in Chengyang District, Qingdao, with a site
area of approximately 158,486 m? and a total GFA of approximately
244,000 m2. The project is planned to be developed into urban
integrated business complex with Grade A office buildings,
comprehensive science and technology park, commercial and
residential composite. Phase 1 with a GFA of approximately
153,200 m? is under construction and expected to be completed in
2014.
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2. TEYERE
EBXRZH(98%)

FZRELTFER EBMERAKEAREBESF O
PSR AT — c SRR EALD A
—E-t+EaMTPAEERNE  RQE@MEA
48910F 5K - BE&EH24,940F 5K - B
BHE1,620F 5K © 82 FH922,350F 7 KE 8
BINEME HPZABEAME - XA
98% °

LiBFAERRBEBNAE (100%)

ZEBMUN EERETE - BLART B BRI -
TR IBIR A AN S AT B B4 - MEBIE()
68,380 F 77 K 2261 B{FE &AL ¢ (2) 10,600
FRRZEGRMBRE  3) 2,510F K2
116ERER + K(4) 979F 5K Z2218{EE ¥
ZoFENHEEAT  FEEEHEAEEAD
AIEMINEEIRAE - HHEERAS5%

FARAREIRKE(100%)

ZEBMPERTRLIED > RERTRE
ERNEYE EMEAE HEEEEE
66,400 FAKEEHHEATF —KAERA - B
FEEAAEBELD0,700FFKEE AR EY
%o

REXZEIBRKE(100%)
ZERPHABARARET R IR ORISR
EEBEAES - QEmMmEE67,210F K » £
BETZE AREESNEREEEY - B
EH14,810F 5K R THEEAILEYE -
IERRXEZKRE(40%)

Bt RERIE R ALPIEY - LEEERA

5730F 75K - R AECEREE - AHESE
BEANEREEE
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2. MAJOR PROPERTY INVESTMENTS
Shanghai Tian An Centre (98%)

The office building is situated at the hub of Shanghai central business
district of Nanjing Road West and People’s Square, adjacent to
the entrances to the transit platforms of Subway Nos. 1 and 2. It
is a 30-storey Grade A commercial building with a total GFA of
48,910 m2. 24,940 m? were sold, 1,620 m2 were self occupied and
the remaining GFA of 22,350 m2 have been transferred to property
investment. Most of the tenants are multinational companies. The
occupancy rate is more than 98%.

Shanghai Racquet Club & Apartments (100%)

This project is located in the Minhang District, Shanghai, and adjacent
to the Honggiao International Airport, Honggiao Transport Hub and 6
International Schools. The properties include (1) 261 apartments with
68,380 m2; (2) a club house with 10,600 m? and ancillary facilities;
(3) 116 car parking spaces with 2,510 m?; and (4) 218 storage rooms
with 979 m2. This project is leased property. Most of the tenants
are overseas top management from multinational companies. The
occupancy rate is more than 85%.

Nanjing Tian An International Building (100%)

The project is located at Xinjiekou, the most flourishing shopping
district in Nanjing City. The building links up to the subway station.
The shopping arcades with a GFA of 66,400 m? have been leased to
a department store. The office building with a GFA of approximately
10,700 m? have been transferred to property investment.

Dalian Tian An International Tower (100%)

This Grade A office building is situated in the Zhongshan Road central
business district and faces the Victory Square in Dalian City. The
total GFA is 67,210 m2. This 52-storey building is the tallest landmark
building of Dalian. 14,810 m? were sold, the remaining GFA have
been transferred to property investment.

Beijing Tian An Building (40%)
With a total GFA of 5,730 m2, this office building is located at a
prime site near the Beijing Hotel and Tian’anmen Square. The whole

building has been rented out to a lessee. The lessee had renovated the
building as a business hotel.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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3. HikE
EMNEESEARSEREZILH(68.40%)
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Beijing Park Apartments (100%)

This premium residential project is located at the Beijing Chaoyang
District to the west of Chaoyang Park and adjacent to the Embassy
area. The project has a total GFA of approximately 42,100 mz2.
Approximately half of the total number of units have been sold and
the remaining units kept for leasing purpose.

3. OTHER INVESTMENTS
Fuzhou Summit Golf Country Club & Dengyun Resort (68.40%)

Built on a site of approximately 1,632,000 m?, of which will be
developed into an 18-hole golf course, driving range and clubhouse,
and the remaining site area of approximately 642,770 m? will be
developed into villas and other deluxe living amenities. Rebuilding
of golf course was commenced in 2010. The revised master planning
of the Resort, which will optimise the application of land resources,
includes total GFA of approximately 592,300 m? for residential and
140,000 m2for ancillary and commercial area. Development of a new
phase of villas will be completed in 2014.

Zhaoqing Resort & Golf Club (87.97 %)

An agreement was entered on 3rd December, 2007 to dispose in
stages of this project, of which the transaction is estimated to be
completed before the end of 2014.

Allied Cement Holdings Limited (75 %)

Allied Cement Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1312) has 3 cement
operations in Shanghai and Shandong. Its principal activities are
the manufacture and sales of cement, clinker and slag, trading of
cement and provision of technical services. After the land resumption
exercise of its Shanghai operation in 2009, the group is preparing to
develop the new cement production facilities at Bailonggang, Pudong,
Shanghai, the PRC and the construction of the new factory is subject
to the approvals by the relevant government authorities.

Allied Cement reported a profit attributable to its shareholders of
HK$32.6 million for 2013, an increase from HK$26.8 million in 2012.
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MEZEREHN
PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

xR KRIR &

TEEHER BEER  BEER  FARE
Buildable BEEEE Completed  Gross Floor Interest
BEER wEEE 7 Gross Floor  Project Gross  Area under Held by
Project Name Site Area Area  Progress Floor Area  Construction  the Group
FHRm? Fhmm? Frrm  Fhkm

AR RE R B EH PHBTESR
A R - "R 118850 Commercial 356,500 Phased 245,200 - 50%
Shenzhen Tian An Longgang == (onstruction _—
Cyber Park Stage
Huangge Road North,
Longgang District, Shenzhen
MIRZEA(E-H) A% AEEIRE
A R R 51605  Commercial 414,100 Phased - 414100 50%
Shenzhen Tian An Cloud Park (Phase 1) == (onstruction —_—
Bantian, Longgang District, Shenzhen Stage
REXRUBH a% PHBTESR
REm - BHE - BERIR 278987 Commercil 739,000  Phased 157,000 - 39%
Dongguan Tian An f£= Construction
Cyber Park Residential 84,100  Stage 84,100 - 39%

No.1, Huangjin Road,
Nancheng District, Dongguan

823,100 241,100

BNRREEHENHE EH PHBTESR
BMm - BEE - DERT0% 513,088 Commercial 568,300  Phased 410,900 160,500 50%
Guangzhou Tian An Panyu f£= Construction
Hi-Tech Ecological Park Residential 144,200  Stage 45,300 - 50%
No. 730, Ying Bin Road, -
Panyu District, Guangzhou 712,500 456,200 160,500
BUXREBYBE a% AHEIRE
Bl HER - HTRS 165252 Commercal 472,900 Phased 257,800 79,000 45%
Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park = (onstruction
No.1, Jianping Road, Stage
Nanhai District, Foshan
EMAKRRENRS" AERET PHBIER
BN - EHE - KKE 393570 Commercial 783,000  Phased - 38,800 100%
Huizhou Danshui Tian An Sun Life City" & Residential = C(onstruction —
Danshui Town, Huiyang District, Stage
Huizhou
ERRAAERN" AERET W@ AHETIRER fitEE(2)
BF 52Zmn mgE 1,441,848 Commercial Note (2)  Phased Note (2) = 87.97%
Zhaoging Resort & Golf Club” & Residential = C(onstruction —
Huilong Town, Gaoyao City, Stage
Zhaoging
BANBE L ffE PHBIESR
BT BER388% 642,770 Residential 592,300  Phased 15,100 12,400 68.40%
Fuzhou Dengyun Resort"” RERE% Construction
No. 388, Dengyun Road, Fuzhou Ancillary & Stage

Commercial 140,000 - - 68.40%

732,300 15,100 12,400
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

HR%R

Project Name

HEER
Site Area
FhAm?

LBRREE

HEm - Bak - EER
BB

Shanghai Tian An Place
Lot No. 52, Qibao Town,
Cao Bao Road,

Minhang District, Shanghai

338,113

LERZRIE(ZHR=H)"
L - #T6545 5
Shanghai Tian An Villa"
(Phases 2 & 3)

Lot No. 654, Song Jiang, Shanghai
LERZERTE

H - ERE - S
Shanghai Tian An Sunshine
Peninsula

Chang Hua Road, Putuo District,
Shanghai

333,717

58,930

EBXZRE(ZHGCS)

L8 - SBAR1028% 3,600
Shanghai Central Garden

(Phase 3 GS)

No. 1028, Jin Xiu Road, Shanghai

EHERE

| AR89
Wauxi The Manhattan

No. 809, Hubin Road, Wuxi

59,480

BHERZEEY
&Hm - EHNR
ZMAE228%

Wuxi Tian An Intelligent Park
No.228, Ling Hu Road,

Wuxi New District, Wuxi

106,960

EMRZ B
FHm - RERTE
35885

Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park
No. 588, Wunan Road,

Wujin Hi-Tech Industrial Zone,
Changzhou

203,061

F4 Annual Report 2013

TEREER
Buildable
Gross Floor
Area
FhAm’
%
Residential 405,800
MEREE
Ancillary & Commercial 64,200
470,000
EE
Residential 401,700
HE
Commercial 178,000
€
Residential 3,600
€
Residential 137,800
HEREE
Ancillary & Commercial 10,700
148,500
HE
Commercial 213,900
HE
Commercial 338,800
%
Residential 239,900

578,700

HRER
Project
Progress

DEGTIE
Phased
Construction
Stage

2 Ei THE
Phased
Construction
Stage

E
FethER
Planning &
Design Stage

RER
FatBR
Planning &
Design Stage

7 81 TRE
Phased
Construction
Stage

PEHIREER
Phased
Construction
Stage

7 i THE
Phased
Construction
Stage

BRR  ERIE
BEER  BEEE
Completed  Gross Floor
Gross  Area under
Floor Area  Construction
Thrm’ ik
35,200 106,200

- 13,600

35,200 119,800

- 16,300

39,200 98,600
3,700 7,000
42,900 105,600
107,200 -
145,100 -
75,100 19,200
220,200 19,200

T
frft
Interest
Held by
the Group

99.99%

99.99%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

50%

50%
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MEZREH
PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

BxXR  KRIR &

TREAER BEER  BEER  FERR
Buildable BEEEE Completed  Gross Floor Interest
HE A HEER 5 Gross Floor ~ Project Gross  Area under Held by
Project Name Site Area Area  Progress Floor Area  Construction the Group
FhAm FhAm Frkm®  Fhkm?
EMRZHE fix bl AN
BT RER - BRKIR 473335 Residential 137,900  Phased 66,000 27,000 100%
Changzhou Tian An Villa = Construction
No. 2, Fengyuan Road, Stage
Wu Jin District, Changzhou
HRARHUES Bx bl AR
BRD - LER 92766 Commercial 210,100 Phased 34,800 51,800 100%
Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park = Construction
Guanghua Road, Stage
Nanjing
HRXRILE fix AHBTRE
MR - HTIR88H: 203,800 Residential 239,300 Phased 212,200 27,100 100%
Nantong Tian An Garden = Construction
No. 88, Hongjiang Road, Nantong Stage
HERZYEA Bx APEIRE
BEm - RYREH 160367 Commercial 398,200 Phased - 113,500 100%
XRERA = Construction -
Nantong Tian An Cyber Park Stage

South of Changping Road and East of
Yongtong Road, Nantong

P=PRS b3 A% AHBTRS

LT » RIIKESSH 173200  Commercil 228,700 Phased 81,000 - 50%
Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park f£= Construction

No. 55, Changshan Road, Jiangyin Residential 135,000  Stage = 64,600 50%

363,700 81,000 64,600

ERERRYBY % 2L RE:

BEM  AEOE - FEHK 357,800 Commercial 586,100  Phased 145,400 89,600 50%
Chongging Tian An Cyber Park ft= Construction

Chunhui Road, Dadukou District, Residential 308,800  Stage - - 50%
Chongaing

894,900 145,400 89,600
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MEZREH
PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

XK KRIR &0

TREAER BEER  BEER  FERR
Buildable EREE Completed ~ Gross Floor Interest
HE A HEER % Gross Floor  Project Gross  Area under Held by
Project Name Site Area Area  Progress Floor Area  Construction  the Group
FhAm FhAm FhAm  Fhkm?

RERZERIE ft= PHBIEER
AET - EERKHRERE 58,650 Residential 122,100  Phased 84,100 - 60%
omlitics == (onstruction —_—
Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden Stage

Liaohe Road West, Economic & Technical
Development Zone, Dalian

REXRZ &AL A% eI
KEm - EEREMRER 19421 Commercial 32300 AR - - 100%
i) fr= Planning &
Dalian Tian An Jinma Centre” Residential 102,100 Design Stage - - 100%
Jin Ma Road, Economic &
Technical Development Zone, Dalian 134,400
REXZE-4 FEREE AHBIRER
RED  BEARE6615 414,954 Residential & Phased Construction
Changchun Tian An City One Commercial 413,100 Stage 157,500 82,400 100%
No. 661, Guigu Street, Changchun -
RERZHES A% P HHEIRE
RED - BER - RRRIR 588,075 Commercial 918,100 Phased 119,600 40,800 50%
Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park ft= Construction
No.1 Tianan Road, Xiging District, Tianjin Residential 298,000  Stage - 98,900 50%
1,216,100 119,600 139,700
REXRESR" A% P IREE
REm - REE 582,000  Commercil 934,400  Phased - 185800 100%
Tianjin Tian An Intelligent Port” [f= Construction
Dongli District, Tianjin Residential 385,000  Stage - - 100%
1,319,400 185,800
ERARUEN . AEHTHRE
BEM YR 158486 Commercil 161,000  Phased - 94,000 50%
Qingdao Tian An Cyber Park e Construction
Chengyang District, Qingdao Residential 83,000 Stage - 59,200 50%
244,000 153,200
et - Notes:
(1) BEFTHES0%ER R - (1) Agreement for disposal of 50% interest was signed.
Q) BEITHEWRZ - (2) Disposal agreement was signed.

@) ERBE-_Z—=F+_A=1+—HZEHREE - (3) The above table is based on information as of 31st December, 2013.
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TRPUWXEHN
PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION

KBFTL
BEEE
Gross B IEHR
BEHEE SEFEER Floor Area Estimated
HE A Gross Interest Held Attributable Completion
Project Name Floor Area by the Group to the Group Year
55 Rm?2 55 Km?
1. RYIRZEA(—H) 414,100 50% 207,100 2015
Shenzhen Tian An Cloud Park (Phase 1)
2. BMRZHEBHENER(EHRNAS) 160,500 50% 80,200 2014

Guangzhou Tian An Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park
(Phases 7 and 8)

3. BILKRZEEEBHN (SR LEH) 79,000 45% 35,600 2014
Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park (Phases 6 and 7)

4. BMAKKRZENES(—H—4t) 38,800 100% 38,800 2014
Huizhou Danshui Tian An Sun Life City (Phase 1 Part 1)

5. RMEZELHEH(—H) 12,400 68.40% 8,500 2014
Fuzhou Dengyun Resort (Phase 1)

6. LERZRE(—HZ#t) 119,800 99.99% 119,800 2014
Shanghai Tian An Place (Phase 1 Part 2)

7. BBRZRIE(ZH—4t) 16,300 100% 16,300 2014
Shanghai Tian An Villa (Phase 2 Part 1)

8. EHESRE(—HZHR=H) 105,600 100% 105,600 2015
Wuxi The Manhattan (Phase 1 Part 2 and Phase 2)

9. BEMRZHEH(=H) 19,200 50% 9,600 2014
Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 3)

10. BMARZHIE (ZH=#) 27,000 100% 27,000 2014
Changzhou Tian An Villa (Phase 2 Part 2)

11. ERAZEBH(=H) 51,800 100% 51,800 2014
Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 2)

12. BARIEE(RH-H) 27,100 100% 27,100 2014
Nantong Tian An Garden (Phase 5 Part 2)

13. BRRZEBH(—H—Hk_4t) 113,500 100% 113,500 2014
Nantong Tian An Cyber Park (Phases 1 Part 1 and Part 2)

14. TRARLZEEN(—H) 64,600 50% 32,300 2014
Jiangyin Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1)

15. BEERLHGH(ZH) 89,600 50% 44,800 2014
Chongging Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 2)

16. RERZE—H(ME—H#) 82,400 100% 82,400 2014
Changchun Tian An City One (Phase 4 Part 1)

17. RERZEER (ZHR=H) 139,700 50% 69,900 2015
Tianjin Tian An Cyber Park (Phases 2 and 3)

18. RERLZEEH(—H) 185,800 100% 185,800 2014
Tianjin Tian An Intelligent Port (Phase 1)

19. EERLTEEH(—H—1t) 153,200 50% 76,600 2014
Qingdao Tian An Cyber Park (Phase 1 Part 1)

mEn

Total: 1,900,400 1,332,700

Kt EREBBE-ZE—=F1+_A=1+—"HZErHRER - Note: The above table is based on information as of 31st December, 2013.
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MERBEEREEH

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY AND HOTEL INVESTMENTS

1. W%
PROPERTY

NRER
Property Name

RIRLHEBRH
Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park
— YR Z AR RS — 5
Shenzhen Tian An Innovation Science and
Technology Plaza, Phase 1

AR ZEFR RS
Shenzhen Tian An Innovation Science and
Technology Plaza, Phase 2

- REBERAE
Shenzhen Cyber Times Building

—MIERREREAXEAE
Shenzhen Futian Tian An Hi-Tech Venture Park

A EBRRAE26:E
26/F, Shenzhen Cyber Times Building

FIIRLZER AR08
20/F, Shenzhen Tian An International Building

AIEE —BER
Shenzhen Tian Bei Yi Road, shops

RYIR L B R B AT
Shenzhen Tian An Longgang Cyber Park

RERZEIEY,
Dongguan Tian An Cyber Park

BMRZEB SN EE
Guangzhou Tian An Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological Park

BrILR % RIS
Foshan Tian An Nanhai Cyber Park

EBRZHRDL
Shanghai Tian An Centre

EBRZHRN5E 82711612
5/F, 8/F & 16/F, Shanghai Tian An Centre

LERERRBESNAE
Shanghai Racquet Club & Apartments

LEAERE
Shanghai The Riverside

F4 Annual Report 2013

nx
REER
Property

GFA
FrAm?

10,540

4,400

20,530

13,340

900

850

1,460

31,350

3,130

15,230

10,930

22,350

4,740

68,380

1,520

BE
BEER
Car Parking
Space GFA
FAHKm?

]

Frib RS
Interest Held
by the Group

50%

50%

50%

50%

100%

100%

100%

50%

39%

50%

45%

98%

100%

100%

99%

SEEL
BEE®
GFA
Attributable
to the Group
FAHRm?

5,270

2,200

10,260

6,670

900

850

1,460

15,680

1,220

7,620

4,920

21,900

4,740

68,380

1,510

BERBLE

Commercial and office

AERBLE

Commercial and office

[GEJEIN-

Commercial and office

BERBLE

Commercial and office

N
Office

g
Office

[

Commercial

[EEJSEIN -

Commercial and office

[SES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

AERBLE

Commercial and office

PNE
Office

FE
Residential

[SES

Commercial
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MERBEREES

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY AND HOTEL INVESTMENTS

EST
Property Name

3 VNON]
Wuxi Tian An Building

EHAINEE
Wauxi Redhill Peninsula

EHRLE SN
Wuxi Tian An Intelligent Park

ARAREARAE

Nanjing Tian An International Building

ARALZBEY,
Nanjing Tian An Cyber Park

EMRZHHES"
Changzhou Tian An City Plaza”

EMFHMIEE
Changzhou New City Garden

FMRZ BB
Changzhou Tian An Cyber Park

MBERARME
4/F, Nantong Sun Hai Tung Building

BBRE 1 7E2E
2/F, Block 17, Nantong Jin Xiu Court

FRRZIEE
Nantong Tian An Garden

ERRLZAE
Beijing Tian An Building

BV L
Beijing Lakeside Garden

LERRRE
Beijing Park Apartments

REXRLBRILE
Dalian Tian An Seaview Garden

ANERZERAR

Dalian Tian An International Tower

EERRE
Changchun Tian An City One

REXZBTEY,
Tianjing Tian An Cyber Park
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nx
REER
Property

GFA
FhHAm

1,420

2,830

16,370

77,100

3,850

24,400

9,090

15,600

720

1,300

2,900

5,730

560

22,170

470

52,400

5,660

9,760

461,980

BE &6
BREER P
Car Parking  Interest Held

Space GFA by the Group
Ty Akm’

- 95%

- 95%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 50%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 40%

- 100%

- 100%

- 60%

- 100%

- 100%

- 50%

SEES
BEE®
GFA
Attributable
to the Group
FARm?

1,350

2,690

16,370

77,100

3,850

24,400

9,090

7,800

720

1,300

2,900

2,300

560

22,170

280

52,400

5,660

4,880

389,400

PHE
Office
[SES

Commercial

[

Commercial
GEYEN
Commercial and office
[EE

Commercial

[EEE NS
Commercial and office

[

Commercial

[SES
Commercial
HNE
Office

EES

Commercial

[GE

Commercial
UNES
Office
FE
Residential
FE
Residential
FE
Residential
PHNE
Office
[EE

Commercial

[GE

Commercial
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MERBEBEREEHR
PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY AND HOTEL INVESTMENTS

SEES

n= BE &E BEER

BEER BREER Fribss GFA

NELR Property  Car Parking Interest Held Attributable

Property Name GFA  Space GFA by the Group  to the Group

FhKm® FHRm FhHHm?

ERRZPL-BEE - 7,770 98% 7,610
Shanghai Tian An Centre, Car Parking Space

LERZRR-E& - 3,180 100% 3,180
Shanghai Central Garden, Car Parking Space

LERERRALBNAE-BE - 2,510 100% 2,510

Shanghai Racquet Club & Apartments,
Car Parking Space
LERERIRARINAZ -8/ 10,600 - 100% 10,600

Shanghai Racquet Club & Apartments, Club House

10,600 13,460 23,900

2. BIE
HOTEL

BB
Car Parking Space

BE
Car Parking Space

BB
Car Parking Space

7]
Club House

WimFEH SEMFGRER B IR E R FEE#A
HEHH Expiry  Interest Held Hotel No. of

Project Name Date by the Group Gross Area Rooms

FYear EF5AKm?

HINR LT 9-1218"

9/F to 12/F, Changzhou Tian An City Hotel"” 2043 100% 1,190 23
Bt Notes:
(1) BEFTHER® - (1) Disposal agreement was signed.
Q) ERBRBE-Z—=F+-_A=1+—HZERREE - (2) The above tables are based on information as of 31st December, 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ARBBIRIABERZ BERERF2KFEZ
TEREE  UEARERE REMERETE
BRA - ARREES((EEE DEFEERZ
CEERHARRZRY EEABRREEER
BEZ-

TEERTRAREXERRE

REEEHEXIMERAREZ LHARA
(TEMRA) M e+ Az B EEATRI R
CEEMRE(EEEARTA)  EFECHE
MARRZAEERER  WERMZ ALK
EZIEF - FBENAREN - R T X@EEZ
ETCMARAZFERTRIN REEZF
—ZHF+-A=T—HLFE ARFCER
EEERTAZRRNETERZ T RME -
EEeRELBFRIRTIER R LHE
HRARFERELEEEN -
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis
on the principles of transparency, accountability and independence.
The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) believes that good
corporate governance is essential to the success of the Company and
to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), the Board has reviewed the
corporate governance practices of the Company with the adoption of
the various enhanced procedures which are detailed in this report.
The Company has applied the principles of, and complied with, the
applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended
31st December, 2013, except for certain deviations as specified with
considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The
Board will review the current practices at least annually, and make
appropriate changes if considered necessary.
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THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises twelve directors (“Directors”) in total,
with five Executive Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The composition of
the Board during the year and up to the date of this report is set out as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Song Zengbin (Deputy Chairman)

Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Managing Director)
Ma Sun (Deputy Managing Director)
Edwin Lo King Yau

Tao Tsan Sang

Non-Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui (Chairman)
Moses Cheng Mo Chi
Lee Shu Yin
Ng Qing Hai
(resigned on 18th January, 2013)

INEDs:

Francis J. Chang Chu Fai
Jin Hui Zhi

Ngai Wah Sang

Lisa Yang Lai Sum

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in
the Directors’ Report on pages 56 to 61. Other than that Mr. Lee Seng
Hui, the Chairman of the Board, is a cousin of Mr. Patrick Lee Seng
Wei, the Managing Director of the Company, there are no family or
other material relationships among members of the Board.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
Board Process

During the year, the Non-Executive Directors (a majority of whom are
independent) provided the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their
active participation in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the
interests of all shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

From Tst January, 2013 to 17th January, 2013, the Board comprised
a total of five Executive Directors, four Non-Executive Directors
and four INEDs, with less than one-third of its members as INEDs.
Following the resignation of a Director of the Company on 18th
January, 2013 and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises
a total of five Executive Directors, three Non-Executive Directors
and four INEDs, representing one-third of its members as INEDs in
compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has had four INEDs. At least one of the INEDs has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The
Board has received from each INED an annual confirmation of his/her
independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent under
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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BEE25) THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
ETEEFB) Board Process (continued)

EEeTHARASE  WMASEE 2B The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
AN EE MRS  WEMMIEAREE 2  the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
ENPHREENEMARE Z{EREE - 5 and approve the Group’s annual and interim results and other ad
FRDETNAEZSEH  SEEMNEZE hoc matters which need to be dealt with. During the year, four Board
ZE-ZF+_A=+—HIFERNREZSE meetings were held and the individual attendance records of each
e HHEET  BZRZELLHEMEEAE Director at the meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee,
Z AR EREEEHY I Audit Committee and general meetings during the year ended 31st
December, 2013 are set out below:

HE/ BTEBEZRY
Number of meetings attended/held
FMEEE BHREREE RRAE
Remuneration Audit General
Name of Directors Committee  Committee ~ Meetings
HITES: Executive Directors:
RIEW(EIEE) Song Zengbin (Deputy Chairman) 2/4 0/2
BRE(EFHHHE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Managing Director) 3/4 0/2
B (F/4e%) Ma Sun (Deputy Managing Director) 4/4 0/2
Bt Edwin Lo King Yau 4/4 1/2
HRE Tao Tsan Sang 4/4 2/2
FHTES Non-Executive Directors:
FRIE(F/E) Lee Seng Hui (Chairman) 3/4 172
BRE Moses Cheng Mo Chi 4/4 1/3 2/2
FHE Lee Shu Yin 4/4 0/2
BUFHTES: INEDs:
s Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 3/4 1/1 3/3 172
RE Jin Hui Zhi 3/4 0/1 2/3 0/2
RESE Ngai Wah Sang 4/4 11 3/3 0/2
BR% Lisa Yang Lai Sum 4/4 17 3/3 2/2
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
Board Process (continued)

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual operating
budget, annual and interim results, approval of Directors’
appointment or re-appointment (based on the recommendations made
by the Nomination Committee), material contracts and transactions,
corporate governance as well as other significant policy and financial
matters. The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to
the executive management under the instruction/supervision of
the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms of
reference. The respective functions of the Board and management of
the Company have been formalised and set out in writing and will
be reviewed by the Board from time to time to ensure that they are
consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’ notice
of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists
the Chairman of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied
with. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally
sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a
regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board
meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following
Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited



b EERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEEg®)
EEgRFE)

REEEEHRTEN  WEERRIESFHE
EXEeRTERBZERTHEESERRE
EARZMZER NEBRFEENEAAH
ZEFEERLRE - ARBZABERAR
(TR IRE - BRE P AT Z BISME R
S EETERUEZRESTREEMABE
ATHEBEANGE 2 EMNSNA L CEES
REBRETRR - BATERAERZETEH
EHEZEEABA

BREZEREHETE XN RERER
RAIAARWESKERLRE - EFE K
BREENAER MBI EE AR F 2 SHRE
BAE - EFHERFERHE LHRRNREME
EERECRMEANBRZER - LR
FRTERFBEFLEERTH - I EE
BFER-_ZTRFAAHE  BREFER
TTHRBGE  AEEZE 2B TSIBLER
BR ARAEBMHARAAE -

F4 Annual Report 2013

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
Board Process (continued)

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder
or a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter
will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
The articles of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”)
also stipulate that save for the exceptions as provided therein, a
Director shall abstain from voting on any Board resolution and not
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving any contract or
arrangement in which such Director or any of his/her associates has a
material interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors
will be continuously updated on the major development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, a written procedure was established in June 2005 to
enable the Directors, in discharge of their duties, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a reasonable cost
to be borne by the Company.
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BEECHEEERE Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

EREEERRETE ES=HEFE SR KLER  For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’

AARNREREEL 2 X RBHIN - EL  attendance at meetings and review of papers and circulars sent by the

B EBBEWNT management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:

SERBEERRRED
Participation in Continuous
Professional Development Activities
HERESEIER
e+ Ve 1)
BRER RE/BE
B Attending trainings/

Reading briefings/seminars/
Regulatory FHER conference relevant
Name of Directors Updates Site Visit to Directors’ duties

HITES Executive Directors:

RIEW (&) Song Zengbin (Deputy Chairman) / /
TR (EFELE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Managing Director) v/ g
S (5/#E3t) Ma Sun (Deputy Managing Director) v v v
et Edwin Lo King Yau / /
RAE Tao Tsan Sang v v v
FBTES Non-Executive Directors:

FRE(EE) Lee Seng Hui (Chairman) / J
g8 Moses Cheng Mo Chi / / /
THE Lee Shu Yin / /
BYFHTES: INEDs:

HRE Francis . Chang Chu Fai v/ v v/
EY Jin Hui Zhi / v/
EL Ngai Wah Sang v/ /
BER Lisa Yang Lai Sum / / /
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)
Board Diversity

Code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, which came into effect on 1st
September, 2013, stipulates that the nomination committee (or the
board) should have a policy concerning diversity of board members,
and should disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the
corporate governance report.

The Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in December 2013 as the Board had taken more time to
discuss and formulate the same. The Board Diversity Policy sets out
the objectives and principles regarding board diversity for the purpose
of achieving the Company’s strategic objectives of balanced diversity
at the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be based
on merit and candidates will be considered against measurable
objectives, taking into account the Company’s business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the
selected candidates may bring to the Board.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of the
chairman and chief executive (“CE”) should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, being the
Chairman of the Board, is primarily responsible for the leadership of
the Board, ensuring that (i) all significant policy issues are discussed
by the Board in a timely and constructive manner; (ii) all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; and (iii)
the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear information. The
functions of the CE are performed by Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, the
Managing Director of the Company, who is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Group’s business. Their responsibilities are
clearly segregated and have been set out in writing and approved by
the Board in June 2005, and subsequently updated in April 2012.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria for the
selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package
from the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her
appointment. This induction package is a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the responsibilities and on-going obligations
to be observed by a director pursuant to the Companies Ordinance,
Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance. In addition, this
induction package includes materials briefly describing the operations
and business of the Company, the latest published financial reports
of the Company and the documentation for the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be continuously
updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep
of good corporate governance practices.

All Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs) of the Company were
appointed for a specific term, but subject to the relevant provisions
of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby
the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible
for re-election. The term of appointment of the Non-Executive
Directors (including INEDs) has been renewed for further two years
commencing from 1st January, 2013.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”), one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. Further, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company whilst for those appointed as an addition
to the Board shall hold office until the next following AGM and in
both cases, those Directors shall then be eligible for re-election at
the relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited



b EERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERBRE
EEZRAERTLEETREMT  ¥YERZ
—ZFHARECEE AR Tmiwiﬁﬁﬂié
gE -

(i) BIERGIARRZEREABREER

) RAIREREERS
FEEEER

REEAB 2R

(iii) WA MERANFEETEEREERT
HTHEZBERER

v) BIRE - *ﬁ%ﬁ&%%ﬁ&ﬁ&%%Z eSSl
RERFME)

v) BRAARRBEBTEEERTAZERR
EEEERBENZHE -

R-IZE-—=FRBEARETEHIL EFEE

RIBEBERERTEREAREE

F4 Annual Report 2013

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
and has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate
governance functions in April 2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2013 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed

the corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Nomination Committee, a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee and an Executive Committee, each of which has
its specific written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all
meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept by
the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and
the committees are required to report back to the Board on their
decision and recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section
headed “The Board” of this report, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since March 2012
and is chaired by an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs.
Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of five members,
including Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai, Mr. Jin Hui Zhi and Mr.
Ngai Wah Sang, all being the INEDs and Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau
being an Executive Director. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access
to independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the
Nomination Committee are included in its terms of reference, which
are available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with matters
by way of circulation. In 2013, no Nomination Committee meeting
was held while the Nomination Committee dealt with matters by
way of circulation. In 2013 and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the
proposed resolutions for re-election of the retiring Directors at
2013 AGM and 2014 AGM;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the
Board Diversity Policy and the revised terms of reference of the

Nomination Committee; and

(iii) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and assessed the independence of each INED.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since June 2005
and currently consists of four members, including Mr. Francis J. Chang
Chu Fai (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Jin Hui Zhi,
Mr. Ngai Wah Sang and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all being the INEDs.
The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
included in its terms of reference, which are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company are in compliance with the code provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code, but with a deviation from the code provision that the
Remuneration Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors only and
not senior management (as opposed to executive directors and senior
management under the code provision). The reasons for the above
derivation is summarised as below:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not
properly in a position to evaluate the performance of senior
management and that this evaluation process is more effectively
carried out by the Executive Directors;

(ii) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and

control senior management and thus must be able to control their
compensation; and

(iii

=

there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior
management more than industry standards and thus Shareholders
will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation
packages.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in
accordance with its terms of reference. One Remuneration Committee
meeting was held in 2013 and the attendance of each member is set
out in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the
Remuneration Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during 2013. In 2013 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the existing
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

(ii) reviewed the remuneration packages of all the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors (including the INEDs) for the year ended
31st December, 2012; and

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the bonus
for the year ended 31st December, 2012 and the increment in
salary for the year 2013 of the Executive Directors.

Each Director will be entitled to a Director’s fee which is to be
proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM each year.
Further remuneration payable to Directors (including any service fees
of the INEDs) for their additional responsibilities and services will
depend on their respective contractual terms under their employment
contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements whereas detailed changes in the emoluments
of certain Directors during the interim period and up to the date of
the Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim Report of the
Company dated 23rd August, 2013. Details of the remuneration
policy of the Group are also set out in the “Employee and Training”
section contained in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
page 13.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since November 1999 and
currently consists of five Non-Executive Directors, four of whom are
INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit Committee
is chaired by an INED with appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The current
members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Ngai Wah Sang (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai, Dr. Moses
Cheng Mo Chi, Mr. Jin Hui Zhi and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice according
to the Company’s policy if considered necessary. The major roles
and functions of the Audit Committee are included in its terms of
reference, which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised from time
to time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code,
but with deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s
responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to
supply non-audit services;

(i) ensure the management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system; and

(iii) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the listed company.

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as
opposed to implement) the policy on the engagement of the external
auditors to supply non-audit services for the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to
develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of
such policy and recommendations is through the Executive

Directors and management; and

(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and
follow up the same on a day-to-day basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (continued)

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses
the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to ensure) whether
management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system. The Audit Committee is not equipped to ensure that
the same is in place as this would involve day-to-day supervision
and the employment of permanent experts. The Audit Committee is
not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between the internal
and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly, the
Audit Committee is not in a position to ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced but it can check whether it is
adequately resourced.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance
with its terms of reference. Three Audit Committee meetings were
held in 2013 and the attendance of each member is set out in the
section headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee
also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2013. In 2013
and up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the
works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the
external auditor in respect of the interim results review for the six
months ended 30th June, 2013 (“2013 Interim Review”) and the
final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2013 (“2013 Final
Audit”) of the Group;

(ii) reviewed the independent review report/audit completion report
from the external auditor and the management’s response in
relation to the final audit for the year ended 31st December,
2012, 2013 Interim Review and 2013 Final Audit;

(iii

=

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the
financial reports for the year ended 31st December, 2012, for
the six months ended 30th June, 2013 and for the year ended
31st December, 2013 together with the relevant management
representation letters and announcements;

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (continued)

(iv) reviewed the internal audit review reports/summaries and the
2013 internal audit plan (“IA Reports”) prepared by the Group
Internal Audit Department (“IAD”), and instructed that the issues
raised would be addressed and managed by the management;

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the updated
reports on substantiation of the resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budget;
and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the
Connected Transaction Policies, the Related Party Transaction
Policies and Procedures, the Whistle Blower Policy and the Policy
on the Disclosure of Inside Information.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since February 2004
and currently consists of four Executive Directors, being Messrs.
Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman of the Executive Committee), Ma
Sun, Edwin Lo King Yau and Tao Tsan Sang. The Executive Committee
is vested with all the general powers of management and control of
the activities of the Group as are vested in the Board, save for those
matters which are reserved for the Board’s decision and approval
pursuant to the written terms of reference of the Executive Committee.
The terms of reference of the Executive Committee were revised in
March 2008 following the adoption of the Whistle Blower Policy by
the Company.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss
the operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with matters by
way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible
for undertaking and supervising the day-to-day management and is
empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(ii) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business

activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the Group as
determined by the Board.
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CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
a specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate dealings in
the securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession
of inside information in relation to the Company or its securities.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing,
with the support from the Finance Department, the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2013, the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been
adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance were complied with. The Directors believe
that they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable and have ensured that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 75 and 76.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)
Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system and ensure that the controls
are sound and effective to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments
and the Group’s assets at all times. In 2013, the Board, through the
Audit Committee and IAD, had reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss; to
manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of system failure;
and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives and
goals. It has a key role in the management of risks that are significant
to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition to safeguarding
the Group’s assets, it should provide a basis for the maintenance of
proper accounting records and assist in the compliance with relevant
laws and regulations.

The Board, through the Audit Committee and with the assistance
of the IAD, conducted internal control reviews of the property
development and management group for the year ended 31st
December, 2013.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Manager reports to the Chairman of the Board
and the Audit Committee. The IAD plays an important role in
providing assurance to the Board that a sound internal control
system is maintained and operated by the management. This is part
of the Board’s plan to enhance the standards of the Group’s overall
corporate governance and comply with the code provision C.2 of the
CG Code.

The Group Overall Risk Profile Analysis Report, and the Group
Internal Audit Plan and Strategy Report were prepared by the IAD and
issued to the Audit Committee and the Board for review. A discussion
of the policies and procedures on the management of each of the
major types of risk which the Group is facing is included in note 5b to
the consolidated financial statements.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONTINUED)
Internal Audit (continued)

The IAD performed internal control assessments of the property
development and management group for the year ended 31st
December, 2013. The IA Reports were distributed to the Audit
Committee and the Board for their review. The IAD monitored that
the issues raised in the IA Reports would be addressed and managed
promptly by the management.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group’s external
auditor is set out as follows:

Services rendered for the Group T

ZEURTS

FFRBURY (B RAEMETRE RS
EOI R EBHET RS  HEWEERFH R
2EESTEA)

)
BERRZEE

EEFPERRRBRIBEC ERME-F
BAEE 2 ERNREBEBZRIENRER
RREE  BRERPHEERENFR oMK
B ZETNEXERSIR 2 RARER K
HEMERARRREIEAES -
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HK$’000

Audit services 4,316
Non-audit services (including review of

compliance of Occupational Retirement Scheme

Ordinance and review of interim results,

continuing connected transactions and working

capital forecast) 1,411

Total 5,727

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Such published documents together with the latest
corporate information and news are also made available on the
website of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

The Company’s general meetings are valuable forums for the Board to
communicate directly with the Shareholders. Code provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code stipulates that the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting and also invite the chairmen of the audit,
remuneration, nomination and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, he should invite another member of the
committee or failing this his/her duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the annual
general meeting.

During the year, the 2013 AGM and an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company (“EGM”) were held on 23rd May, 2013 and 4th
July, 2013 respectively. Due to another business engagements, Mr.
Lee Seng Hui, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the
2013 AGM. However, Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau, an Executive Director
of the Company, took the chair of that meeting and the chairmen
of Remuneration and Nomination Committees and members of the
Audit Committee were present thereat and were available to answer
questions to ensure effective communication with the Shareholders.
The attendance record of the Directors at the general meetings is set
out in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

The chairman of any independent board committee formed as
necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is
appointed, at least a member of the independent board committee)
should also be available to answer questions at any general meeting
of Shareholders to approve a connected transaction or any other
transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’ approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each
substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation
of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the
Shareholders at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairman
answers questions from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a
poll. The poll results are published in the manner prescribed under
the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Following the commencement of the new Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Shareholder(s) representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote
at general meetings can request the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting by written requisition, with stated business proposed
to be transacted, which must be validly served at the registered office
of the Company (“Registered Office”). Besides, Shareholders may
make a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in written
form to the Board at the Registered Office in the form of a proposed
resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the proposal for
discussion and be relevant to the Company’s business scope.

The Board has established a shareholders’” communication policy.
A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered
Office for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state
the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry.
In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Secretaries Limited,
the share registrar of the Company, for any questions about their
shareholdings.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also
about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate
culture. We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve
our current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory
changes and developments. Any views and suggestions from our
Shareholders to promote and improve our transparency are also
welcome.

On behalf of the Board

oo

-

Lee Seng Hui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st March, 2014
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F4 Annual Report 2013

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year
ended 31st December, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and joint ventures as at 31st
December, 2013 are set out in notes 50 and 51 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

The Group’s revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities
carried out in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) other than Hong
Kong. The breakdown by principal activities of the Group’s turnover
and the contribution to profit before taxation for the year ended 31st
December, 2013 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and joint ventures
as at 31st December, 2013 are set out in notes 50 and 51 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 77 and in
the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK6.5 cents per
share for the year ended 31st December, 2013 payable to the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 6th June, 2014.
Details are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group acquired investment properties totalling
approximately HK$20,909,000 in value and certain inventories of
completed properties to a value of HK$83,436,000 were transferred
to investment properties. The Group revalued all of its investment
properties as at the year end date. The surplus arising on the
revaluation amounted to HK$479,171,000 and has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Details of these and other movements in the investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totalling approximately HK$95,287,000.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31st December,
2013 are set out on pages 24 to 31.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank loans and other borrowings which are repayable within one year
or on demand are classified as current liabilities. Repayment analysis
of interest-bearing and interest-free borrowings are set out in notes 38
and 39 to the consolidated financial statements respectively. Interest
capitalised by the Group during the year in respect of properties
under development amounted to HK$64,881,000, details of which
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Song Zengbin
Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Ma Sun

Edwin Lo King Yau
Tao Tsan Sang

Non-Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui
Moses Cheng Mo Chi
Lee Shu Yin
Ng Qing Hai
(resigned on 18th January, 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Francis J. Chang Chu Fai

Jin Hui Zhi

Ngai Wah Sang

Lisa Yang Lai Sum

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), Messrs. Ma Sun, Edwin Lo King
Yau, Lee Shu Yin, Francis J. Chang Chu Fai and Ngai Wah Sang shall
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Song Zengbin, aged 59, was appointed the Deputy Chairman and a
Non-Executive Director of the Company in June 2008 and was re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company in April 2010.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Song
graduated from the Civil Engineering Department of Dalian University
of Technology with a Master’s Degree in Engineering and is a state
registered construction engineer. He has more than thirty years of
experience in the fields of engineering and management by serving in
various senior roles in a design institute, several large state companies
and municipal government. Mr. Song has also been invited as a guest
professor for Dalian University of Technology since 2003.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei, aged 62, was appointed an Executive Director
of the Company in June 1996 and became the Chairman and
the Acting Managing Director of the Company in February 2004
and December 2005 respectively. He relinquished his role as the
Chairman and was re-designated from the Acting Managing Director
to the Managing Director of the Company in April 2007. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. An architect, he
worked for IBM Australia before becoming involved in property
development in Malaysia and Hong Kong more than twenty-eight
years ago. He has extensive experience in the property field. Mr.
Lee was previously a non-executive director of Sun Hung Kai & Co.
Limited. He is a cousin of Mr. Lee Seng Hui (the Chairman of the
Company).

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ma Sun, aged 73, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in April 2003 and became an additional Deputy Managing
Director of the Company responsible for organising the investment
and development of the cyberpark projects of the Company in April
2009. Mr. Ma joined Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited (now known
as Sun Hung Kai Financial Limited) in 1984 and was then transferred
to the Group in 1985. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Besides holding a Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical
Engineering, he has extensive experience in electrical engineering and
over twenty-eight years of experience in China commercial business,
financial investment and property development.

Edwin Lo King Yau, aged 53, was appointed an Executive Director
of the Company in August 1999. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo holds a Master’s Degree in
Applied Finance from Macquarie University, Australia and is a
chartered company secretary. He had served various executive roles
in several companies in Hong Kong including as company secretary
for public listed companies. Mr. Lo is also an executive director
of Allied Group Limited (“AGL"), a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Tao Tsan Sang, aged 49, was appointed an Executive Director of
the Company in October 2009. He is also the Financial Controller
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He joined the
Company in May 1994. Mr. Tao holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. He has
extensive experience in accounting, financial management and China
business field.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Non-Executive Directors

Lee Seng Hui, aged 45, was appointed the Chairman and a Non-
Executive Director of the Company in April 2007. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee graduated from the
Law School of the University of Sydney with Honours. Previously, he
worked with Baker & McKenzie and N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong
Kong) Limited. Mr. Lee is also the chief executive and an executive
director of each of AGL and Allied Properties (H. K.) Limited, both
are substantial shareholders of the Company. He is a non-executive
director of APAC Resources Limited (“APAC Resources”) and a non-
executive chairman of Mount Gibson Iron Limited (“Mount Gibson”).
Mr. Lee resigned as a non-executive director of Tanami Gold NL
(“Tanami Gold”) in November 2013. Mount Gibson and Tanami Gold
are companies listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. He is a
cousin of Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei (the Managing Director of the
Company).

Moses Cheng Mo Chi, aged 64, was appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in May 1997 and was re-
designated as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2004. He is a practising solicitor and a senior partner of P. C. Woo &
Co., a Hong Kong firm of solicitors and also the Company’s solicitors.
Dr. Cheng is currently the chairman of the Education Commission,
the Free Kindergarten Education Committee, the Advisory Committee
on Post-office Employment for former Chief Executives and Politically
Appointed Officials, the Advisory Committee on Post-service
Employment of Civil Servants and the Process Review Panel for the
Securities and Futures Commission respectively. He is also a member
of the Aviation Development Advisory Committee and a member of
the Steering Committee on Strategic Review on Healthcare Manpower
Planning and Professional Development. Dr. Cheng was the founding
chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now
the Honorary President and Chairman Emeritus. He was a member
of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong and the chairman of the
Main Board Listing Committee and the Growth Enterprise Market
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and a remuneration committee member of the Financial Reporting
Council in Hong Kong. He also serves on the boards of various listed
companies in Hong Kong and overseas, both as independent non-
executive director and non-executive director, including ARA Asset
Management Limited (which is a listed company in Singapore), China
Mobile Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited, Hong Kong
Television Network Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited, K. Wah
International Holdings Limited, Kader Holdings Company Limited,
Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited and Towngas China Company
Limited. He was previously an independent non-executive director
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and China COSCO
Holdings Company Limited respectively.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Lee Shu Yin, aged 47, was appointed a Non-Executive Director
of the Company in March 2011. He holds a Master’s Degree in
Finance from the London Business School, and Bachelor of Arts and
Bachelor of Science Degrees from Stanford University. Mr. Lee is a
Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder. He has over twenty years
of experience in corporate finance, investment and management. Mr.
Lee is currently the chief investment officer of Grand River Properties
(China) Ltd., a Shanghai-based real estate investment consulting
company that he co-founded in 2003, and also an executive of PGR
Asian RE Fund GP, Ltd. which manages a property-related investment
account of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He previously
held various positions as a vice president and director in the Asian
Equities division of JP Morgan Securities Limited/Robert Fleming
Securities while based in London, New York and Boston and as an
executive director of Goldman Sachs International in Hong Kong.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Francis J. Chang Chu Fai, aged 59, was appointed an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in September 2004. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from Concordia University
in Montreal, Canada since 1976 and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from York University in Toronto, Canada since 1977.
He has over thirty-six years of experience in banking, corporate
finance, investment and management and has held various executive
positions at financial institutions and directorships of listed
companies. Mr. Chang is currently the managing director of Ceres
Consultancy Limited and a registered person under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. He is also an independent non-executive director
of APAC Resources; and the vice chairman and an executive director
of Royale Furniture Holdings Limited. Mr. Chang resigned as the
deputy chairman and an independent non-executive director of Allied
Overseas Limited (now known as SkyOcean International Holdings
Limited) in January 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Jin Hui Zhi, aged 53, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in April 2010. He holds a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration. He has extensive experience in the
business market. Mr. Jin is currently the chairman of Shanghai
Horizon Investment Co. Ltd. (“Shanghai Horizon”) and the deputy
president of the Youth Entrepreneur Association of Shanghai.
Shanghai Horizon is a company principally engaged in the investment
of three major industries, namely bio-engineering, commercial real
estate and medical. He is also an independent non-executive director
of ChinaVision Media Group Limited, a former non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Jin was formerly chief member of
Youth Work Ministry, chief member and deputy director of Research
Department, member of Standing Committee and minister of
Youth Work Ministry of China Communist Youth League Shanghai
Committee.

Ngai Wah Sang, aged 55, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in September 2004. He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Science from the University of London in United
Kingdom and is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in Hong Kong respectively. He has broad experience in auditing,
accounting, financial management and dealing with business
development and investments and previously worked for international
accounting firms and listed companies in Hong Kong and overseas.
Mr. Ngai is currently the deputy chairman and the chief executive
officer of Earnest Investments Holdings Limited.

Lisa Yang Lai Sum, aged 47, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in November 1999 and was re-
designated as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2004. She was re-designated from a Non-Executive Director to an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 2007.
She graduated from the University of Sydney with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Law and Economics and is also qualified as a solicitor in
Australia and England. She is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
and a consultant of ONC Lawyers. Ms. Yang was appointed an
independent non-executive director of AGL, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, in November 2013.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Senior Management

Foley Cheung Chun Pan, aged 43, is the Director of Fund and
Investment Division, and the General Manager of Sales and Marketing
Department of the Group. He joined the Group in August 2008. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung
holds a Master’s Degree in Global Management and E-Commerce
from The University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom. He
has over nineteen years of experience in China real estate business.

Dai Hong Liang, aged 45, is the General Manager of the Southern
China Region. He re-joined the Group in April 2009 and was
previously the Acting General Manager of the Fuzhou Region
from December 2003 to November 2005. He is also a director of
a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Dai holds a Bachelor Degree of
Architecture and a Master’s Degree in Finance. He has over nineteen
years of experience in the field of investment in China.

Song Zhu Feng, aged 53, is the General Manager of the Contracts
Department of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2003.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Song graduated from The Civil Engineering Department of Tsing Hua
University in Beijing with a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering. He
has over twenty years of experience in the fields of engineering and
property development.

Cindy Yung Yee Mei, aged 48, was appointed the Company Secretary
of the Company in March 2004. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. She is an associate of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”) has an unexpired service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs”)) were appointed for a specific term of
two years which shall continue until 31st December, 2014 but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other
applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2013, Messrs. Lee Seng Hui and Ma Sun,
Directors, had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and its associated corporation, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO:

EEBRERITRM
By BRC BT
BR8N T DL
BEERIT Approximate % of
B2 & B the relevant total
Number of number of issued

issued shares shares/the relevant ERME

interested  issued share capital Nature of interests

921,963,096 61.18% H gz
(K1) Other interests
(Note 1)

495,000,000 75.00% H bz
(Biat2) Other interests
(Note 2)

47,945 0.003% & A #E 2
Personal interests
(NESHEEAFTNES)
(held as beneficial owner)
Notes:

1. Mr. Lee Seng Hui together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are
the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. They together
owned approximately 68.43% of the total number of issued shares of Allied
Group Limited (“AGL”) (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests) and
were therefore deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company in which
AGL was deemed to be interested through the subsidiaries of AGL, including (i)
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL”), its 74.99%-owned subsidiary; and (ii)
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK"), its 56.14%-owned subsidiary.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

2. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, by virtue of his interests in the Company, is deemed to be
interested in the shares of ACHL, the then non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and therefore an associated corporation of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

3. All interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2013, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following
Directors (not being the INEDs) are considered to have interests in the
businesses listed below which compete or are likely to compete with
the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out
below:

1. Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of APL which, through certain
of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money
lending, property development and investment;

2. Messrs. Lee Seng Hui and Edwin Lo King Yau are directors of
AGL which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged
in the businesses of money lending, property development and
investment. Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau is a director of AG Capital
Limited (a subsidiary of AGL) which is partly engaged in the
business of money lending; and

3. Mr. Lee Seng Hui is one of the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust
which is a deemed substantial shareholder of each of AGL, APL
and SHK which, through their subsidiaries, are partly engaged
in the businesses of money lending, property development and
investment.

Although the above mentioned Directors have competing interests in
other companies by virtue of their respective common directorship,
they will fulfil their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that they will
act in the best interest of the Shareholders and the Company as a
whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses
of such companies.
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BEETEENh2ER DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

RERINERNEMER - AAFTHEE[A  No contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its

MEBARWEFI v EEEZNMEEREAME  subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a material

BZEMBEEEL - interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

BERGOHES 2 ZH ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

ARRAFHEAMHBERTRERNFELRXL(EM At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries

THE  (FERREENESAARKEMIME  a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire

ABEB RN HESMESHE benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

FERRERHEMALT RS SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

MNZZT—=F+-A=+—08 " 18BEEAEK At31st December, 2013, the following Shareholders had interests in

B E336 1R EMEFE 2 ECMATE - the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
WAARRARMOSABR O ER 2 IRRAT register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:
BERORAEBRE <HE
Number of shares and underlying shares interested
{8 AR5 EEER

(REREFA (ZREE HEHE

S65H) i) BITROEH

Personal Corporate ZBAEDL

Interests Interests Approximate %

(held as (interest of HirfEs BEZME  of the relevant

BRRE® beneficial controlled (0]1,133 Total total number of

Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests issued shares

FEEARAT(FEL]) - 188,694,000 — 188,694,000 12.52%
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK") (Fit1)
(Note 1)

BawE(EE)ARAR ([BaE]) = 921,963,096 - 921,963,096 61.18%
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL") (Hizt2) (Hf7£3)
(Note 2) (Note 3)

BAKBEERAFA(MAKE]) - 921,963,096 - 921,963,096 61.18%
Allied Group Limited (“AGL") (H1i24) (Hiz#3)
(Note 4) (Note 3)

Lee and Lee Trust - 921,963,096 - 921,963,096 61.18%
(H1it5) (F1323)
(Note 5) (Note 3)
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FTERRREMA T ZESE ZE) SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

BERAREBRAZEE
Number of shares and underlying shares interested
fBA R ZEER
(BHEHEEA (ZEEE HERE
FHER) ZHER) RITRGEEH
Personal Corporate ZBAEDL
Interests Interests Approximate %
(held as (interest of HipiEs REZSEE  of the relevant
REZHE beneficial controlled Other Total total number of
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests issued shares
Penta Investment Advisers Limited (“Penta”) - - 409,594,476 409,594,476 27.18%
(AREEBA (Kiit6)
F0EH) (Note 6)
(held as
investment
manager)
Penta Master Fund, Limited 118,556,440 - - 118,556,440 7.87%
(Ki:27)
(Note 7)
SEREEERAR ( 28] ) = 174,552,800 - 174,552,800 11.58%
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (Hf7£8)
(“Goldman Sachs”) (Note 8)
IGM Financial Inc. (“IGM”) - 90,359,000 - 90,359,000 6.00%
Power Financial Corporation - 90,359,000 - 90,359,000 6.00%
(“Power Financial”) (ft:t9)
(Note 9)
Power Corporation of Canada - 90,359,000 - 90,359,000 6.00%
(“Power Corporation”) (B1:£10)
(Note 10)
Gelco Enterprises Ltd (“Gelco”) - 90,359,000 - 90,359,000 6.00%
(B1:£11)
(Note 11)
Nordex Inc. (“Nordex”) - 90,359,000 - 90,359,000 6.00%
(Hiz£12)
(Note 12)
Desmarais Family Residuary Trust - 97,246,000 - 97,246,000 6.45%
(Hiz#13)
(Note 13)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

The interests include 96,694,000 shares and 92,000,000 shares held as holders
of securities by Itso Limited (“Itso”) and Scienter Investments Limited (“Scienter
Investments”) respectively, both wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shipshape
Investments Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SHK. SHK
was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares which Itso and Scienter
Investments were interested.

The interests include (i) 733,269,096 shares held by China Elite Holdings
Limited (“China Elite”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fine Class Holdings
Limited which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of APL; and (ii) the interests
of SHK in 188,694,000 shares. APL, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries AP
Jade Limited and AP Emerald Limited, owned approximately 56.14% of the
total number of issued shares of SHK. APL was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the shares which China Elite and SHK were interested.

The figure refers to the same interests of APL in 921,963,096 shares.

AGL owned approximately 74.99% of the total number of issued shares of APL
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which APL was
interested.

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, a Director, together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng
Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. They
together owned approximately 68.43% of the total number of issued shares of
AGL (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests) and were therefore
deemed to have an interest in the shares in which AGL was interested.

These include (i) an interest in 385,897,476 shares; and (ii) an interest in
unlisted cash settled derivatives of the Company equivalent to 23,697,000
underlying shares of the Company.

These duplicated parts of the interests of Penta and include (i) an interest in
110,779,440 shares; and (ii) an interest in unlisted cash settled derivatives of
the Company equivalent to 7,777,000 underlying shares of the Company.

Goldman Sachs (through various of its affiliates including Sky (Delaware) LLC,
Sky (Cayman) Ltd. and Elevatech Limited) was deemed to be economically
interested in (i) 112,152,800 shares; (ii) security interest equivalent to
31,200,000 shares; and (iii) unlisted cash settled derivatives of the Company
equivalent to 31,200,000 underlying shares of the Company as at 31st
December, 2013.

As of 31st January, 2013, being the date of the latest filing of a disclosure
of interest notice by the substantial shareholder, Power Financial owned
approximately 58.71% interests in the issued share capital of IGM and
was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which IGM was
interested.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

10.

. Jacqueline Desmarais, Paul Desmarais Jr.,

As of 31st January, 2013, being the date of the latest filing of a disclosure of
interest notice by the substantial shareholder, Power Corporation, through
171263 Canada Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Power Corporation),
owned approximately 65.98% interests in the issued share capital of Power
Financial and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which
Power Financial was interested.

. As of 31st January, 2013, being the date of the latest filing of a disclosure of

interest notice by the substantial shareholder, Gelco owned approximately
53.61% voting interests in the issued share capital of Power Corporation
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which Power
Corporation was interested.

. As of 31st January, 2013, being the date of the latest filing of a disclosure of

interest notice by the substantial shareholder, Nordex owned approximately
94.95% interests in the issued share capital of Gelco and was therefore
deemed to have an interest in the shares in which Gelco was interested.

Andre Desmarais, Michel Plessis-
Belair and Guy Fortin are the trustees of Desmarais Family Residuary Trust. As
of 8th October, 2013, being the date of the latest filing of disclosure of interest
notices by the trustees, they together owned approximately 68.00% interests
in the issued share capital of Nordex and was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the shares in which Nordex was interested.

All interests stated above as at 31st December, 2013 represent long positions as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31st
January, 2011 and the 2012 Annual Report of the Company,
the Company entered into a renewed sharing of administrative
services and management services agreement (“Services
Agreement”) with AGL on 31st January, 2011,
which the Company agreed to renew and extend the terms of

pursuant to

the sharing of administrative services and management services
agreement dated 31st January, 2008 for a period of three years
commencing from Tst January, 2011 to 31st December, 2013
and to reimburse AGL the actual costs incurred in respect of the
administrative services, which included the corporate secretarial
services, provision of registered office address, office space,
utilities, courier and delivery, telephone (including international
telephone), internet, photocopying and other ancillary office
services provided by AGL to the Group (“Administrative
Services”) and management services, which included the
management, consultancy, strategic and business advice services
provided by the senior management and the selected staff of AGL
to the Group (“Management Services”).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8th
October, 2012, ACHL, the then 75%-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, entered into an agreement (“ACHL
Services Agreement”) with AGL in respect of the sharing of
the administrative services and management services on 8th
October, 2012. A supplemental letter was entered into between
the Company and AGL on 8th October, 2012, pursuant to which
the estimated time devoted by certain individual members of the
senior management and selected staff of AGL on ACHL and its
subsidiaries (collectively, “ACHL Group”) is excluded from the
estimated percentage of time devoted by them to the affairs of the
Group as set out in the Services Agreement dated 31st January,
2011.

Since AGL is the holding company and hence an associate of APL
(which is a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company), AGL is a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the entering into of the Services Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.14
of the Listing Rules. The transaction regarding the sharing of
the Management Services is subject to the reporting, annual
review and announcement requirements but is exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules, while the transaction regarding the sharing of the
Administrative Services is exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rules 14A.31(8) and 14A.33(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs
have reviewed the transactions regarding the sharing of the
Management Services and have confirmed that the transactions
were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

(ii) conducted on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) entered into in accordance with the terms of the Services
Agreement governing the transactions regarding the sharing
of the Management Services and on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings in respect
of and confirmed the above continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in the Annual Report in accordance with
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, details of the
Services Agreement and the aggregate amount of the costs paid by
the Group (excluding ACHL Group) in respect of the Management
Services provided by AGL under the Services Agreement and the
costs paid by ACHL Group in respect of the management services
provided by AGL under the ACHL Services Agreement for the year
ended 31st December, 2013 of HK$20,400,000.00 are required
to be included in this report of the Company in accordance with
Rule 14A.45 of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28th
January, 2014 (“Announcement”), subsequent to the year end
date, the Company further entered into a renewed sharing of
administrative services and management services agreement
(“Renewed Services Agreement”) with AGL on 28th January,
2014, pursuant to which the Company agreed to renew and
extend the terms of the Services Agreement dated 31st January,
2011 for a period of three years commencing from 1st January,
2014 to 31st December, 2016 and to reimburse AGL the actual
costs incurred in respect to the Administrative Services and
the Management Services. Since AGL is a connected person
of the Company, the entering into of the Renewed Services
Agreement and the transactions regarding the sharing of the
Management Services contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Rule
14A.14 of the Listing Rules, which are subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements but are exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. The transaction regarding the sharing
of the Administrative Services between the Company and AGL
contemplated under the Renewed Services Agreement are
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rules
14A.31(8) and 14A.33(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance
with the requirements of Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing
Rules, details of the continuing connected transactions will be
included in the next published annual report and accounts of the
Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29th
January, 2013 and the 2012 Annual Report of the Company,
the Company as customer entered into an insurance brokerage
services agreement (“Insurance Brokerage Services Agreement”)
with Sun Hung Kai Insurance Consultants Limited (“SHK
Insurance”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of SHK which in turn is a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of APL (a substantial shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company), as service provider
on 29th January, 2013, pursuant to which SHK Insurance agreed
to provide packaged insurance brokerage services to the Group
for a term of two years commencing from 1st January, 2013
to 31st December, 2014 by assisting the Group in procuring
insurance policies (including but not limited to directors’ and
officers’ liability, property, business interruption, motor vehicle,
contractor all risks, public liability and employees benefits and
compensation) to be taken out with third party insurers (“Insurance
Brokerage Services”).

Since SHK and SHK Insurance are subsidiaries and hence
associates of APL, SHK and SHK Insurance are regarded as
connected persons of the Company. Accordingly, the entering
into of the Insurance Brokerage Services Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.14
of the Listing Rules, which are subject to the reporting, annual
review and announcement requirements but are exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have
reviewed the transactions contemplated under the Insurance
Brokerage Services Agreement and have confirmed that the
transactions were:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

(ii) conducted on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) entered into in accordance with the terms of the Insurance
Brokerage Services Agreement governing the transactions
regarding the Insurance Brokerage Services and on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by HKICPA. The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings in respect
of and confirmed the above continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in the Annual Report in accordance with
Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, details of the
Insurance Brokerage Services Agreement and the aggregate
amount of the Insurance Brokerage Services for the year ended
31st December, 2013 of HK$1,509,592.35 are required to be
included in this report of the Company in accordance with Rule
14A.45 of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the Announcement, subsequent to the year
end date, the Company as tenant entered into the sub-tenancy
agreement | (“Sub-Tenancy Agreement 1”) with AGL as landlord
and the sub-tenancy agreement Il (“Sub-Tenancy Agreement I1”)
with AP Administration Limited (“AP Administration), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of APL which in turn is a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company, as landlord on
28th January, 2014. Pursuant to the Sub-Tenancy Agreement
I, AGL agreed to sublet to the Company certain portions of a
premise for a term commencing from 1st January, 2014 to 31st
December, 2015 at a monthly rent of HK$145,769.75 exclusive
of rates, management fee and all other outgoings. Pursuant to the
Sub-Tenancy Agreement Il, AP Administration agreed to sublet
to the Company certain portions of another premise for a term
commencing from 1st March, 2014 to 31st March, 2015 at a
monthly rent of HK$20,000 exclusive of rates, management fee
and all other outgoings. Both sub-tenancy agreements include the
subletting of furniture and fixture, right of way, right to use lift
and all common facilities.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Since AGL and APL are connected persons of the Company, the
entering into of the Sub-Tenancy Agreement I, the Sub-Tenancy
Agreement Il and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules, which are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
but are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. In accordance with
the requirements of Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing
Rules, details of the continuing connected transactions will be
included in the next published annual report and accounts of the
Company.

As disclosed in the joint announcement dated 29th January,
2014 (“Joint Announcement”) of the Company and SHK (a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of APL which in turn is a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company),
subsequent to the year end date, Dalian Tian An Tower Co., Ltd.
(“Dalian Tian An”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a leasing agreement (“Leasing Agreement”)
with United Asia Finance (Free Trade Zone Dalian) Limited
(“Dalian UAF”), an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of
SHK, on 29th January, 2014. Pursuant to the Leasing Agreement,
Dalian Tian An agreed to lease to Dalian UAF premises in the
PRC for a term of two years and six months commenced from Tst
January, 2014 to 30th June, 2016 at a total rental over the lease
term of RMB6,372,311.98. Upon the entering into of the Leasing
Agreement, there are in total five leasing agreements entered into
between the Group and SHK and its subsidiaries as at the date of
the Joint Announcement.

Since SHK is a subsidiary and hence an associate of APL,
SHK and its subsidiaries are regarded as connected persons
of the Company, Accordingly, the entering into of the leasing
agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules, which are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
but are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. In accordance with
the requirements of Rules 14A.45 and 14A.46 of the Listing
Rules, details of the continuing connected transactions will be
included in the next published annual report and accounts of the
Company.

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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OTHER INFORMATION
Financial assistance to affiliated companies

Since that the financial assistance by the Group to affiliated
companies and guarantees given by the Group for facilities granted
to affiliated companies together in aggregate exceeded 8% under the
assets ratio defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules continued
to exist as at 31st December, 2013, the Group is required to comply
with Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules. The following is a summary
of unaudited combined statements of financial position of those
affiliated companies prepared from their financial statements as at
31st December, 2013 and adjusted, where appropriate, to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies:

TERT
HK$'000

B EE Non-current assets 5,832,684
TMENVE B Current assets 11,507,980
mEBEE Current liabilities (7,052,477)
e TEN=R Non-current liabilities (7,278,866)
eI e Non-controlling interests (65,385)
BEFE Net assets 2,943,936
AEERGEETFE Net assets attributable to the Group 1,465,212
FEEFRMEER MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

RER  AEBERAAUEF ZHERE R
AEESGAAUHER  XKBRED AR
AEEHE AR MIRBEREN12%34% °

BREZMAM  FEARR D BITHRMBESY
NENES - HFZMEA TR AIBRILE
RARERAAUfERMNEFHRAERNER

e
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fBE - HERER KRG
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ARAFHEEMNHBARMERD - HEXE
BIZAR R Z IR -

F4 Annual Report 2013

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers and the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 12% and 34% of
the Group’s sales and purchases respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares, had a beneficial interest in
any of the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
During the year ended 31st December, 2013, neither the Company

nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares.
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DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$298,000 during the
year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 32 to 52.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

oo

-

Lee Seng Hui
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st March, 2014

AZHEREEFRDE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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TO THE MEMBERS OF
TIAN AN CHINA INVESTMENTS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian
An China Investments Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 77
to 219, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s statements
of financial position as at 31st December, 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31st December, 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

M&ﬁ@ Tyl Gt

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21st March, 2014

AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BE-_T =—F+-A=1T—HLEE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

2013 2012
Bt e TExT FHT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
WA Revenue 6 1,733,315 1,410,086
SHERA Cost of sales (1,132,585) (921,644)
EF Gross profit 600,730 488,442
HAUA Bz Other income and gains 7 106,071 142,885
MG MY EE B Marketing and distribution expenses (65,413) (41,399)
THER Administrative expenses (310,369) (307,678)
HibZiE%5 A Other operating expenses (116,959) (35,091)
BIEESIRERNAEELZ  Netincrease (decrease) in fair value of
SFHE AN O ) held-for-trading investments 7,707 (209)
ERIMEFEERE Fair value gain on transfer of inventories
REMEZ AR EE of completed properties to investment
Wz properties 16 98,079 37,734
WEMERREBEZ Increase in fair value of investment
&N properties 16 381,092 515,717
BRIYMEFEZ Reversal of (write-down of) inventories of
BB CRE) completed properties 2,784 (14,139)
AR Recoveries of (allowance for) bad and
(&) doubtful debts 749 (35,627)
R R Y Amortisation of properties for development (112,740) (102,968)
LR Finance costs 8 (177,475) (181,311)
JE{HESZ A RNEFI(E18)  Share of profit (loss) of associates 14,346 61)
[E1E & &R Share of profit of joint ventures 324,835 245,009
Rk 5 BT 1) Profit before tax 753,437 711,304
18 Taxation 9 (419,912) (309,654)
AF Zm A Profit for the year 10 333,525 401,650
REZ @M EET - Profit for the year attributable to:
ZANNCILES Owners of the Company 337,564 401,403
FEFE R = Non-controlling interests (4,039) 247
333,525 401,650
B4l AL
HK cents HK cents
BRrRAR Earnings per share 13
BN Basic 22.40 26.64
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_ZT- =—F+-A=1t—HLEFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

2013 2012
TExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AF Zm A Profit for the year 333,525 401,650
HEmrmikz(ER) Other comprehensive income (expense)
TEEFHEEIBRMIEE ¢+ Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
MEREINNEEMESL Exchange differences arising on translation to
ZERER presentation currency 338,554 1,030
BElR AR ERN DR ER Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
BIER - profit or loss:
EIEAHEEREAREER Share of change in fair value of
2= E available-for-sale investments (28,368) (10,190)
A ERE 2 REERE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
BEHOEEER investments reclassified to profit or loss 37,475 8,987
R EYERTEE 2 HiE Reserves released upon disposal of properties 521 -
KEZzHMEEWZE(ER) Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year 348,182 (173)
RNEFE2EWEBRE Total comprehensive income for the year 681,707 401,477
EHENEBEEEGS ¢ Total comprehensive income attributable to:
PN} S Owners of the Company 666,224 401,938
FEFE AR A 2 Non-controlling interests 15,483 (461)
681,707 401,477
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H
At 31st December, 2013

2013
FET

HK$’000

2012
T
HK$'000

FERBEE Non-current assets
Y - BB M Property, plant and equipment 15 1,025,635 947,755
B2 - S Rk Deposits for acquisition of property, plant
i & and equipment 87,695 84,306
LAY Investment properties 16 8,629,406 8,020,410
FEREYE Properties for development 17 6,512,536 7,014,323
WEFERYE Deposits for acquisition of properties for
ki & development 198,450 195,345
T ERE BN EFR  Prepaid lease payments on land use rights 18 106,848 107,626
HihEE—ERER Other assets — properties interests 22,015 -
N AN o Interests in associates 20 9,076 7,271
RELEZHER Interests in joint ventures 21 1,480,664 1,239,338
U &3 Loans receivable 29 322,257 33,068
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments 22 219,472 130,828
kS Goodwill 23 640 640
IRIETRIBE B Deferred tax assets 42 171,703 123,455
18,786,397 17,904,365
REBEE Current assets
YEFE Inventories of properties 24
— R — under development 3,291,737 1,802,616
—B%®T — completed 2,376,395 2,111,133
HEihfzE Other inventories 25 66,638 75,591
SN TR Amounts due from associates 26 2,563 2,563
BEDPERR Amounts due from joint ventures 27 394,747 495,822
FEVERR AR R Amounts due from non-controlling
R shareholders 28 13,090 12,767
BRE R Loans receivable 29 58,458 148,883
g5« RRREMEW Trade, bills and other receivables, deposits
BR3X ~ Re RIENK and prepayments 30 801,838 473,894
T RE B EFK  Prepaid lease payments on land use rights 18 2,805 2,745
ETEBBIBREAAMEME  Financial assets designated as at fair value
BB EmEE through profit or loss 31 252,838 308,956
H A RAEITF R Other principal protected deposits 32 325,326 216,613
BIEEEKRE Held-for-trading investments 33 25,489 17,782
FESFIE Prepaid tax 5,873 4,002
REER 2 SRITIE K Pledged bank deposits 48 12,585 80,340
RITREFLRE Bank balances and cash 1,939,209 1,206,762
9,569,591 6,960,469
DEARFEEE Assets classified as held for sale 34 248,010 -
9,817,601 6,960,469
V=R Current liabilities
25  ZBEREAM Trade, bills and
JET R R other payables 35 4,463,515 2,816,611
TEERe Pre-sale deposits 504,930 291,209
RIEAE Tax liabilities 660,769 638,314
JEfT FEFEAR AR R Dividends payable to non-controlling
i) shareholders 8,877 1,150
SRES Membership debentures 41 32,763 26,527
M BB Interest-bearing borrowings 38 2,161,696 1,398,006
BEER Interest-free borrowings 39 514,651 663,447
8,347,201 5,835,264
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZZE—=F+-RA=+—H
At 31st December, 2013

NOTES

2013
FiaE FET

HK$’000

DHEAFEEEL Liabilities associated with assets classified
HEasE as held for sale 34 171,241 -
8,518,442 5,835,264
RBEEZRE Net current assets 1,299,159 1,125,205
BWEERABER Total assets less current liabilities 20,085,556 19,029,570
AR Capital and reserves
A Share capital 36 301,354 301,354
FEE Reserves 37 13,762,984 13,157,031
PAN/NC Y L i Equity attributable to owners of the
M Company 14,064,338 13,458,385
FEFERR M 2R Non-controlling interests 953,035 953,929
FEXS AR Total equity 15,017,373 14,412,314
FRBEMF Non-current liabilities
P=R=E Interest-bearing borrowings 38 2,077,967 1,941,966
—ZHMP ZIEEAESUW A Deferred rental income from a tenant 40 72,832 79,913
MPzHE®Es Rental deposits from tenants 23,297 27,573
SHEES Membership debentures 41 20,621 23,646
EERIAAE Deferred tax liabilities 42 2,873,466 2,544,158
5,068,183 4,617,256
20,085,556 19,029,570

TERE77EEF219B 2 A MBREJE

X

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 219 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21st
March, 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

L
j

—F-ME=A=+-BEEFRBBRES
K WA TIEFREEE

e

Patrick Lee Seng Wei Edwin Lo King Yau

ERE coh— i)
Director Director
EFE EFE
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COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H
At 31st December, 2013

2013 2012
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
Y - BB M Property, plant and equipment 15 21,793 20,416
NG N -2 Interests in subsidiaries 19 4,937,340 4,603,784
B /8 2 B R Amounts due from subsidiaries 19 7,494,996 6,848,895
NESPE RS Interests in joint ventures 21 11,182 10,906
12,465,311 11,484,001
REBEE Current assets
HMEWAR - Ze k& Other receivables, deposits and
TEfT K prepayments 1,454 1,549
L IIEENCIDEN Amounts due from subsidiaries 428,290 -
BEDPERR Amounts due from joint ventures 1,553 1,553
RITHEGERIRS Bank balances and cash 378,479 74,182
809,776 77,284
nEaE Current liabilities
oAb T BR 3K Other payables 14,021 11,978
MEasE Tax liabilities 29,884 31,191
b B8R Interest-bearing borrowings 38 456,437 160,000
% BER Interest-free borrowings 39 85,272 81,401
585,614 284,570
RBEE(BE)EE Net current assets (liabilities) 224,162 (207,286)
BEERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 12,689,473 11,276,715
R R R E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 36 301,354 301,354
i Reserves 37 12,388,119 10,975,361
12,689,473 11,276,715
”
Patrick Lee Seng Wei Edwin Lo King Yau
ZRE B2
Director Director
EF EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_ZT- =—F+-A=1t—HLEFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

ARARRESR

Attributable to owners of the Company

e ¥h &% B

HERE EXRE  BORE  TERER FERES
Share  Special  Capital Exchange Efthife  HEftE  RibEA 1
premium capital redemption translation Revaluation Other  Retained I3t controlling
reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserves  earnings interests
T TR ; ThEn Tt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 ( (
RZE-ZF—A—H AtlstJanuary, 2012 301,354 3,352,781 1,417,669 134,679 1,801,309 14,831 (30,319) 6,156,212 13,148,516 785,323 13,933,839
BEREZJIEHE  Exchange differences arising on
EXZEREE translation to presentation currency - - - - 1,738 - - - 1,738 (708) 1,030
FEIAEEERE  Share of change in fair value of
DMABEZED  availableforsale investments - - - - - (10190) - - (10190) - (10,190
IRHEREZ Impairment loss on available-for-
HEEBEHNDE  sale investments reclassified to
3 profit or loss - - - - - 8,987 - - 8,087 - 8,987
KEERT Profit for the year - - - - - - - 401,403 401,403 247 401,650
TEERENR Total comprehensive income
(BR)28 (expense) for the year - - - - 1,738 (1,203) - 401,403 401,938 (461) 401,477
FEEIRBRR Capital contribution from
B non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 16,859 16,859
#5-HMELE  Dilution of a subsidiary
(fia) (Note a) - - - - (13730 - (16034 - (29764) 187404 157,640
WE-BIEARZ  Acquisition of additional interest in
BIMER (M a subsidiary (Note b) - - - - 3,741 - B - e (18215 (20249)
REAER Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - - - - (60,271)  (60,271) - (60271
EARFHER Dividend distributed to
EnsRe non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (16981 (16,981)
RZB-ZF
T-R=1-H At 31st December, 2012 301,354 3,352,781 1,417,669 134,679 1,793,058 13,628 (52,128) 6,497,344 13,458,385 953,929 14,412,314
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REREZB2H R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HE-ZT=F+-A=+—HLEFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

ARARRELR

Attributable to owners of the Company

e £
HERE EARE RORE FIRG
B Share Special Capital  Exchange  EftffE  Hftfif
Share  premium capital redemption translation Revaluation Other
capital

&% Eji

FERES
byl Non-
Retained @zt controlling
reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserves  earnings Total interests
TR i ‘ F £ TER

00 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

RZZ-=F—A—H AtlstJanuary, 2013 301,354 3,352,781 1,417,669 134,679 1,793,058 13,628 (52,128) 6,497,344 13,458,385 953,929 14,412,314
BERSFSHET  Exchange differences arising on

EEVERER translation to presentation currency - - - - 319,032 - - - 319,032 19522 338,554

FE(SATENERE  Share of change in fair value of

MBEZED available-for-sale investments - - - - - (28,368) - - (28368) - (28368
AREEREY Impairment loss on available-for-sale

HEBBERSE  investments reclassified to profit or

3= loss - - - - - 37,475 - - 37,475 - 37475
REEMERT Reserves released upon disposal

BN HE of properties - - - - - - 521 - 521 - 521
TEERR Profit for the year - - - - - - - 337564 337564 (4,039 333,525
REEZEME  Total comprehensive income

feks for the year - - - - 319,032 9,107 521 337,564 666,224 15,483 681,707
REAE Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - - - - (60,271)  (60,271) - (60271)
EARTIHER Dividend distributed to

Ba7kE non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (16377)  (16377)
R-E-=%

TZAZT-3  At31st December, 2013 301,354 3,352,781 1,417,669 134,679 2,112,090 22,735 (51,607) 6,774,637 14,064,338 953,035 15,017,373

Kzt Notes:
a. EEKEERARAR(EENKEN)(R=ZZF—— a. The shares of Allied Cement Holdings Limited (“ACHL”), a wholly-owned

F+=R= Jr HARSEZ— F'ﬁiﬁ&ﬁ @ Al) subsidiary of the Group as at 31st December 2011, had been listed on the

ZBRMR—T——F— B +/\BRBNEBEE R Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
SFERA T(!— P ERRET - RER - BE with effect from 18th January, 2012. On the same date, 165,000,000

JKJe2. 165,000,000 4% I fE0.01 7% T #) & @A LA &
B&1.007 TTRIEBAS A NS R E ([IRNDEE])
M NETT - HIRBREARMNEENEREZZAERK
1@5%%5;‘%157 640,000/ 7C ° kD EEE% - AEE

A KRR IR E £ L 100%EEZ75% © 18
25%15 A 7K JEIE A E 187,404,000/ 7T ~ [E 3H.)Z

)& 113,730,000/ T RIS B FBE BN ER

ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each of ACHL were issued at
a price of HK$1.00 by way of public offering and placing (“Share Offer”),
the net proceed, after deducting the expenses relating to the Share Offer,
is HK$157,640,000. The Group’s percentage of equity interest in ACHL
was diluted from 100% to 75% after the Share Offer. The difference of
HK$16,034,000 between the relevant share of net assets of ACHL amounted to
HK$187,404,000, exchange translation reserve amounted to HK$13,730,000

FR

16,034,000/ T HERR A EAth {4 ©

$‘§IM20 249,000 702 B R ERE—FHHEB
ANAIREIN20% B o %M B A RRPEAR LM
(BB RIEE YR E o FFERERE e
1h/F&EE18,215,00057T « MIB AR ZIE R )ZE)H
183,741,0007%8 7t &2 X {E20,249,0007%8 7T 2 6 K 2=
£5,775,00078 L HER R H M A °

Annual Report 2013

and the net proceeds was recognised in other reserves.

The Group acquired an additional 20% interest in a subsidiary with a cash
consideration of HK$20,249,000. The subsidiary was established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and engaged in property investment. The
difference of HK$5,775,000 between the relevant share of net assets by the
non-controlling interests amounted to HK$18,215,000, exchange translation
reserve amounted to HK$3,741,000 of the subsidiary and the consideration of
HK$20,249,000 was recognised in other reserves.

83



RERETRY X
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_ZT- =—F+-A=1t—HLEFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

2013

FEx

HK$’000

BEX® OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B B AT & ) Profit before taxation 753,437 711,304
A Adjustments for:
H A YA R g Other income and gains
— B2 WA - Dividend income (4,278) (9,478)
—IRITFER LKL E K — Interest income on bank deposits and
FEUA loan receivables (49,820) (45,402)
— HE MR — Interest income on other principal
FMEMA protected deposits (13,060) (10,404)
— TS BEREAR — Fair value gain on financial assets
BEREZSREE designated as at fair value through
Z R BEWE profit or loss (14,049) (13,067)
AMEHERE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
B EE investments 37,475 8,987
RIEEEREARBEZ Net (increase) decrease in fair value of
(I R held-for-trading investments (7,707) 209
—ZMBP ZRERE S WA Deferred rental income from a tenant (7,080) (8,880)
ERIMEFEEES Fair value gain on transfer of inventories
REMEZ R BE of completed properties to investment
W ak properties (98,079) (37,734)
BEMELABEZ Increase in fair value of investment
=0 properties (381,092) (515,717)
S TYERFS 2 (#O) (Reversal of) write-down of inventories of
B completed properties (2,784) 14,139
RiZAR (D) (Recoveries of) allowance for bad and
# doubtful debts (749) 35,627
FEMRER & N A Ca ) B8 Share of (profit) loss of associates (14,346) 61
B aE R A Share of profit of joint ventures (324,835) (245,009)
ELE=5iN Finance costs 177,475 181,311
P& N i Depreciation and amortisation 164,516 152,074
HERFEYE  BER Loss (gain) on disposal and write-off of
= B R (s ) property, plant and equipment 6,123 (3,602)
—MEE R RIREEE Impairment loss of an associate = 38
EEECEBE 2 Operating cash inflows before movements
LEREIMA in working capital 221,147 214,457
YT EEIN Increase in inventories of properties (908,377) (1,210,214)
FEEMER Increase in properties for development and
WS 1T R deposits for acquisition of properties for
L E i =PIl development (258,892) (827,680)
HAtF &R A (38 ) Decrease (Increase) in other inventories 8,953 (12,494)
B5  ZEREMEIIES - (Increase) decrease in trade, bills and
e IR (Em) other receivables, deposits and
B prepayments (327,471) 176,471
XRE ZRITETE R Decrease in restricted bank deposits 31,673 24,985
B5  ZENHEMERMMIEZ  Increase in trade, bills and
N other payables 378,310 250,815
FEERESIEM Increase in pre-sale deposits 213,721 206,187
BPzHE2REORD) (Decrease) increase in rental deposits
il from tenants (4,276) 3,074
ANEEXH 2 RE Cash used in operations (645,212) (1,174,399)
B BFER R #EER PRC income tax and Land Appreciation Tax
([ L3R ER ) (“LAT”) paid (163,115) (109,922)
FEIFTISERT PRC income tax refunded 70 10
RAREEXK 2 NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
BHE&EE ACTIVITIES (808,257) (1,284,311)
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FERETRB X
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZT=F+-A=+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

2013 2012
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REXK INVESTING ACTIVITIES

S Interest received 49,450 33,763
BYREEERENRRE Dividends received from joint ventures 192,279 206,714
Bk B E 1% E LB Dividends received from other investments 4,278 2,803
BEME BEL&E Purchase of property, plant and equipment (98,676) (239,530)

HEME - WFERZE Proceeds on disposal of property,

P13 plant and equipment 1,029 4,958
BEREME Purchase of investment properties (14,639) (123,171)
HEREENBRE ER Proceeds from disposal of investment

P properties, net of business tax 11,978 17,382
fEAEAE G & Capital contribution to joint ventures (8,642) (238,272)
WHE& &% Acquisition of joint ventures = (108,799)
BEAHEERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments (130,451) (6,875)
BEETHEBREREAR Purchase of financial assets designated

BERESHEE as at fair value through profit or loss (622,785) (330,864)
HARARIFRZ Placement of other principal protected

FA deposits (439,241) (209,877)
HEHLERE Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale

Frig investments 15,140 -
EEERBRRANER Proceeds from redemption of financial assets

REzEMEERR designated as at fair value through

FriS 5078 profit or loss 700,774 386,142
HEMERABIFRZ Withdrawal of other principal protected

2E deposits 337,975 185,185
B HE MR AEITF K Interest received from other principal

HE protected deposits 11,097 7,708
FRALHEWEARZ Deposits received in relation to disposal of

EWEUE S subsidiaries 1,353,029 182,660
BELE(ER)ER (Advances to) repayment from joint ventures (20,703) 94
FEIERR AR R AE K Advances to non-controlling shareholders (323) -
HEAEX Loans repaid 106,775 166,851
BTER Loans advanced (330,655) (143,581)
FAYERIE 2 $R1T1F 2 2 42E  Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 76,408 8,801
FEIEIR 2 R1TIFRZTFE A Placement of pledged bank deposits (6,766) (36,219)
RE(ARREXBZ NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING

REBE ACTIVITIES 1,187,331 (234,127)
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FERERD X

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HE-T=F+-A=+—BHLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

2013
FET

HK$’000

mE XK FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERFLE Interest paid (236,806) (218,221)
ERIRE Dividend paid (60,271) (60,271)
BT IR AR Dividends paid to non-controlling

s shareholders (9,094) (21,802)
BE—ENEBARZ Purchase of additional interest in

HIMER a subsidiary = (20,249)
RE—EMEARRGS Proceeds from Share Offer of

BEPSHIA a subsidiary = 157,640
FERITREMER New bank and other loans raised 1,900,185 1,456,235
BERITREMER Repayment of bank and other loans (992,493) (1,458,599)
R E IEIERR IR R AT Advances from non-controlling shareholders 45,895 444,936
TR AR 2 Capital contribution from non-controlling

TE shareholders = 16,859
(RR)KBEEDRE (Repayment from) advances from joint

& ventures (182,325) 183,154
REBE N BIER Advances from associates 175 720
REMEEE2REFE NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 465,266 480,402
HENRESEEEHEM NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CRD) 38 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 844,340 (1,038,036)
R—A—HzHRERES CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

£EER AT 1ST JANUARY 1,002,405 2,039,420
SN I R O Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,456) 1,021
R+=-HA=1+—H=2ZH&KE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

He&ZEEER 31ST DECEMBER 1,845,289 1,002,405
RERRESEEBLEEF ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH

Akl AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITEGFERIRS Bank balances and cash 1,939,209 1,206,762
B ZIRE 2 R1T41F (BIEE) Less: restricted bank deposits (Note) (172,684) (204,357)

1,766,525 1,002,405

BREEDEAFEEEY Bank balances and cash included in assets

RITHETF MR E classified as held for sale 34 78,764 -

1,845,289 1,002,405

Rrit - RREZBOT/AFEESRRTEFRRE - Z8
RITAEF REEARNEEEN X EREAR -

86

Note: The restricted bank deposits are included in bank balances and cash which
can only be applied in the designated property development projects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_T =—F+-A=1T—HLEE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

1. HEE
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EREARAMB((HEDEE - REUHER
KUBRBEE (BT 27 EEARFNY
REBEMTR - ZEEIARF 2 LHHTT
ARBIZEE((EXRRBETIRRAEL

258 -

RAFE  AEEEFREA T HEES
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%% Annual Report 2013

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its securities are listed on the Stock Exchange. The address
of the registered office which is also principal place of business of the
Company is disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of the
annual report.

The principal activities of the Group are property development and
investment, sales of cement, clinker and construction materials,
golf course operation, provision of hotel and property management
and investment holding. The functional currency of the Company is
Renminbi (“RMB”) as the Group conducts most of its operations in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of Hong Kong (“Hong
Kong Dollars”) which is different from the functional currency of the
Company, as the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider that
Hong Kong dollars is the most appropriate presentation currency in
view of its place of listing.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the

following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”):

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests

in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a

Surface Mine

87



mEMB®R WM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#

E—T—=Ft+-A=t+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

2. BRAMIREEITEBMBRS
ZR([ R BHREER ] @)

BRIt ESN - RANFRER 2] R E
R BRBU B MEERNEARNEERTIBESF
B 2 BT R RAN R A SR & B 5 RR P8 A
BREXEBEATE -

ERPBHREENE7REITRKE - K&
HeMEERERMAE

AEERAFREEREAELMBGHREER
FTRETATBE-RHScREERESHE
&) - EAVBHREERNE7RET AR EER
BEETIIBBOER :

(@ BREBGAERFERNEMTE - 2%
HENEERERIA &

(b) ZAISRHIBITEFREALE T B R
ZRVOECHERTRMIA  ERLERT
AR R RRA B G ERIEI25RIEER

BEMBRELNE7RETACERER -
FE R FIERT AL Y AR BR S M MK
ERNESBENEAZE  BERFRAEKHE
L HHENE Z MK

BRSEKRE - S8 TH  BELATARK
BHVHR] KRB RTER

RAFE  AEEERAER—E£F6Rak
B RE%H MEQRRNEMNTIAER
BRBEEVHEREEANZI0RFa M HER
R BEMBREEAF1RIEELH]
BEMBREENF 2R NEMEEER
WE | BEEHERBE27R(CT——FRE
DI BIMBHRER | BB GRTERF285 (=
T——FREFD I RNBERRRGEREZE
B ERANBEESNEEM RS LR
F105% - BBEMBHRELEAE 1R EEBHE
WELRFE125REFTA

ERZEEAMFEZTIT -

ik
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7 “Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” for the first time
in the current year. The Amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to
disclose information about:

(@) Recognised financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation”; and

(b) Recognised financial instruments that are subject to an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off in
accordance with HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 have been applied retrospectively. The
application of the amendments has had no material impact on the
amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
but has resulted in more disclosures relating to the Group's offsetting
arrangements.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, HKFRS 12
“Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011) “Separate Financial Statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011) “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT=F+-A=+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

2. BRAMIREEITEBMBRE
ZR([ERMBHRELER ] @)
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7
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK(SIC) — Int 12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”.
HKFRS 10 changes the definition of control such that an investor has
control over an invested when (a) it has power over the invested; (b)
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the invested; and (c) has the ability to use its power to affect
its returns. All three of these criteria must be met for an investor to
have control over an invested. Previously, control was defined as the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has been
included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over
an invested. The application of HKFRS 10 has not had any material
impact to the Group.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”, and the
guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC) — Int 13 “Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers”, has
been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control should be classified and accounted for. Under HKFRS 11,
there are only two types of joint arrangements — joint operations and
joint ventures. The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS
11 is determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to
the joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal form of
the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the parties to the
arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 had three types
of joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based on
the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was
established through a separated entity was classified as a jointly
controlled entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#

E—T—=Ft+-A=t+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

2. BAHIREEIEBMBRE
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint
operations is different. Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation is no longer
allowed). Investments in joint operations are accounted for such that
each joint operator recognises its assets (including its share of any
assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue from the
sale of the output by the joint operation) and its expenses (including
its share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator
accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and
expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation in accordance
with the applicable standards.

The Directors reviewed and assessed the classification of the
Group’s investments in joint arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 11. The Directors concluded that the Group’s
interests in jointly controlled entities accounted for using equity
method under HKAS 31 should be classified as joint ventures under
HKFRS 11. The application of HKFRS 11 has not had any material
impact on the amount recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the application
of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements (please see notes 20, 21 and 50 for
the 2013 disclosures).

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and disclosures
about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad:
the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for
which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the
purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment
assessment purposes).
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (continued)

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would
be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case
of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative period
(please see notes 5 and 16 for the 2013 disclosures). Other than
the additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had
any material impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income”. Upon the adoption of the
amendments to HKAS 1, the Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income’ and the ‘income statement’ is renamed as
the ‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain
the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income are grouped
into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items
of other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of
tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1
does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive
income and total comprehensive income.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” (as revised in 2011) and the related consequential
amendments for the first time.

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) changes the accounting for defined
benefit plans and termination benefits. The most significant change
relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations
and plan assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes
in defined benefit obligations and in the fair value of plan assets when
they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted
under the previous version of HKAS 19 and accelerate the recognition
of past service costs. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised
immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the net
pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus.
Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on plan assets used
in the previous version of HKAS 19 are replaced with a ‘net interest’
amount under HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011), which is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Specific transitional provisions are applicable to first-time application
of HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011). The application of HKAS 19 (as
revised in 2011) has not had any material impact on the amounts
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in prior
years.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New or revised standards and interpretations that have been
issued but not yet effective

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-

Financial Assets'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and

and HKFRS 7 Transition Disclosures’
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities’'

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined
when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Tst July, 2014, with limited
exceptions

5  Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1st
January, 2016
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of ‘vesting
condition” and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add definitions for
‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition” which were
previously included within the definition of ‘vesting condition’.
The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1st July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair
value at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent
consideration is a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9
or HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in
profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 1st July
2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation criteria
to operating segments, including a description of the operating
segments aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in
determining whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic
characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of
the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be
provided if the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify
that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-
term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at their
invoice amounts without discounting, if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the
gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated
depreciation/amortisation is the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into account
accumulated impairment losses.

The amendments to HAKS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting entity
is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting
entity should disclose as related party transactions the amounts
incurred for the service paid or payable to the management entity
for the provision of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply
to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangement in
the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets
and financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are
within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS
39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3 are
not mutually exclusive and application of both standards may be
required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property must
determine whether:

(a) the property meets the definition of investment property in terms
of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in 2010 to include the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-
financial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition,
the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have a significant impact on the amounts reported in respect of
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the
Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify how an entity should account for
contributions made by employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans, based on whether those contributions are dependent on the
number of years of service provided by the employee.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions (continued)

For contributions that are independent of the number of years
of service, the entity may either recognise the contributions as a
reduction in the service cost in the period in which the related service
is rendered, or to attribute them to the employees’ periods of service
using the projected unit credit method; whereas for contributions that
are dependent on the number of years of service, the entity is required
to attribute them to the employees’ periods of service.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 19 will have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have
any defined benefit plans.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose
the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which
goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had
been allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal
of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments
introduce additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was determined based on its
fair value less costs of disposal.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of these

amendments to HKAS 36 will have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the invested;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the invested; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an invested if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
invested, it has power over the invested when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the invested unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an invested are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquire
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquire. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured

in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19
“Employee Benefits” respectively;
e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based

payment arrangements of the acquire or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire,
and the fair value of the acquire’s previously held equity interest in
the acquire (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquire and the fair value of the acquire’s previously held
interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquire’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at their
fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

, as appropriate, with the

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquire is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquire prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Business combinations (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently, and when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the invested but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the invested but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or
a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are

The financial statements of

prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Appropriate
adjustments have been made to conform the associate’s and the joint
venture’s accounting policies to those of the Group. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate or joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interests in associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the invested becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the invested is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held
for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for
all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the
equity method is discontinued.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interests in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets are classified into one
of the three categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and those
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

e it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade, bills and other receivables, loans receivable, amounts due from
associates, amounts due from joint ventures, amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders, other principal protected deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available for sales or are not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of revaluation reserves. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the right of the Group to receive the dividends is
established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For the other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterpart; or
e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and bills
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for indicators of impairment on a collective
basis.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and bills receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade and bills receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recovery of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity

instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying value on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities that include interest-bearing and interest-
free borrowings, trade, bills and other payables, dividend payable
to non-controlling shareholders and membership debentures are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and the
Company and not designated as at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group and the
Company measure the financial guarantee contracts at the higher
of: (i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
revenue recognition policy.

113



mEMB®R WM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=Ft-A=t—RHLLFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

3. BEEEHER®)
SRMIAM)
THEERKATR(E)
KR

AEEEEREMEENEEERSREN
BREMNER ESHEENEEMAREE
FrRBEHERMORERRE S —(EEE -

REVEEREMEER - EERMEHRDZ KR
EURAENENEMEZEN SRR E5tiEs
ZZ@ﬂ]FEJZ§§EBAT5 Eﬁwu °©

AEBZzERABEENMRAERBEBELME
ERTERE - EiEzEmFEUEER - BUR
ERZeRABEREEESNHENRERZ
ZRNIEmER

MREFE

HFEEZERTIMEFERHEEZERTY
EEEAURAERATERFEIBEEA
Bk RABRIBLIAA  EREM - EfEHR
RARBEERMEZ EERA - AIZIRFETIR
BEREERBRITMSREMEL 2 Gt mE
o BENERz(NEXHERBERER)

MEFENRABEEREREYSE - RHE
Eﬁiﬁ/‘ﬁﬁé‘ﬁz A BEZEZBRERNMER AR
Httz &

HpFEURAER AT #RFEZBEEA

fR - RABRERERYHR(ER) BERSTK
AREFS iﬁ(ﬁﬁhﬁ&ﬁkﬂﬁﬁ?iZFﬂx
PR o FRAZ NPT E o Al B3R FES
1E§+%f§?@21$§+%ﬁﬁﬁ%2%QBBZKLA&m%
HE - HERD K EEZRA -

114

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Inventories of properties

Inventory of completed properties held for sale and inventories
of properties under development for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of land,
development expenditure, other attributable costs and borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value is determined by reference
to management estimates based on prevailing market conditions.
Inventories of properties are transferred to investment properties at fair
value when there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of
an operating lease. The difference between the carrying amount and
the fair value at the date of transfer is recognised directly in profit or
loss.

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is computed on a weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated cost
of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and
distribution.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Properties for development

Properties for development is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any identified impairment loss. Cost comprises
the consideration for acquisition of land use rights and other costs
directly attributable to bringing the leasehold land to the condition
necessary for it to be capable of development of the properties. The
consideration for acquisition of land use rights represent leasehold
land held for future development. The costs that are directly
attributable to bringing the leasehold land to the condition necessary
for it to be capable of development of the properties are capitalised as
costs of properties for development.

Amortisation of properties for development are recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Land and buildings transferred from investment properties are stated
at deemed cost equal to its fair value at the date of change in use. The
transferred properties are depreciated over their unexpired lease term.

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:

Land and buildings on
medium-term lease

Over the unexpired lease term or
40 years, whichever is shorter

Golf course on medium-term lease Over the expected unexpired
lease term

40/0 - 80/0

20% — 30% or over the lease
term, whichever is shorter

20% — 33%

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixture and equipment
and motor vehicles
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production or for its own
use purposes are carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying amount and its
fair value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation or both. Investment properties include
land held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for
capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties (continued)

Transfer from investment property to property, plant and equipment
will be made when there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of owner occupation. Transfer from investment
property to property under development will be made where there is
a change in use, evidence by the commencement of construction for
property for sale. For a transfer from investment property carried at
fair value to owner-occupied property, the property’s deemed cost for
subsequent accounting are determined by reference to its fair value at
the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

Inventory of properties is transferred to investment property when it
is evidenced by the commencement of an operating lease to another
party. The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount
at the date of transfer is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments on land
use rights” in the consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for
those that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease.

AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited



e MB®RWME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—T—=

BE—ZT =—F+t-A=1T"HLFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

3. EEETHER®

AEE REHLEREREE(AIRE—K
RERBMHEEGENMERIERERHEZEE)
MEXEENEERANSRMARZEEKRER
N BEEEEEANARLEAERERESL

(==
=

FrE R EER AN AR R ERR

v
fm °

EHE

BiIE

FRSRS Jyte AN IR A B IA I EIEE IR 2
B -

S 08 F A SR U 58 -
SR R B A 1 36 R B 2 R AT LR
Fl - W Ty e AT T AT R 4F SR SR
ARSI + bR R SRt ok AT HIE 2
A AR DR A RRAR G
CEERRIEE s L Lt R

EERIB IR A MRS EEMEBER
ﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬁ%Mmﬂ%%%mﬁmﬁZ%%
EEMER  WIRAEEBERAEBES
— I ERT R ERE — &ﬁmﬁuLME%
&+ RAFERBE A Al 58 B LA SE ] SR 2 2.
ERER AEIAAECHEEE - WEHE
S BEAER(EBEHRINR G 2 EMEER
BEMEEZREEETSHERRTG K
sl A EEEERABETTER °

BEERERBEIZARKERR LB E AR
BRERNAEREEZ ST 5| B2 ERTLERRS
EZEMER - EEAKEAZENREEZEE2Y
B URBRRERAE TGN REREEE
BRON o BRRZ TR E M s AR A A0 AT FOR R IS =
BELNBEERBAEE - BHERAEHIRA
MR RS Z T < R BRAT G M - W TE
HAR AT 574 20 [0 B R o

%% Annual Report 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
for such investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised to profit or loss, except when
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in
the accounting for the business combination.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received

or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts.

AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited



e MB®RWME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE—T—=

BE—ZT =—F+t-A=1T"HLFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

3. EEETHE )
WA TERR ()

HIHENEHRMEZBARZENEREE
ZEXRBEREHEBREST - ZEMEN
BECKTEREZSENFOEINTER - M
H AR RE &Y FE M 3R AT Uy 3 1 B 1S 1R 7E B
R EEEHTRAEERRDE L EMEH
EAHER - ThE AR RINHES R

BEGEERNEAEZ BB R OHRDEBLE
T B RAER o
ﬁé%ﬁ%kﬁ?ﬁ#mmEWE*ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
MNREBERAER 2 RBAER
HEHMERDINE R RAEEB R
TR o
BRRKIGEE - BE R YESTEWRA RS

ARTSEFHERR

CREEELZNBWATRERELE ¥
REAEEASRNEMERZBERM R
R MERNXSERSREECBYAIRE
HR AT AR A S WA R EZEER & RHE
R ARENFE ©

TR B UER 2 iR B U ATE AN B i i 75 W A
FRFHERR o
g

RS ERNREER M BHRRE - UZE
RBIEEER AN “%WW@LﬁZX%&
SE B EREXBE AR -
BEMEHEEER - UIMNESIEZE %EE&
REHZERERENBRE - RHEHKR - U
INERIMEZ EMIRRHREAZERERS
HIRE - AR BEUINESIE 2 FEEHEIEH
DERAABEETEAZERERENRR
B BINEELRAGEZIEBHEAEE
Has -

%% Annual Report 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Income from properties developed for sale is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are
transferred to buyers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed and the properties have been
delivered to the purchasers and collectibility of related receivables is
reasonably assured. Profit or loss arising from the outright sale of an
entire development property prior to completion is recognised when
a binding sales contract becomes unconditional and the risks and
rewards of the ownership have been transferred to the buyer.

Deposits received from sales of properties prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Sales of other goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Income from golf course operation and hotel and property
management is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange difference
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit
or loss on disposal of foreign operation. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are translated into
the Group presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong Dollars) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transaction are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or joint ventures that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1st January,
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
exchange translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisitions of foreign operations prior to 1st
January, 2005 are treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of
the acquirer and reported using the historical exchange rate prevailing
at the date of the acquisition.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset (disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in its former subsidiary after the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Non-current assets classified as held for sale (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of
an investment, or a portion of an investment, in an associate or joint
venture, the investment or the portion of the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity
method in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale. Any retained portion of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture that has not been classified as held for sale
continues to be accounted for using the equity method. The Group
discontinues the use of the equity method at the time of disposal
when the disposal results in the Group losing significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for any retained
interest in the associate or joint venture in accordance with HKAS
39 unless the retained interest continues to be an associate or a
joint venture, in which case the Group uses the equity method (see
the accounting policy regarding investments in associates or joint
ventures above).

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of the assets’ (disposal groups’) previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful debts of the Group and
the Company is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer and borrower. If the
financial positions of customers and borrowers of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the investment
property portfolios of the Group and its joint ventures and concluded
that investment properties held by the Group and its joint ventures
are not held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the deferred taxation on investment properties of the Group and
its joint ventures, the Directors have determined that the “sales”
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised the deferred
taxes on changes in fair value of investment properties as the Group is
subject to LAT on disposal of its investment properties.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

Ownership of properties

At 31st December, 2013, the land use rights of a golf course (included
in prepaid lease payments on land use rights), the relevant golf course
and its construction in progress (both included in property, plant
and equipment), as well as certain properties for development with
carrying amount of HK$7,654,000, HK$180,722,000, HK$3,359,000
and HK$1,305,321,000 respectively in the PRC have been granted
for terms of up to 2062. Due to the policy of local land bureau,
the land use rights certificates of them will expire within one year
and the Group is required to apply for the extension periodically.
Renewal application has to be submitted to local land bureau within
one month before the expiry date. The management has exercised
judgement, taking into consideration the legal opinion obtained, and is
satisfied that the Group will successfully obtain the extension and no
impairment is associated with the properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Valuation of inventories of properties

Inventories of properties are stated at the lower of the cost and net
realisable value. The estimated net realisable value is estimated
selling price less estimated selling expenses and estimated cost of
completion (if any), which are estimated based on best available
information.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The Directors has to determine

the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The Directors work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value
of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 5 and 16 provide
detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various
assets and liabilities.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and equipment
with respect to depreciation, management estimates the useful lives
of various categories of property, plant and equipment according
to the industrial experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial norm. If
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment is less than
the original estimate useful lives due to changes in commercial
and technological environment, such difference will impact the
depreciation charge for the remaining period.

Taxation

At 31st December, 2013, a deferred tax asset of HK$4,563,000 (2012:
HK$4,563,000) in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised as
set out in note 42. No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the
remaining tax losses of HK$781,169,000 (2012: HK$584,344,000)
and other deductible temporary differences of HK$711,099,000
(2012: HK$569,811,000) as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the tax losses and deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less than or more than
expected, a material reversal or recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the statement of profit or loss for
the period in which such an event takes place.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Land appreciation tax

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including sales charges,
borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The details of implementation
have been announced by local tax bureaux in certain major cities,
however, the Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with local tax bureaux in those cities in PRC. Accordingly,
significant judgements are required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5a. Categories of financial instruments

A
THE GROUP

EN
THE COMPANY
2013 2012
FExT THAT
HK$’000  HK$'000

2013
TET
HK$’000

2012
TAT
HK$’000

EHEE Financial assets
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 219,472 130,828 = -
BIEEERE Held-for-trading investments 25,489 17,782 = -
EEBEBBRRERAAN Financial assets designated as at fair

EBEEREZEHMEE value through profit or loss 252,838 308,956 - -
ERMERIER(EE  Loan and receivables (including bank

RITHEF RIS - & balances and cash, and pledged

PRV 2 $877172%)  bank deposits) 3,870,073 2,670,712 8,304,772 6,926,179
THEE Financial liabilities
RN AT E 2 Financial liabilities measured at

TRBE amortised cost 7,866,688 6,165,105 555,730 253,379
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
5b. Financial risk management objective and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, held-for-trading investments, amounts due from
associates, joint ventures and non-controlling shareholders, loans
receivable, trade, bills and other receivables, financial assets designed
as at fair value through profit or loss, other principal protected
deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade, bills
and other payables, dividend payable to non-controlling shareholders,
interest-bearing and interest-free borrowings and membership
debentures. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose primarily to the financial risks of
changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates and
change in prices of equity financial instruments (see below).

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or
the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

(i) Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk through the
impact of interest rate changes on fixed-rate loans receivable and
borrowings. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate loans receivable, other principal protected deposits
and borrowings which carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus a certain percentage. The Group will continue to maintain
a reasonable mix of floating rate and fixed rate borrowings and take
actions to hedge against any foreseeable interest rate exposure, if
necessary. The interest rates and terms of repayment of bank and
other borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 38.

Interest rate sensitivity

At the end of the respective reporting periods, if interest rates
increased by 200 basis points in relation to the Group’s variable rate
loans receivable and other principal protected deposits and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit would increase by
HK$6,617,000 (2012: increased by HK$6,202,000).
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk management (continued)

At the end of the respective reporting periods, if interest rates
increased by 200 basis points in relation to the Group's variable rate
borrowings and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit would decrease by HK$25,070,000 (2012: decreased by
HK$14,861,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the year.

(ii) Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s operations are mainly in the PRC other than Hong Kong and
certain bank and other loans of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies (see notes 38 and 39). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management monitors
the related foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amount of monetary assets and monetary liabilities that
are denominated in a currency other than RMB at the end of the
respective reporting periods are as follow:

rEE PN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FAET FEx FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HE Assets
=T United States Dollars 67,981 68,374 1,143,803 961,246
BT Hong Kong Dollars 785,966 384,839 6,801,644 5,868,237
aE Liabilities
7T United States Dollars 14,654 9,991 = -
BIT Hong Kong Dollars 1,666,601 1,103,024 474,021 171,979
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(ii) Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group mainly exposes to the currency of United States (“United
States Dollars”) and Hong Kong Dollars.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the RMB against the relevant foreign currencies.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes interest-bearing and interest-free borrowings as well as bank
balances and cash. A positive number indicates an increase in profit
for the year where the RMB strengthens against the relevant currency.
If there is 5% increase in RMB against the relevant foreign currencies,
the increase (decrease) in the profit for the year is shown as below:

AEH
THE GROUP

¥ NN}
THE COMPANY
2013 2012
FExT T
HK$’000 HK$’000

2013
TET
HK$’000

2012
TAT
HK$’000

EY United States Dollars
NG5 R > Decrease in profit for the year (2,666) (2,919) (57,190) (48,062)
BT Hong Kong Dollars
AN N N Increase (decrease) in profit for
Om) the year 44,032 35,909 (316,381) (284,813)

ERERS - BRED T TRERRAEINER
2 - BAFRERY TRREEANRER
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In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity security price risk arising from equity
investments. The management will monitor the price movements and
take appropriate actions when it is required.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices were 10% higher/lower:

— revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by HK$21,947,000
(2012: increase/decrease by HK$13,083,000) for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

—  profit for the year would increase/decrease by HK$2,549,000

(2012: increase/decrease by HK$1,778,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2013, the Company’s and the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Company and the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties or financial guarantees provided by
the Company and the Group is represented by the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the statement
of financial position and consolidated statement of financial position
and the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed in note 45(a). In
order to minimise the credit risk, the monitoring procedures are
carried out to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade and bills receivables and other receivables at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. With respect to financial
guarantees provided to banks to secure the banking facilities granted
to subsidiaries by the Company, the Directors consider the credit risk is
limited because the subsidiaries have strong financial positions. The
management considers the credit risk exposure to financial guarantee
provided to banks to secure the banking facilities granted to property
purchasers is also limited because the facilities are secured by the
properties and the market price of the properties is higher than the
guaranteed amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

No loan receivable is due from a related party as at 31st December,
2013 and 2012, the Group had a concentration of credit risk as the
loan receivables are advanced to a few independent third parties.
As at 31st December, 2013, the loans receivables will be matured
ranging from February 2014 to August 2015. Each of the loan
receivables is secured by properties and unlisted shares as at 31st
December, 2013 and 2012. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, no loan receivable was settled. The management considers
the credit risk exposure is limited as none of them have been past
due.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group also has a concentration of credit risk on the amounts due
from joint ventures which are due from a few joint ventures engaged
in property development. The Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment loss are made for irrecoverable amounts, if
any. The management considers the credit risk exposure is limited.

The Company and the Group have no other significant concentration
of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and
financial guarantee arrangements. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group and the Company can
be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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. ST H#®) 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
b. EMEERERBE£Z) 5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)
T BRI (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
REBEER(A) Liquidity tables (continued)
7 R+=A
EERTEE S
HORMEA REEH A
MET 7= Repayable ReTEAE Carrying
Weighted  on demand 3BAEIF Total amount
average  or less than 12388 3 months S5E5 L undiscounted at 31st
interest rate Tmonth  1-3 months to 1 year - 5+ years cash flows December
A TAL T i =
HK$'000 (
&M THE GROUP
—E-=f 2013

FITERBEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
g5 3 T%ﬁﬁﬁi Trade, bills and other

BAES payables - 3,050,113 - - - - 3,050,113 3,050,113

Hjﬁ“ﬂxﬂx% Dividends payable to non-controlling
shareholders = 8,877 = = = = 8,877 8,877

Interest-bearing borrowings

 fixed rate 7.33% 8,937 125,770 972,756 1,855,329 798214 3,761,006 2,986,162
- variable rate 2.83% 239,246 13,629 281,431 781,466 - 1,315,772 1,253,501
BE Interest-free borrowings - 514,651 - - - - 514,651 514,651
QHER Membership debentures = 32,763 - = 20,621 = 53,384 53,384
HBERAR Financial guarantee contracts - 1,985,140 - - - - 1,985,140 -
5,839,727 139,399 1,254,187 2,657,416 798,214 10,688,943 7,866,688

Z8-Zf 2012
#fIEQﬁ%ﬁf‘ Non-derivative financial liabilities
E5 5 T?& tft, Trade, bills and other

Jidpg3 payables - 2,110,363 - - - - 2,110,363 2,110,363
# “ﬂxﬂx% Dividends payable to non-controlling
& shareholders - 1,150 - - - - 1,150 1,150
SR Interest-bearing borrowings
-E8 - fixed rate 6.26% 301,177 27,327 493,625 1,389,668 586,569 2,798,386 2,596,938
—28 - variable rate 5.96% 407,780 29,815 192,126 118,434 - 748,155 743,034
BEMEN Interest-free borrowings - 663,447 - - - - 663,447 663,447
eHES Membership debentures - - - 26,527 23,646 - 50,173 50,173
HEERAR Financial guarantee contracts - 70,016 - - - - 70,016 -
3,553,933 57,142 712,278 1,531,768 586,569 6,441,690 6,165,105
KRR THE COMPANY
—2-=fF 2013
FITEMBEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
E A EATERSR Other payables = 14,021 = - = = 14,021 14,021
BfER Interest-bearing borrowings
-38 - variable rate 2.93% 11,112 2,117 92,687 381,518 - 487,434 456,437
BB S Interest-free borrowings = 85,272 = = = = 85,272 85,272
BRERAR Financial guarantee contracts - 1,008,403 8,272 91,892 830,018 316,452 2,255,637 -
1,118,808 10,389 184,579 1,212,136 316,452 2,842,364 555,730
-z 2012
*fliaﬁﬁﬁfg Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other payables - 11,978 - - - - 11,978 11,978
/ Interest-bearing borrowings
% - variable rate 3.68% 160,000 - - - - 160,000 160,000
S8 Interest-free borrowings - 81,401 - - - - 81,401 81,401
@M&B‘* RAF Financial guarantee contracts - 540,666 3,791 512,582 507,713 410,463 1,975,215 -
794,045 3,791 512,562 507,713 410,463 2,228,594 253,379
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summaries the maturity analysis of term loans with a
repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments
set out in the agreements. The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were
greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band
in the maturity analysis contained in the table above. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the Directors do not consider

that it is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such term loans
will be repaid in accordance with the following scheduled repayment
dates set out in the agreements:

i

=+-H

AERRE ZIREE

RERHE Carrying

HYR11ER MBAZEIEF Total amount

Less than 123184 3 months 1Z5% undiscounted at 31st

1month  1-3 months to 1 year 1-5 years cash flow  December

FERT TAT FERL FET FERL FERT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2013 8,764 19,011 619,704 939,327 1,586,806 1,475,797
2012 31,627 52,468 168,676 489,852 742,623 688,789

Bl BREzHBERAR 2B RMERHOR
SHRE  AEERARRRBELFFESE
MERERNTATE - RERBERARZE
B AEESIARARBASREAEREZL
B RBSRBRAXM - AT - AR TR
BEER - RBTREMAI LM RS - ZkE
RESGTHARERNEBEEFEZEER
SR AT RENEH BB o
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The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts that the Group or the Company could be required
to settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterpart to the guarantee. Based
on expectation at the end of the reporting period, the Group or the
Company considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterpart claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterpart which are guaranteed
suffer credit losses.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change, if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Captial risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in notes 38 and 39, membership debentures
disclosed in note 41, net of bank balances and cash and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital and
reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As a part of
this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt, if necessary.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
value of various financial assets.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well
as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.
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SRTH &) 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
s5h. IREKREEBERKE &) 5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)
SHTAZAAEEE(E) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)
R-B—=
+=-A=+—H
ZRANREE
Fair value RAREE
as at 31st &5l
SWMEE December, Fair value FERGRIEZH
Financial assets 2013 hierarchy  Valuation techniques and key inputs
T
HK$’000
Aﬁ?%?ﬂ’ﬁ%fﬁ&éfZE/\ﬁP B -7 23,086 F—& REBRTSARIMSEEAR
pd N Level T Quoted bid prices in an active market

Equity securities listed in the PRC
classified as held-for-trading

investments
DERAIHEEREZRTE EHZ 26,178 F—&  REBRTSARITSEEAR
MRANFE 7 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market

Equity securities listed in the PRC
classified as available-for-sale

investments
DRAAHIEERE 2 I EHERE? 28,211 F_&  BRBLNRE - RAKBRBLRERIEEH
Unlisted debt securities classified as Level 2 FE(RERREH RO ITERAZES K
available-for-sale investments B REXHFE(RRTERZEFHEER
REVRIR ) MihET -
Discounted cash flow. Future discounted
cash flows are estimated based on relevant
interest rates (from observable yield curves
at the end of the reporting period) and
contracted interest rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.
DEREEEBBERANEEREL 252,838 FH& BRBELRE - RARURREREREEH
TRYBE ZERAMAEE TR Level 2 [EXRCRENHREHARNAIHERNEHREK)
Exchange rate linked structured REHNE(RRAEBRXR 5 F(E
deposits classified as financial assets R WEERRREF Z) MGt o
designated as at fair value through Discounted cash flow. Future discounted
profit or loss cash flows are estimated based on forward

exchange rates (from observable forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted interest rates,
discounted at a rate that reflects the credit
risk of the Group or the counterparties as
appropriate.
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LRI A%
5h. KEMREEEERBEZ)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)

EHMTAZ AL EEE(E)
R=B-=F+=A=+—-AZARBEERE

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2013

2013

TREE
FIEEERE

Financial assets
Held-for-trading investments

F—R

Level 1
FHET
HK$’000

E-R
Level 2
FAIT
HK$’000

F=R
Level 3
FHET
HK$’000

—REBAIN BT — Equity securities listed
Z IR 5 outside Hong Kong 23,086 = = 23,086
AR ERE Available-for-sale investments
— BB ET - Equity securities listed
Z IR FE 5 outside Hong Kong 26,178 = = 26,178
—JELTRAES — Unlisted equity funds — 28,211 - 28,211
26,178 28,211 - 54,389
B BIBmIZ BB Financial assets designated as at
Bz 2HEE fair value through profit or loss
— RS — Structured deposits = 252,838 - 252,838
REZB-—ZHF+ZA=1+—-HZAABEERE  Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2012

F—&

Level 1
FAT

HK$’000

2012

EZR
Level 2
FAIT
HK$’000

FE=M
Level 3
T
HK$’000

#5T
Total
Tt
HK$’000

TREE Financial assets
HIEEERE Held-for-trading investments
—REBEUIN LT — Equity securities listed outside
ZBRAFEH Hong Kong 15,379 - - 15,379
AR ERE Available-for-sale investments
— BB ET - Equity securities listed outside
Z R F Hong Kong 16,650 - - 16,650
—FELETRAES — Unlisted equity funds - 29,818 - 29,818
16,650 29,818 - 46,468
15T B BEmIZ A 1EE  Financial assets designated as at
BB 2MEE fair value through profit or loss
— EEETER — Structured deposits - 308,956 - 308,956
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5b. Financial risk management objective and policies
(continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (continued)

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the current year.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities
carried out and located in the PRC other than Hong Kong. The
Group’s basis of organisation is determined based on four main
operations: property development, property investment, manufacture,
sales and trading of cement, clinker and construction materials
and other operations, that comprises mainly hotel and property
management and golf course operation. Similarly, the Group’s
reportable and operating segments, reported to the Executive
Directors of the Company for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, also focused on these four main operations.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets
and liabilities by reportable and operating segments for the year under
review:

2013 2012
FET FHIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEDBIWE Sales of completed properties 487,177 177,810
e WA Rental income 418,168 407,559
HE HEMEE Manufacture, sales and trading of
KJe ~ B cement, clinker and
YR construction materials 703,468 705,597
SRAKSEERA Income from golf course operation 28,174 24,477
@f&%%g@ Income from hotel and property
WA management 96,328 94,643
1,733,315 1,410,086

A 2{RLEDEEAIRE D2 FEHE &
W
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There are no intersegment sales and transfers among the reportable
and operating segments.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The Group’s revenue and assets for the year were derived mainly
from activities carried out and located in the PRC other than Hong
Kong. An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, results, assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segment is as follows:

MEER
Property
development
TR
HK$’000

MERE
Property
investment
THET
HK$’000

£E - HE
REEKE -
BEEYR
Manufacture,
sales and

trading of

cement,
clinker and
construction
materials
THET
HK$’000

HingE
Other
operations
TER
HK$'000

=i
Consolidated
FHET
HK$’000

BEE-E-=% For the year ended
+=B=+—-8 31st December, 2013
HEE
DEBA SEGMENT REVENUE
HINEE External sales 487,177 418,168 703,468 124,502 1,733,315
ES RESULTS
D E(EE) m A Segment (loss) profit (54,838) 720,731 21,369 (78,530) 608,732
HAip A Koz Other income and gains 106,071
- WAk =t Unallocated corporate
BH expenses (123,072)
BER AR Finance costs (177,475)
JE(ER2 A E)& A  Share of profit of associates 14,346 = - - 14,346
JEMRABEMT]  Share of profit (loss) of joint
(B538) ventures 239,324 105,625 2,944 (23,058) 324,835
PRELADRF Profit before tax 753,437
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6. DEHER(#E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

HE - HE
REEKE -
Manufacture,

sales and

trading of

cement,
MEBRE MEKRE  clinker and HieE
Property Property construction Other &6t
development  investment materials  operations Consolidated
TER TER TER TER TET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

R=ZZB—=%+=H8 Asat 31st December, 2013

=t+—H
BE Assets
DNEEE Segment assets 12,672,746 9,103,110 930,855 343,245 23,049,956
REVS AT ZFEES Interests in associates 9,076 = = = 9,076
REELEZRELD  Interests in joint ventures 679,773 783,338 - 17,553 1,480,664
NS UM Amounts due from associates 2,563 = = = 2,563
BEDE Amounts due from joint

R ventures 348,066 = = 46,681 394,747
REEDHE 2 M¥EE Unallocated corporate assets 3,666,992
BHBEE Consolidated total assets 28,603,998
=1 Liabilities
DEE & Segment liabilities 3,475,908 373,897 35,932 201,356 4,087,093
R b Unallocated corporate

BfE liabilities 9,499,532
AptERE Consolidated total liabilities 13,586,625
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6. DEER () 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

£E - HE
REEKE
Manufacture,
sales and

trading of

cement,
MERRE MEKRE  clinker and HieE
Property Property construction Other &6t
development investment materials  operations Consolidated
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BE_Z—=% Other information for the

t+t=A=+—H year ended

HEEZHMER  31st December, 2013
BERDEEMS  Amounts included in the

EEs D EE E measure of segment profit or

AECERE loss or segment assets:
ERBEEZIEIM  Addition to non-current assets 267,311 27,357 17,010 65,708 377,386
rE N Depreciation and amortisation 124,463 5,956 22,444 11,653 164,516
HEMTHEDE © Loss (gain) on disposal and

B MR write-off of property, plant

BB () and equipment 216 248 5,698 (39) 6,123
BB TG EER Fair value gain on transfer of

EHREMEY inventories of completed

“REE properties to investment

Wz properties = 98,079 - - 98,079
BBWMENREMEZ Increase in fair value of

& investment properties = 381,092 = - 381,092
BRI YE Reversal of write-down

FEZRE inventories of completed

#m properties 2,784 - = - 2,784
REER Recoveries of bad and

[l doubtful debts 66 - 683 - 749
HIEESB®RE NS Netincrease in fair value of

BEFEMN held-for-trading investments = - - 7,707 7,707
AREEREZ Impairment loss on available-

EEEER for-sale investment

DEEER reclassified to profit or loss - - - 37,475 37,475
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6. DENER(Z) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4 - e
REENKE
Manufacture,
sales and
trading of
cement,
MR ME®RE  clinker and HAth&E

Property Property  construction Other =Y

development  investment materials  operations Consolidated
THT TR TR THT TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BE-E-—F For the year ended
+=A=+—-H 31st December, 2012
HFE
pax:i 1 ON SEGMENT REVENUE
HINEE External sales 177,810 407,559 705,597 119,120 1,410,086
ES RESULTS
D EP(E1E ) m A Segment (loss) profit (165,518) 794,589 (8,932) (12,478) 607,661
E A A Rz Other income and gains 142,885
Y At Unallocated corporate
&R expenses (102,879)
BERA Finance costs (181,311)
fE(REE SN E]ETE  Share of loss of associates 61) - - - 61)
JEMREEMEREF  Share of profit (loss) of joint
(E518) ventures 140,038 134,832 - (29,861) 245,009
PR A A A Profit before tax 711,304

144 RRZHAEREBMAF  Tian An China Investments Company Limited



e MB®RWME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—ZT =—F+t-A=1T"HLFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

6. DEER () 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

EE - HE

REEKE

R R

YR

Manufacture,

sales and

trading of

cement,

MEER Y%¥i&E  clinker and Hfth 38

Property Property  construction Other A

development  investment materials ~ operations Consolidated
THT TR TET THT TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

R-ZZ—=—%5+=5 Asat 31st December, 2012

=t+—H

BE Assets

DEBE Segment assets 11,411,774 8,233,794 830,005 157,204 20,632,777
REEZ2AF 2 Interests in associates 7,271 - - - 7,271
REZMEZIEZ  Interests in joint ventures 617,849 580,682 - 40,807 1,239,338
NI Amounts due from associates 2,563 - - - 2,563
BEDNERT Amounts due from joint ventures 450,100 - - 45,722 495,822
KREEDE 2 BEEE Unallocated corporate assets 2,487,063
EHEEE Consolidated total assets 24,864,834
=1 Liabilities

AEEE Segment liabilities 1,739,594 196,093 13,643 196,180 2,145,510
KREED# 2 B¥EAME Unallocated corporate liabilities 8,307,010
aptHERE Consolidated total liabilities 10,452,520

BOMOSETBRERMEIMANAELE  The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as

2 uﬂ—t& —2 e 2 Eba M (BB IEEMED A the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit
%ﬁﬂiﬂ’\]*‘]xfﬁ(ﬁiﬁ'\]ﬁﬁﬁ) CERAESEEAM  (loss) represents the profit earned by (loss from) each segment without
WARW S ~ BEKRA - BIEHE AT NREE  allocation of other income and gains, finance costs, share of profit
PEEMN(BE) RSB ZBEER - T (loss) of associates and joint ventures and unallocated corporate
ERTARRATEERERD L MFTERI  expenses. This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors of
REMZEE - the Company for the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment.
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6. DENER(Z) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

4 - e
EEEKE -
Manufacture,
sales and
trading of
cement,
MR ME®RE  clinker and HAth&E

Property Property  construction Other =Y

development  investment materials  operations Consolidated
THT TR TR THT THT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

HE-2-——F Other information for

+=A=+-H the year ended

HEEZHMER  31st December, 2012
BERADEEF®  Amounts included in the

EEk DA E measure of segment profit or

ABZER loss or segment assets:
EREEE N Addition to non-current assets 1,143,110 132,664 57,373 31,179 1,364,326
rE N E Depreciation and amortisation 114,377 4,810 20,880 12,007 152,074
HEMFHEYE « Loss (gain) on disposal and

E S pd write-off of property, plant

E5ia () and equipment 167 45 44 (3,858) (3,602)
BB TG EER Fair value gain on transfer of

EREMEL inventories of completed

“rEE properties to investment

Wz properties - 37,734 - - 37,734
LEMENLEEZ Increase in fair value of

# investment properties - 515,717 - — 515,717
ERTYHEFE 2  Write-down inventories of

ERE completed properties 14,139 - - - 14,139
REEAR Allowance for bad and

i doubtful debts 11,663 - 23,964 - 35,627
BEEEREA DA Net decrease in fair value of

EBEIFRD held-for-trading investments - - - 209 209
AHEERE Y Impairment loss on available-

HEBBERN for-sale investments

DHEEER reclassified to profit or loss - - - 8,987 8,987
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6. TERER#E)

AEBZEBURTE - IAAKEHINES
ELXZWARBREGRERIERINOLERE
T AKEERFRPEEIVNFTE -
FERFZER

AEBAREHE —HIINKERFZWAERE
B FERATO%IA L -

H WA K

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC. All of the Group’s
revenue from external customers is determined based on the location

at which the services were provided or the goods were delivered. The

Group’s major non-current assets are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

No revenue from transaction with single external customer is

amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year.

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

HK$’000

2013 2012

FERT TR

HK$’000

g BHA Dividend income

—3EEmRH — unlisted shares 3,442 2,406

— _ETR& D — listed shares 836 7,072
RITFFF BUA Interest income on bank deposits 14,433 22,972
JE s B A 8 Interest income from loans

A receivable 35,387 22,430
H i RARITF R Interest income on other principal

FLEMA protected deposits 13,060 10,404
EEERBRRANER Fair value gain on financial assets

BRIBZCRUEE designated as at fair value

Z AR BERR through profit or loss 14,049 13,067
LN Subsidy income 7,911 14,696
HE A Other income 16,953 49,838

106,071 142,885
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8. MEMA 8. FINANCE COSTS
2013 2012
THExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FMERT Interest on:
IRITER Bank loans 228,890 210,458
HMER Other loans 1,901 2,299
ERTHE Loans arrangement fee 8,945 4,610
FERBEREESZ Imputed interest expenses
HEF B on non-current membership
EH debentures 2,620 2,795
242,356 220,162
B B Less: amount capitalised
ERAYE on properties under
ik development (64,881) (38,851)
177,475 181,311
9. IR 9. TAXATION

2013

TET
HK$’000

2012
THAT
HK$’'000

B The charge comprises:
NP Current tax
— RS — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 83,194 53,323
— TR — Withholding Tax 666 14,535
— T IRE R - LAT 86,171 39,098
170,031 106,956
BEFE (BREEE) (Over) under provision
BET e in prior years
—HRAPEMEH — PRC Enterprise Income Tax (1,042) 5,604
— THIRET — LAT (1,145) 3,114
(2,187) 8,718
167,844 115,674
BIETR IR (A 5t42) Deferred tax (note 42) 252,068 193,980
419,912 309,654
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BIE(#)

REBBREZEE QAR ZMEEANLELMR
%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ'ﬂﬁ%%%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
PESRASHRENE R RERRETER
B o

RIBRBECEMENERPRCEMSHEAE
Mg R—ZEENFE—F—Hie - PR B
NEIMFREA25% o

T HbIE (AR 2 B T4 AR B R B B R R GBI FR
FIZHAERTE - TR ERIBEIEERELKIET
RDR R BRIRIR IS AR o

LR B MERBEEER 2 BE BT
2008 15% ' BZZEZENF—H—HUUKR - iR
BURK S 2 Bt B A Rl P EE A5 F 0k T IE R RA%
BE 2 IR B AT B HARER &
DEBREEIR27IEBRINEREDE K
SN EE AR IR R INR R E B
¥R ERPREEEEN - AORAFZ
Lkﬁﬁiﬁu9m6m@%ﬁ&aﬁamm%ﬁ

PRAlRABE_E—=F+_-_A=+—HIt
if&aﬁ_gf_¢+:ﬂz+f5¢¢§
ZIEAB®mERNA o
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9. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the group
companies operating in Hong Kong do not have any assessable profits
for both years. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the
rates applicable to respective subsidiaries.

Under the Laws of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax Law and
Implementation Regulation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law, the tax
rate applicable to the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January, 2008
onwards.

The provision for LAT is calculated according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value, with
certain allowable deductions.

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui 2008 No. 1, dividend
distributed out of the profits generated by its subsidiaries incorporated

[//

in the PRC to “non-residential” investors since 1st January, 2008
shall be subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax and which held by
the PRC entity pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law
Concerning Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises
and Article 91 of the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the
Income Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment Enterprises
and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred tax charge of HK$29,806,000 and
HK$9,339,000 on the undistributed earnings has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31st

December, 2013 and 2012 respectively.
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9. BIE#E)

9. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

AEEHIBS HEREBEmER N E M Z 5B The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the
W consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:
2013 2012
FEx FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRIERTR A Profit before taxation 753,437 711,304
EERFT1S %Rfﬁ?ZS%d‘ 5 2 BiIE Tax at the domestic income tax
—F—ZF 1 25%) rate of 25% (2012: 25%) 188,359 177,826
FETEH’H‘?%*’D\ BEBERNZ Tax effect of share of profit of
Mg E associates and joint ventures (84,795) (61,237)
ARAHIB R 2 Tax effect of expenses not
IER deductible for tax purpose 57,034 24,372
FERTUAZ Tax effect of income not taxable
MIAR 2 for tax purpose (22,282) (23,610)
RIERWIBBER Tax effect of tax losses and
Hip s ER =822 other deductible temporary
I differences not recognised 137,243 84,033
B RIBA RERIEEE K& Tax effect of utilisation of taxes
L th AT F00RE R losses and other deductible
ZR A temporary differences
7 previously not recognised (44,679) (52,063)
MBARTREBIE 2 Effect of different tax rates of
24 subsidiaries (4,837) (8,253)
R IRERZ Withholding tax on undistributed
ik earnings 29,806 9,339
B TELERL PRC withholding tax 666 14,535
THIRER 2 & Effect of LAT 166,545 135,146
BEFE (BREERE) (Over) underprovision in prior
BEr R years (2,187) 8,718
Hi Others (961) 848
REEHIAZ H Tax charge for the year 419,912 309,654

oA 85 I FR 2 B PO T A SR B A o
82 Bk (B B BRI o
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The domestic tax rate (which is PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate) in the
jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is substantially based is

used.
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10. &R FEER 10.PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
2013
THET
HK$’000
REF A Profit for the year has been
2 40kx arrived at after charging
(FtA) (crediting):
ME - BB RRE Depreciation of property, plant
e and equipment 52,933 48,695
B BB Less: amount capitalised in
ERPYE properties under
el development (4,003) (2,378)
48,930 46,317
B Amortisation of:
HERYFE Properties for development 112,740 102,968
THEREL Prepaid lease payments on
TERHEER land use rights 2,846 2,789
FrEfEs Total depreciation and
“aza amortisation 164,516 152,074
ETEBR(BRESEME) Staff costs (including Directors’
(Hiz) emoluments) (Note)
- e kHEMEA — Salaries and other costs 168,325 156,571
—RKETNER — Retirement benefits costs 14,107 13,875
-8 BARER — Less: amount capitalised
R h in properties under
MEE T development (21,228) (17,029)
BTEMERE Total staff costs 161,204 153,417
AR B FEWER 2 HES WA Gross rental income from
e investment properties (418,168) (407,559)
B NEFERNEE Less: direct operating expenses
HaWAZ from investment properties
?xﬁ%%ﬁ'] that generated rental
HEEEEER income during the year 83,174 86,962
(334,994) (320,597)
ZEMB £ Auditor’s remuneration 5,659 5,405
BEREMESEER L Impairment loss on available-for-
AHEEREZ sale investments included in
REEE other operating expenses 37,475 8,987
FEZRALE Cost of inventories recognised
B ARE as expenses 902,245 724,671
JHIE U E Net exchange gain (868) (1,698)
BERHEMEEER L Urban land use tax included
Yok BB b 5 PR AR in other operating expenses 79,484 26,066
HE R SHYE Loss (gain) on disposal and
P K& write-off of property, plant and
518 (e ) equipment 6,123 (3,602)
)iy Y e i Operating lease charges in
HEEA respect of land and buildings 5,938 5,137
JEMEEERERIE Share of tax of joint ventures
(B BEEEN (included in share of profit of
BEBEREMA) joint ventures) 312,032 466,822
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10. XEEmA () 10.PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

Wizt Note:

BTIERAYTEIEL Zﬁ/\ﬁﬂ‘%ﬁﬁﬁﬁuﬂ 1%Mi5E47@FT  The staff costs do not include the apportionment of management fee as disclosed in
BENEEEIETETESRIFARRZESZHETL  note 11 and note 47(a) to the consolidated financial statements for certain Directors
ZEEEAEB - as well as management personnel who are not Directors or staff of the Company.
1N.ESME 11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

DffE N T+ =6 (=ZF——4 : +/mfi)E The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2012:
EZBMEMT fourteen) Directors were as follows:

2013

e/
PRI &K REE EHRER
HittgR HEzRS BE

Salaries/ Performance Retirement

EEWE  service fee related benefits

Directors’ and other incentive scheme it

fee benefits payments contributions Total

TER TERT TERT TER TER

HK$/000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$/000

(Hizta)
(Note a)

RIEH Song Zengbin 10 2,000 2,000 = 4,010

RK(E Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 2,809 2,780 119 5,718

=5 8* Ng Qing Hai* 1 106 70 5 182

B Ma Sun 10 3,134 1,103 276 4,523

Bt Edwin Lo King Yau 10 926 1,155 43 2,134

S Tao Tsan Sang 10 1,579 842 146 2,577

P Lee Seng Hui 10 3,765 5,259 40 9,074

IR Moses Cheng Mo Chi 10 - - - 10

FHIE Lee Shu Yin 10 - — - 10
BL§51E (ffath) Francis ). Chang Chu Fai

(Note b) 10 79 = = 89

SEE(HaEb) Jin Hui Zhi (Note b) 10 79 = — 89

BRE A (M177b) Ngai Wah Sang (Note b) 10 102 — - 112

SR (M7#b) Lisa Yang Lai Sum (Note b) 10 79 — - 89

121 14,658 13,209 629 28,617

* BT =F—A-H==_ZF—=F—At+N\H- *  From 1stJanuary, 2013 to 18th January, 2013.
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1M1.EE=Me ) 11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
e/

k% E K *iE RIRTEH

HipErl AREcRS AR

Salaries/  Performance Retirement

EEME  service fee related benefits
Directors’ and other incentive scheme amct
fee benefits payments contributions Total
FET FET FAET FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Kista)
(Note a)

ER: Hu Aimin? 7 1,500 2,000 - 3,507
RIEH Song Zengbin 10 2,000 2,000 - 4,010
ERk(E Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 2,722 2,660 114 5,506
ENE N Ng Qing Hai 20 2,230 1,641 102 3,993
5 Ma Sun 10 3,086 1,200 272 4,568
B=th Edwin Lo King Yau 10 828 1,108 38 1,984
M Tao Tsan Sang 10 1,508 800 139 2,457
FRE Lee Seng Hui 10 3,452 3,116 34 6,612
PR Moses Cheng Mo Chi 10 - - - 10
B Lee Shu Yin 10 - - - 10
EpsiE Francis J. Chang Chu Fai 10 77 - - 87
SEE Jin Hui Zhi 10 77 - - 87
%ﬂzi Ngai Wah Sang 10 99 - - 109
SRR Lisa Yang Lai Sum 10 77 - - 87
147 17,656 14,525 699 33,027

P BT E——F-A-HE-Z—_FAAZ+E ¢  From 1stJanuary, 2012 to 24th September, 2012.
go

Kzt - Notes:

@ SEENZFENCHERZMNTHEBEEZEH (@) The amounts represent the actual discretionary bonus in respect of the

AI—FEERREES - preceding year approved and paid to respective Directors during the year.

b)) H=ZF—=F—A—HiEe BABIFHTES - (b) The service fee of each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
ENERSSIB SR - @FESLE - MELSLERBBER Mr. Francis J. Chang Chu Fai, Mr. Jin Hui Zhi, Mr. Ngai Wah Sang and Ms.
Rt REER T ——F LFH43% - Lisa Yang Lai Sum, was increased by approximately 3% with effect from 1st

January, 2013 as compared with 2012.
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1M.EEME 2

FREXREBTARBTRARK ZBE - IR

A EREE 2 S SR EFERTTREERMIRG
2 -
RBE-T—=Ft+t-"A=t—"BLFEREH

EE—_F+A=T—HIEFE UEE
ENEEMAME -

?i%ﬁ REEANRRIEAN D Z AR
2EMBRRIWEENE - Z A AlRAEER
ﬁ%ﬁ%% WRAEERZEES R HAI
HEARARBEEZEREAE KB TATRRERE
WENER  ZERAEBEEWNT47@FFTEEZ
EEEF o

tﬁzﬁé@%mﬁ%@}\/%#$%l$ﬁk
it 2 R EETE - PHRELEMESE -
%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁmﬂmmwﬁd_;*_i-
7,921,000/ 7T) @ WE BFEE LKA -

NR.EEREREEASHE
EEHE
AEERSSHMEALBENG (=2 —=

FOMD)AEEEERTHAER  EMeC
BRERE@EMENS AU (ZFT—=
Fi—fD)ALTZBEMT

11.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei performs the function of the chief executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31st
December, 2013 and 31st December, 2012.

Certain Directors received remuneration from a company, or a wholly
owned subsidiary of such company which has significant beneficial
interests in the Company. Such company provided management
services to the Group and charged the Group a fee, which has been
included in management fee as disclosed in note 47(a), for services
provided by those Directors as well as other management personnel
who were not Directors and staff of the Company.

The above-mentioned management fee is calculated by reference to
the time devoted by the management personnel on the affairs of the
Group and can be apportioned to the Directors mentioned above. The
total of such apportioned amounts, which has been included in the
above table, is HK$10,595,000 (2012: HK$7,921,000).

12.EMPLOYEES” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Employee’s emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,

four (2012: four) were Directors and the chief executive of the Group
whose emoluments are included in note 11 above. The emoluments

of the remaining one (2012: one) individual were as follows:

2013 2012

FET FHT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fre REAER Salaries and other benefits 2,324 2,220
BB RR Performance related incentive

_e payments 1,507 1,688

RIKEFIETE Retirement benefits scheme
3 contributions 107 111
3,938 4,019
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12.EERSREEAEME 2
EEME (&)
HMe 2z oM :

3,500,001/87C — 4,000,000/% 7T
4,000,001 7T — 4,500,000/ 7T

12.EMPLOYEES” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Employee’s emoluments (continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2013 2012

EEHE EEZE

Number of Number of

employees employees

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - 1

AEE 2 HINBRIRIRITH S MK &% 48
FASE AR MEREE CKRBEE - NEamF
A AEEYESMEMNE TR ARRSH
ZATERBBRE MAREE 2 FRE -

BEREEAEMS
AEBZSRERAR B+ =fu(=
——F: O RESE TBZﬁZ@*I%E FJE
RAEZHE BE_T—=F+=_A=*+—
BILFE - HBROA(ZF——F : W) AL
ZBEmT

The remuneration policies of the Group are based on the prevailing
remuneration level in the market and the performance of respective
group companies and individual employees. During both years,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group.

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the senior management of the Group, thirteen (2012: fourteen)
were the Directors whose emoluments are included in the disclosure
above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2012: four) for the year
ended 31st December, 2013 were as follows:

2013 2012

FHET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fre RE AR Salaries and other benefits 3,793 3,745
HEERE Performance related incentive

®2e payments 3,726 5,142

RRIEFETE Retirement benefits scheme
T contributions 224 217
7,743 9,104
HEWE 2 oHmaT - Their emoluments were within the following bands:

1,000,000/ 7T A~

1,000,001 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,0017%7T — 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001/ 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001 7T — 5,000,000 7T

2013
EEHA

2012
EEZE
Number of
employees

Number of
employees

HK$1,000,000 or below

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000

| N = =
_\AI_\_\

BAEKEZBENRAFRIEZERS
ABZAANER | —EiREE -

m}i %E

RE
#

5 it
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The biographies of members of the senior management are disclosed
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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13. Bl &R

ZIN/N THx%ﬁfﬁzﬂtﬂxgzli%%'JB&T?IJ%(TF
AHE

87

R B ER
apl il
(ARBREN
REEEH)

13.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following:

2013
FE&x

2012
THAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Earnings

Earnings for the purpose of basic
earnings per share (profit for
the year attributable to owners
of the Company)

337,564 401,403

BRE Number of shares
FLAGHE S Number of ordinary shares
HEARERN 2 in issue during the year for
REREET the purpose of basic earnings
LimixE per share 1,506,769 1,506,769
HEZT—=FK=-F——F+=A=+—H No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the years

ﬁigvﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂé%%ﬁéﬂ'ﬁﬁ%@
E_E—=FR-FE—-—F+-_HA=+—81t
FERNWLEETEIIBEL B -

14. B2

RERRNERD K Z
KB
EN - —FZREERSA
Fhx4i81 IJJ(fg—:E

ended 31st December, 2013 and 2012 as there were no outstanding
potential ordinary shares during the years ended 31st December,
2013 and 2012.

14.DIVIDEND

2013
FTEx

2012
TAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Dividend recognised as
distributions during the year:
Final dividend for 2012 paid of

HK4 cents (2012: for 2011

BN ZE——F 2 GRk4B) paid of HK4 cents) per share 60,271 60,271
EEARHRER Final dividend proposed of

o581l HK6.5 cents (2012: HK4

(Z=—=F : gkaB1l) cents) per share 97,940 60,271

EXZgRRRBEBE_T—=Ft_A=1—

HIEMBFREZ RS ER65EII(=F
— % BRAEN) - EREIRESAFRRR

ARRANFRITZBRBFAREG LHE -
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The final dividend of HK6.5 cents (2012: HK4 cents) per share in
respect of the financial year ended 31st December, 2013 has been
proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
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15. Y% - MERFE 15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
EHEZ
HERH ERE R B
THREF FEENZ RER KM
landand SEXHSE Leasehold
buildings  Golf course improvements,
inthe PRC  in the PRC HBIE BERKE furniture, RE
on medium-  on medium-  Construction Plantand fixtures and Motor
termlease  termlease  inprogress  machinery  equipment vehicles
T TEx
K§’ HK$'000
50 THE GROUP
KAE CosT
RZE-—§6-A-A At 1st January, 2012 397,136 202,719 1,000 211,324 104,240 48,642 965,061
[EHFRE Exchange adjustments 27) - - - 4 (78) (109)
BE Additions 32,222 - 103,765 2,398 17,819 1,261 157,465
BREERT Transfer from inventories of
NEGE completed properties 38,727 - - - - - 38,727
BHNE Reclassification 1,882 - (2,633) 751 - - -
NERBELE Reclassified from assets held for sale - - - - 3,470 1,492 4,962
HE R Disposals and write-off (265) (948) - - (1,373) (1,838) (4,424)
AZZ—ZF+ZA=+-H  At31st December, 2012 469,675 201,771 102,132 214,473 124,152 49479 1,161,682
A% Exchange adjustments 11,705 5,483 2,586 5,464 1,623 1,073 27,934
BE Additions 1,505 - 74,999 1,544 9,033 8,206 95,287
EREADRT Transfer from inventories of
NEGE completed properties 10,337 - - - 9,092 - 19,429
EEiprd Reclassification 3,097 114,181 (122,699) 453 4,970 2) -
HE R Disposals and write-off (14) - - (5,663) (1,690) (8,581) (15,948)
R=F-=F+=A=+-H At 31st December, 2013 496,305 321,435 57,018 216,271 147,180 50,175 1,288,384
ik DEPRECIATION
RZE-ZF—-f—H At st January, 2012 25,6833 38,413 - 21,197 53,648 26,055 165,146
[EHFERE Exchange adjustments 27) - - - (13) (115) (155)
REFEGE Provided for the year 11,922 5,557 - 11,737 12,898 6,581 48,695
NERBELE Reclassified from assets held for sale - - - - 2,450 859 3,309
REE LG Eliminated on disposals and write-off - - - - (1,230) (1,838) (3,068)
WZZ-—F+-A=1+—H  At31st December, 2012 37,728 43,970 - 32,934 67,753 31,542 213,927
[EHFER Exchange adjustments 954 1,488 - 841 778 624 4,685
REE:E Provided for the year 12,859 5,699 - 12,195 15,723 6,457 52,933
EXib] Reclassification - - - - (53) 53 -
REE LG Eliminated on disposals and write-off ) - - - (1,515) (7,279) (8,796)
RZE-ZF+=A=+-H At 31st December, 2013 51,539 51,157 - 45,970 82,686 31,397 262,749
AR CARRYING VALUES
RZE-=F+-A=1+-H  At31st December, 2013 444,766 270,278 57,018 170,301 64,494 18,778 1,025,635
WZE—_F+-A=1T—H At31st December, 2012 431,947 157,801 102,132 181,539 56,399 17,937 947,755
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15. 9% - MERZEZ) 15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
&E - &M
RERFRE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture, AE
fixtures and Motor st

equipment vehicles Total
FTET FTET TEL
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

RAF] THE COMPANY

BRAME COST

R_E——F—H—H At Tst January, 2012 34,642 9,156 43,798
BE Additions 2,472 287 2,759
HE R Disposals and write-off (125) (333) (458)
NZZE——F+-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2012 36,989 9,110 46,099
P 1 R Exchange adjustments 937 236 1,173
BE Additions 1,378 1,072 2,450
HE Kt el Disposals and write-off 1) (577) (598)
RN-E—=F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2013 39,283 9,841 49,124
e DEPRECIATION

RZE—_F—H—H At Tst January, 2012 17,932 6,728 24,660
REZFHE Provided for the year 475 1,005 1,480
P& Rt SRR Eliminated on disposals and write-off (125) (332) (457)
WZZ——F#+-A=+—8H At 31st December, 2012 18,282 7,401 25,683
BEE S92 Exchange adjustments 465 187 652
KEEETIR Provided for the year 532 1,059 1,591
P E KT iR Eliminated on disposals and write-off (18) (577) (595)
NZE—=%+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2013 19,261 8,070 27,331
BREE CARRYING VALUES

R-B—-=F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2013 20,022 1,771 21,793
R-ZE—-——FE+-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2012 18,707 1,709 20,416
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16. REW= 16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AEE
THE GROUP
2013 2012
FEx FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
DNREE FAIR VALUE
n—H—H At 1st January 8,020,410 6,615,050
BEE 5, S B Exchange adjustments 205,949
BE Additions 20,909 123,171
WERIMERS Transferred from inventories of
BA completed properties 83,436 16,401
EREERPYE Transferred to inventories of
Ay properties under development - (11,281)
SE(R)BEFE Reclassified (to) from assets held
BE for sale (169,000) 741,000
& Disposals (11,469) (17,382)
2B T Fair value gain on transfer of
TF e inventories of completed
EREMEZ properties to investment
N BEERE properties 98,079 37,734
WRNER AREE Increase in fair value recognised
0 in profit or loss 381,092 515,717
Nt+=—A=+—8H At 31st December 8,629,406 8,020,410
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16. REMZE (&)

AEEZREMER E%QEESI%;&@ Z
B —F—=F+_A=+—HE=F
FH-_A=t—RAZAAREBEDIHERKEE
ERRRNBY BXT G — ERERFEE
RARNE BETHE - ERERFEERA
AEERENER - ZMETBENKREL
FARTTHERBERNEERREAES - 5t
BRIZEMYEME @ BEDZE—EYEE
B —REHGERAR2EERLEE - ERR
EEMSHESNME - MUEERIVERFE
BREREVMEZIDEMNE - BEDEREE
DL - FIABREERKBE IREMEN
EESRBREELIZZFYEARIE R
BN RMAB LR TEE - 5 MK AR
REEERAMGH  URRERIHEIRA
MWEE - EFEEMAGEINALEES -

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at the date of
transfer from inventories of completed properties, 31st December,
2013 and 31st December, 2012 have been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by Norton Appraisals Limited, a
firm of independent and qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. The valuation was principally based on investment
method by taking into account the current rents passing and the
reversionary income potential of tenancies. For the properties which
are currently vacant, the valuation was based on each of the property
interests by capitalisation of the hypothetical and reasonable market
rents with a typical lease term and also make reference to the direct
comparison approach. For the properties which were transferred from
inventories of completed properties to investment properties, the
valuation was based on direct comparison approach. The valuations
of investment properties held for undetermined future use were
arrived at the adoption of the residual approach with the basis that
they will be developed and completed in accordance with the latest
development proposals and taken into account the constructions cost
that will extent to complete the development to reflect the quality
of the completed development. There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in the prior year.

WMEETIEN DA ETEE% CMENZRSRRE  In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
RiERHEZRARE of the properties is their current use.
FiEREYEMPRTRE - WHEBLHHI  Investment properties are all located in the PRC and comprise
T~ properties held under:
EH
THE GROUP
2013 2012
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RHAEA Long lease 4,301,800 3,971,700
FRERFE 40 Medium-term lease 3,558,406 3,302,210
kG HATA A Short lease 769,200 746,500
8,629,406 8,020,410
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16. REM=E (4#)

TERREHEBRBEALBETENHAZEN
AEEREENMETE AREDENAALEBE

(RRI—FERNGBETERZ2E) - RARE
B EME DN AL EBERFIKF(—E=4&)
HVERY

value measurements is observable.

rEEFREFR HERER
REME DMREE FEZEH
Investment # 5l Valuation

Properties held Fair value techniques

by the Group hierarchy and key inputs
(VRS k/E S F=& REEERESRZE)
Properties in Level 3 Investment method

Southern China (term and reversionary

approach)

TEZHAE

(1) FHEAMEE %

2) EHEREE R

3) fE Rl B LLE T 5
vz

The key inputs are:
(1) Term yield;

(2) Reversionary
yield; and

(3) Market unit rent

of individual
unit

%% Annual Report 2013

EETVEEZSH
Significant
observable
inputs

AT AR B LB R E £ R Mas K Bk
PATHEOR B U B AR B A B0 B E 1 O 78
B HHBE R R4.5%56.25%

Term yield, taking into account of
yield generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect
the certainty of term income secured
and to be received, of 4.5% to 6.25%

REtABLTISFEESWARAIEL
BYENENTE  EEREEAE%
£6.75%

Reversionary yield, taking into
account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of
the comparable properties, of 5% to

6.75%

miZEAHS L ERERTISEUE - X
Z«E_I_A{lﬁ&/ﬁ;/ﬁﬂ .%‘J.?(W‘JQD i
HER  MEXDERE) o FETS
BUBEENFHNEFHIREAARY
28LEFFHIREAARE 64T
Market unit rent compares with
direct market comparables and
taking into account of location and
other individual factors such as
road frontage, size of property and
facilities. The range of average market
unit rent is from around RMB28
sg.m./month to RMB164 sq.m/month

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the major investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

BEEEZHH
DNABENER
Relationship of
unobservable

inputs for

fair value

A HR g o =i
AV F@tﬁ

The increase in the
term yield would
result in a decrease
in fair value

AR TR -
D EEHAE

The increase in the
reversionary yield
would result in a
decrease in fair
value

MIZEHSHR
NRBEES

The increase in the
market unit rent
would result in
an increase in fair
value

161



e MBERRMWE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=Ft-A=t—RHLLFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

16. REMZE (&)
rEERER
REME DMREE
Investment A5l
Properties held Fair value
by the Group hierarchy
RNERZME  F=R
Properties in Level 3

Eastern China

162

fl

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

BEIER

EX-L 3 1

Valuation

techniques
d key inputs

an

i34

(FHHIER

%

&)

Investment method

(term and reversionary

approach)

FTEL2H A

(1) THHAGG =

Q) ERkEE R

(3) 1R B At i
B

The key inputs are:

(1) Term yield;

(2) Reversionary

3)

yield; and

Market unit rent
of individual
unit

EETEHEZY
Significant
observable
inputs

REEH AR B LB B A r M an I [ R
PTPEOR B i W ER AR HR W A O BEEE 14 F 3
B HEWEER3.5%E6.25%

Term yield, taking into account of
yield generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect
the certainty of term income secured
and to be received, of 3.5% to 6.25%

KA ABLMISFERAS WA RAEL
BMENEMTE  BEHREREER4%
26.75%

Reversionary yield, taking into
account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of
the comparable properties, of 4% to

6.75%

MBS BREETSRANUE - I
Z<<<uWKuE&E{‘MIE‘Jlﬁ(WUZZD i
B - MEKXNDNERME) - FHHS
BUEENFOEFTASAARE
Q1TLEFFITREAARE2257T
Market unit rent compares with
direct market comparables and
taking into account of location and
other individual factors such as
road frontage, size of property and
facilities. The range of average market
unit rent is from around RMB21
sg.m./month to RMB225 sq.m/month

ELEESHHE
'& AEENER
Relationship of
unobservable
inputs for
fair value

HEkERES
DA EEBE

The increase in the
term yield would
result in a decrease
in fair value

CETEEI IR
A BIEHIE

The increase in the
reversionary yield
would result in a
decrease in fair
value

BEMESHES -
7

EBESR

i}
UN

The increase in the
market unit rent
would result in
an increase in fair
value
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16. REYE(#)
rEEFAFR EERER
REWH RAEE FEZH
Investment # 7 Valuation
Properties held Fair value techniques
by the Group hierarchy and key inputs
URELZYE  F=H REE
Properties in Level 3 (THER1EER %)

Northern China
Investment method
(term and reversionary
approach)

The key inputs are:
(1) Term yield;

(2) Reversionary

yield; and
(3) Market unit rent

of individual
unit

%% Annual Report 2013

EETVEEZSH
Significant
observable
inputs

A AR B LB R E R Mas K [ iR
PRTHEOR Ko i W ER AR HR W A O BEEE 14 H 3
B RS ER3%E6.75%

Term yield, taking into account of
yield generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect
the certainty of term income secured
and to be received, of 3% to 6.75%

RAANBUMSFERHEBRARAE
HEBEMENEMTE  BERREES
3.5%%27.25%

Reversionary yield, taking into
account annual unit market rental
income and unit market value of the
comparable properties, of 3.5% to

7.25%

mSEUHES L BREETSRNUE - I
NJAUE&%MM%I%WMDEH
B - MEXNDNEM) » FHHS
BUEENFOEFHAEAARYE
18TLEFF I AREAARE1077T
Market unit rent compares with
direct market comparables and
taking into account of location and
other individual factors such as
road frontage, size of property and
facilities. The range of average market
unit rent is from around RMB18
sg.m./month to RMB107 sq.m/month

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

373 kS T
AREENRR
Relationship of
unobservable

inputs for

fair value

HEkERER
NAEEBE -

The increase in the
term yield would
result in a decrease
in fair value.

AR EAE -
D BIERIE

The increase in the
reversionary yield
would result in a
decrease in fair
value

MIZEESHS
NRBEES

The increase in the
market unit rent
would result in
an increase in fair
value
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16. R EWE =) 16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
BELERSHHE
rEEREFR EERER ’& REENBER
REY* AAEE FEZH EETBEZH Relationship of
Investment # 7 Valuation Significant unobservable
Properties held Fair value techniques observable inputs for
by the Group hierarchy and key inputs inputs fair value
fIRBNAKKTH F=& BREX EREEMSLBAL A ALEREM TIHEMHE XY
RIAE Level 3 Residual approach BERNEAZRNTSEMFEEXENFEF & AnEBEYS-

Development site

in Huizhou e O K 9,2007C
Danshui City Market unit sales rate, using market The increase in the
(1) ™WH E M E direct comparable and taking into market unit sales
x5 & account of location and other rate would result
individual factors from RMB6,200/ in a increase in
) EEEAEFE  sq.m. to RMB9,200/sq.m fair value
[\ B
ERERNLERX(EPEFRY BEREHEN &E
The key inputs are: FHHEE ) R20% e < ) 38 N 7 B B
Developer’s profit and risk rate, ’Afﬁf B -
(1) Market unit sales  taking into account of the progress of The increase in
rate; and the property, of 20% the developer’s
profit and risk rate
(2) Developer’s profit would result in a
and risk rate decrease in fair
value
164 AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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BE—ZT =—F+t-A=1T"HLFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

FRRWE 17.PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT
REE
THE GROUP
2013 2012
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
RPBEZWE PROPERTIES IN THE PRC,
REAME AT COST
R—A— B2 &% Balance at 1st January 7,409,627 5,103,075
FE R Exchange adjustments 133,083 -
BE Additions 258,892 2,656,247
EBESERTME Transferred to inventories of
FE properties under development (799,057) (212,773)
WEBIVMEFE Transferred from inventories of
BA completed properties 2,297 -
R Write-off = (136,922)
R+ZA=+—B2#&#% Balance at 31st December 7,004,842 7,409,627
B RRE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
R—A—BZ &k Balance at 1st January 395,304 434,298
PE & Exchange adjustments 6,678 -
IR E Amortisation for the year 112,740 102,968
EREERPE Transferred to inventories of
FE properties under development (22,416) (5,040)
AR SE RS Eliminated on write-off = (136,922)
R+ A=+—Hz&8 Balance at 31st December 492,306 395,304
REE CARRYING VALUES 6,512,536 7,014,323
REEFERYIZE The Group’s properties for
B development comprise:
Rz BETH Leasehold land in the PRC
RHIFAD Long lease 1,990,007 2,432,883
FRERZR Y Medium-term lease 4,522,529 4,581,440

6,512,536 7,014,323
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SRRWE#)

RUARTFE  EEHEFREDEETEEAR
BE—REERVEARFEMEER L
HFAERELERMBME - At - BEEIE
136,922,000 7T 2 R AT £ E W HER o A&
ZE_T——_F+-A=+—HIFE  BZY
F R TR EE AT - AT AR S AEE 3 ER
HRZYIE B AR RS o

A EEE B SRR E IR R TER
T BIEEBTRETE - TREFEIR
BR-E—=4+-A=t+—BNBIIER
B -

18. L ibfE A 2 N HEERK

17.PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

In prior years, the Directors conducted a review of the properties for
development and determined that a piece of property for development
was impaired, due to demolition problem that made severe delay in
the development progress of the land site. Accordingly, impairment
losses of HK$136,922,000 have been recognised in prior years.
During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the land certificate of
the property has been cancelled as the land return to local authority
and the property has been written off accordingly.

The management of the Group had carried out impairment assessment
on the properties for development based on the lower of cost and net
realisable value for properties for development. The net realisable
values were determined based on independent professional valuations
at 31st December, 2013.

18.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE RIGHTS

AEH
THE GROUP

2013
Tz
HK$’000

2012
TAT
HK$’000

REB LIEREL The Group’s prepaid lease
TERTEE R payments on land use rights
B comprise:
NGRLC = b Leasehold land in the PRC
RHEAFEAY Long lease 39,700 40,395
FRERFR 49 Medium-term lease 69,953 69,976
109,653 110,371
MImEMIEL 2 Analysed for reporting
DT purposes as:
ERBNEE Non-current asset 106,848 107,626
MENVEE Current asset 2,805 2,745
109,653 110,371
166 AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited



e MB®RWME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZT=F+-A=+—HLEFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

19. A B QB 2w K B QTR

19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE
FROM SUBSIDIARIES

ARAT
THE COMPANY

2013
Tz
HK$’000

2012
TAT
HK$’'000

FEEMIRE MR Unlisted investments and capital
A contribution 5,069,464 4,733,330
J& - BEIRIE Less: accumulated impairment (132,124) (129,546)
4,937,340 4,603,784

B ARIRFEEERR  RERREERTE
B -RZEBE—=F+-A=+—H RFBET
SRBEPRRE T @A RNEE - FIAZEE
P AIERE R EGHEFEA2.91% o

FEMBRANR-_Z—=F+_A=+—HB2
BRI EF R I FES0 ©

20. REHE QB 2

RIELEMBERENREZ

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. As at 31st December, 2013, the amounts are
not expected to be repaid within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. The balances are therefore shown as non-current
and carried at imputed interest rate of 2.91%.

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December, 2013 are set
out in note 50.

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

A
THE GROUP

2013
Tz
HK$’000

2012
TR
HK$’000

Cost of investment in unlisted

RRAN (T 77) associates (Note) 7,203 7,203
FEML W iE 1R 2 Share of post-acquisition
B R EA profits and losses and
2 H R other comprehensive income,
B S net of dividends received 1,873 68
9,076 7271

Mt REERRIRE Z KA BIER B FE K EE
BARIFTEA Z 846,000 (=T ——4F :
46,0007 7T) °

%% Annual Report 2013

Note: Included in the cost of investment in associates is goodwill of HK$46,000

(2012: HK$46,000) arising on acquisitions of associates in prior years.
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or the year ende st December,

20. REFE AR 2R () 20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
ERIFEERN 2B & AR 2 ERE R Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:
2013 2012
THET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AEB RN 2 aF () The Group’s share of profit (loss) 14,346 61)
REEEGZEMEE The Group’s share of other
Weas comprehensive income = -
REEEGZ The Group’s share of total
FHEKE comprehensive income
(BA)#5 (expense) 14,346 61)
21 RAE LS 21.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
AEE
THE GROUP
2013 2012
THET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
RIEETEEEEREZ Cost of investment in unlisted
PR (Hfata) joint ventures (Note a) 755,961 747,319
FEML g R 2 Share of post-acquisition profits
ot F) B B A and other comprehensive
2 E R income, net of dividends
BUA B received 724,703 492,019
BERERN Amounts due from joint ventures
(Hratb) (Note b) 38,607 38,607
JBl - REREE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (38,607) (38,607)

1,480,664 1,239,338
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21.NEEEIER (2

21.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

PN
THE COMPANY

2013 2012

TAT
HK$’000

TR
HK$’000

Cost of investment in unlisted

joint ventures 11,182 10,906

BARCEN-F-=ER-F-—F1=
A=+— B2 AREERHES -

HiEt

@) RAEBLERBEZAABERBEFERBELZ
D EESZEE409,0008 (=T ——F :
409,000 7T) ©

(b) A%@%Hﬁ?\ RB|BEHRER T+ —EAREER
CBEEERB R - R EAEEARREER

E
N

TXHEAARAREERSELETAMNM
BEMHE - TAMBERR R SRR EY
BREEMRHENEGLZLEMBRRATE
B o

ES

t:l

BRDZANZEFEMBRERA

o)
o DﬂP;
>

E
REBHH (KE)BRAA

REELEZPBRENHRE

Details of the principal joint ventures at 31st December, 2013 and
2012 are set out in note 51.

Notes:

(@) Included in the cost of investment of joint ventures is goodwill of HK$409,000
(2012: HK$409,000) arising on acquisitions of joint ventures in prior years.

(b) The joint ventures are not expected to repay the advances within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period and the balances are classified as
non-current. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

REHTHH(EE)BRLF

2013 2012

FHET FiET

HK$’000 HK$’000

MENEE Current assets 9,767,765 6,738,120

EmENEE Non-current assets 5,620,149 5,152,502
=Y Current liabilities (6,796,307) (6,272,307)
EmEBBE Non-current liabilities (6,229,679) (3,824,906)
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21.NEE X IER (2 21.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
REZEEH (KE)ERAT (&) REZEIEH (KB BRAT (continued)
iz EERAESHEBSENNER - The above amounts of assets and liabilities included the following:
2013 2012
THExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ReMREEEIER Cash and cash equivalents 1,627,118 1,574,325
ikl =N Current financial liabilities
(T"BREEHR (excluding trade and
H At E T BR XD other payables) (1,961,980) (2,250,594)
FnEEemaE Non-current financial liabilities
(T"BREEHR (excluding trade and
R BRFR) other payables) (5,622,603) (3,257,996)
WA Revenue 3,402,550 3,443,592
REE R Profit for the year 766,074 856,806
REFZEMEE Other comprehensive income
e for the year 55,905 71,526
REFE 2 EWER Total comprehensive income
R for the year 821,979 928,332
RAFE R B KL G Dividends received from
(RE)BRAF] KLY (LE)BR AR
B B ER IR 2 during the year 186,065 202,468
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21. REEEER #) 21.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
ALZYBH(EE)BRAT (&) RZHIEH (KB)BR AT (continued)
EARFERABIEATIER ¢ The above profit for the year included the following:
2013 2012
THExT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Yree K # g Depreciation and amortisation 58,484 49,912
FLEMA Interest income 12,536 29,465
MEER Interest expense 106,159 76,900
Frisfi s Income tax expense 621,969 1,022,324

BB R E A SR~  Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to
LEIE (=E) AR A TS0 B E B8R ¢ the carrying amount of the interest in X 2 81153, (£ @ ) AR A 7

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2013 2012
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
KB (EB)BRAFM Net assets of KZEEH (£E)

BEFE BRAR 2,361,928 1,793,409
JR: FEVERR R Less: Non-controlling interests (65,386) (45,081)
AL BEH (B BERAF 2 Shareholder’s equity of

PR pE REZHHEH(LE)BR QA 2,296,542 1,748,328
AEBRRLZEH (£E) Proportion of the Group's

BIRARI50%8) B R 2 ownership interest of 50% in

kv R BUSH (KB ) BR QA 1,148,271 874,164
JEIERRIEZ RS2 Share of unrealised profit on

KEIR & inter-company transactions (4,380) (4,380)
RFREERZEE Gain on disposal of subsidiary

—RIE AR 2 W recognised in sub-consolidation (902) (902)
REB R KL TN Carrying amount of the

(RE)BRATRZ Group's interest in

a2 BRE SR RLBIER (RE)BRAF] 1,142,989 868,882
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21. REERE I EREF) 21.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
FIREZBRERERRERAA RINRZREREERERAE
2013 2012
TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
mBEE Current assets 1,559,804 646,667
SEMENEE Non-current assets 5,881 2,571
M UN=NE Current liabilities (5,065) (9,299)
EmEaE Non-current liabilities (946,298) -
M EENBESREEATIEAR The above amounts of assets and liabilities included the following:
2013 2012
TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ReMReEEEAR Cash and cash equivalents 153,420 102,436
mETHas Current financial liabilities
(T"BREFHR (excluding trade and
EHAb ETBRTR) other payables) (12) -
ERBEREE Non-current financial liabilities
(T"BREHR (excluding trade and
H A FERHERFR) other payables) (946,298) -
L ON Revenue 643 -
REEEE Loss for the year (50,679) (18,356)
RERZ B EE Other comprehensive income
Was for the year 16,420 -
RFE2EW R Total comprehensive expense
Haza for the year (34,259) (18,356)
RAFRE KRB IRYIRLHEE Dividends received from
REZRBR AT RYNRLEEREERARAF]
EUER R during the year - -
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21. REERE I EE ) 21.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
FRYRLZERERERRER AT (#) FRYNRLERERERREMRAR (continued)
ERAFE RN BREATIEE The above profit for the year included the following:
2013 2012
THET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
PTE R Depreciation and amortisation 1,829 274
SN N Interest income 3,156 630
MEER Interest expense 24,160 5
EET e Income tax credit 251 -

B E R R BT S BRI AR T #ERAIR Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
AYRLZERBEEERARAAZEAENMRE  carrying amount of the interest in I KRHELIREHRER AT

B : recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
2013 2012
THERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RYRLRFEREER Net assets of RIIKRLEEHEIKRE
BRARIMEEFE BRERAA 614,322 639,939
REBUARINR LR EREER Proportion of the Group's
BIRAFS0%HIHEB EE R 2 ownership interest of 50% in
BBt RYNRLERIREERBRAT] 307,161 319,970
BAFAREEZ Exchange differences arising on
MEHZ capital injection (402) (402)
AEAZIRA Share capital not yet injected - (4,321)
EIERRIAZR S 2 Share of unrealised profit on
AREBHEN inter-company transactions 133 -
REBRARINRLEERE Carrying amount of the Group's
ERARDA 2@ interest in R KL BE £ E
IRE®E ERARAA 306,892 315,247
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1. AEEDERER(2)

ERIFFEA B ERRZERER

21.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not individually

material:

2013 2012

FHT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

REE (L 2 EE The Group’s share of loss (19,725) (30,544)
REEEGZ The Group’s share of other

Hith 2 AW comprehensive income 1,181 552
REEREGZ The Group’s share of total

FEEREE comprehensive expense (18,544) (29,992)

22. A HERE 22.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

TEE
THE GROUP

2013
TR
HK$’000

2012
THAT
HK$’'000

REBAIN ETHZ Equity securities listed outside
IR A B Hong Kong 26,178 16,650
FE F AR ARE Unlisted equity securities 165,083 84,360
FELMRAES Unlisted equity funds 28,211 29,818
219,472 130,828

BA%T/%LM\\iﬁzﬁtmzﬂx$ S5 ARAEER
c REREBEZDABEDRBEAEBEIZAHM
iﬁZﬁi‘%%ﬁ)\iﬁ%‘i%E g

#Lmk$ SRR B RERABIAINK I

RAPTRITZIFLMBAEZZRE - ML
MIRAESHENEBR LN LTRAES Z
RE o FFEMBRARFTIRRABER }s 2
RZBEERE  HAE AR BEMGRZ
BERK  RAKRERRLSEESFLIAAEER
TREAISEMDETE ©
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Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong are stated at fair value
which is determined based on the quoted market bid price available
on the relevant exchanges.

Unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by the entities established in the PRC and outside
Hong Kong and unlisted equity fund represent investments in unlisted
equity fund established in Hong Kong. Unlisted equity securities
are stated at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.
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22. A ERE (#)

FLTRAREEAREPR 2 AABEFE -
RIFERZ W% - ANEE A 3 H —EA D790
B TR E B O R A 2SR R A K8
NEEREBREN - FETRAESZAR
BERERRERERREH

23. BERBERERH

SUREREME @ BERSEE—EBLES
fﬁ%ELL(TFiiEA“MJ) H @i —ER
MEERDIMBRR - R-FE—=F+—
A=+— EIZP%%?EEETE DECE TFIEBAL

MEER

22.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Unlisted equity funds are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Based on the relevant agreements, the Group can
require the relevant investment manager to redeem the units at net
asset value by giving a written redemption notice not less than 90
business days. The fair value of the unlisted equity funds are provided
by the relevant investment managers.

23.GOODWILL AND IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON
GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit (“CGU”), including a subsidiary in
property development segment. The carrying amount of goodwill as
at 31st December, 2013 allocated is as follows:

EN 3L
THE GROUP

2013
TET
HK$’000

2012
THAT
HK$’'000

Property development 640 640

REBE_T—=Ft+_A=t—HLFERN-
AEEEEERER B CELR S BUY
RELEREZIER °

24 Y¥EFE

AEBZMEGFEMRTRH - FIEWETFE
B AR A B FECREESIRE - REE
342,636,00078 70 ( —ZF — —4F : 626,811,000
BIL)ZERPYERFT I ERERR+=
&l B AE3R -

AEBEREHYEFED RNA R AR F
TEZFEE%EFMMEME o A EEFETIRE
R-E—=F+_A=+t—"BHBYEXME

MEE °
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During the year ended 31st December, 2013, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment of its CGU that contains
goodwill.

24.INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES

The Group’s inventories of properties are situated in the PRC. All of
the inventories of properties are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Properties under development with carrying amount
of HK$342,636,000 (2012: HK$626,811,000) are expected not to be
realised within twelve months from the end of the reporting date.

The management of the Group had carried out impairment assessment
on the inventories of properties based on the lower of cost and net
realisable value for inventories of properties. The net realisable values
were determined based on independent professional valuations at
31st December, 2013.
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25.0THER INVENTORIES

AEE

THE GROUP
2013 2012
FTHET THETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
JR# Raw materials 38,844 36,036
& m Work in progress 187 304
IR Finished goods 27,607 39,251
66,638 75,591

26. BEE AT 26.AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

BERRRRRERR  2EMREERTE

BELCERARELN RERNEERTE

ERERPRFARBERRR T =
Yem e

28. FFERBRER R

& A AR

IR R R KR E R

i

8E -

29. EIRE K

RERREERT

RZZE—=F+"A=+—H BREXK
341,007,000/ 7L( =ZZF — = 4F : 55,358,000/
TC) A E RIRERIFIERER « FRENT
8%E20%(ZF——F : NT18%=E20%) °
B’\_:i'i mE+—AE-"FT—HF/N\AEE

——F RN ET-—=F—FH=+—HE
i%) % BR M 1B 322,257,000 0 ( =& — =
FB)WOBARIERDEUERTINR-Z
—hAFRAZEN\AEEREEFNENT8%E
12% o
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Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.
27.AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES

Amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The management expects the amounts would be recoverable within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

28.AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

29.LOANS RECEIVABLE

At 31st December, 2013, loans receivable of HK$341,007,000 (2012:
HK$55,358,000) bear interests ranging from 8% to 20% (2012:
ranging from 18% to 20%) per annum, are secured by properties and
shares mortgage and repayable between November 2014 to August
2015 (2012: repayable between January to November 2013). The
carrying amount of HK$322,257,000 (2012: Nil) is classified as non-
current loans receivable and is repayable between May to August
2015 and carries a fixed interest rate ranging from 8% to 12% per
annum.
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29. EWWE R (&)

R-E—Z=ZF+_A=+—H BERER
5,500,000/8 70( =& ——4F :93,525,000/% L)
AR E B IER - AR A/BRBRITRZE
FEMNA%(ZF—=F : FHRITEEFRLEM
4%) M-E—NF-_AEBR(CE——F R
:g—zi—ﬂﬁkﬁ)

REBE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HILFEE -
REBEI M — D EEHENRE —EEE
Eh AR 45 A AR 250000007 (HE
M31,646,000/ 8 L) (T ——F : ARK
25,000,000 7T (48 & 730,864,000/ 7T ) ) i LA
AREFHEZ B - Ziartar 3 URIREEE
IR o X BRME(E34,208,0008 L (—F——
£ : 33,068,000/ 7T ) ‘*EZ%MLEJJJEHSZT%
(ZZE——F : FERPEUEFTOITN =T —
F+— Hi;d::%ﬁ%ﬁ@ia;a&,\ﬁ%\Z‘IJ,%\Z%tﬁ
11.16% °

30.ESREMEBUER  BEER
AR

th &S Y5 77 T ) B WK IR R TR
HRIEBE -

B & ik HO R K

R T SHEMRRBRRAMFHENES A
RRAEHZEOGAZN  ARE—RETE
F=1tHZ—F0ERRY -

- BH R BRIk DT 20T

29.LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

At 31st December, 2013, loans receivable of HK$5,500,000 (2012:
HK$93,525,000) bear interests at Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
plus 4% (2012: Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 4%) per
annum, are secured by share mortgage and repayable in February
2014 (2012: repayable in February 2013).

At 31st December, 2013, the Group has a trust loan represented
units that were denominated in RMB with an aggregate principal
amount of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$31,646,000) (2012:
RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$30,864,000)) in a trust scheme.
The trust scheme is secured by pledged assets. The carrying amount of
HK$34,208,000 (2012: HK$33,068,000) is classified as current (2012:
non-current) loans receivable and is repayable in November 2014 at
par by the trust and carries effective interest of 11.16% per annum.

30.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

Proceeds receivable in respect of sale of properties are settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the sale and purchase
agreements.

Except for the proceeds from sales of properties and rental income from
lease of properties which are payable in accordance with the terms of
the relevant agreements, the Group generally allows a credit period of 30
days to 1 year to its customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables at the end
of the reporting period:

REH

THE GROUP
2013 2012
FExT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
=REAR Within 3 months 283,933 167,107
EWNEE Between 4 and 6 months 57,296 58,319
+tE=+ @A Between 7 and 12 months 10,671 25,791
BiEt+—EA Over 12 months 6,127 3,509
358,027 254,726

R-TF—=F+-A=1t—8  ERKER

BIE—T896,886,0008 L ( —F——4F : £))
BERESNRE=Z T WBHEE Z2WE - %
RS RIREIRE AT ©
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As at 31st December, 2013, other receivables included a deposit of
HK$96,886,000 (2012: Nil) which was paid for acquisition of properties
held for sale from a third party and the transaction has not yet completed
at the end of the reporting period.
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JI.EEEEREBR
tHMEE

TRANEBEEEEZ

BRI
R

31.FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

rEE
THE GROUP

2013
FH
HK$’000

2012
THAT
HK$’'000

Exchange rate linked structured

deposits 252,838 308,956

RBE-ZE—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE ' &
EEEZEIRITEINAARENE - KEBE5H
A AR 492,000,000t (18 & 7 622,785,000
BIL)(ZZE——F : AR¥ 268,000,000 0
(F8E7330,864,0007%570) ) B EAHARI N F—
+ {8 B Z # iR AN [ R SR A I M T 3K o

REBE-Z—=F+-A=+—HItEE -
N4 # %8 A& A R # 538,000,000 T (18 & R
681,013,000 L) (Z T —ZF : AR
305,000,000 7T (#8& #376,543,0007% 7T) ) Z
EEMEERE R B R A R®S553,611,0007T
(FEE 700,774,000 L) (ZF—=F : AR
#312,775,000 7T (8 E 72386,142,00078 7T ) )
fER - BREBE—T—=F+_HA=+—H1It
FEERETERBBESREARBEEEZ S
BEE AR EENZEARYS,357,0007T (18
E 110,578,000/ 7) (ZE——F : ARK
3,330,0007C (FHE#4,111,000/87T)) - R—Z
—=&+-A=+—H  ETEBEZFEA
hEEREEZSMEEAKENHANT=Z
—NF-_RAE-_FT—NFLA(=ZT——F:
T —FMAE—T-=F+AH)zEER

AERBIETES E’Jﬁ“ﬁl%%méﬁil&wn&%n
EURTTHEREE M - RB R © %
FREBIETTRBIEE R %@Tﬁ@ﬂﬁ?ﬁ’&ﬁ{ﬁ@
RBEZTREE °
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During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group entered into
new principal protected exchange rate linked structured deposits
that were denominated in RMB with the aggregate principal amount
of RMB492,000,000 (equivalent to HK$622,785,000) (2012:
RMB268,000,000 (equivalent to HK$330,864,000)) with banks with
maturity periods ranging from one months to twelve months.

Structured deposits with aggregate principal amount of
RMB538,000,000 (equivalent to HK$681,013,000) (2012:
RMB305,000,000 (equivalent to HK$376,543,000)) had matured and
been redeemed at RMB553,611,000 (equivalent to HK$700,774,000)
(2012: RMB312,775,000 (equivalent to HK$386,142,000)) during
the year ended 31st December, 2013 and resulted in fair value
gains on financial assets designated as at fair value through profit
or loss of RMB8,357,000 (equivalent to HK$10,578,000) (2012:
RMB3,330,000 (equivalent to HK$4,111,000)) for the year ended 31st
December, 2013. The balance of financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss as at 31st December, 2013 represented
structured deposits with maturity dates ranging from February 2014 to
July 2014 (2012: April 2013 to October 2013).

Interest rates of these structured deposits vary depending on the
movement of exchange rate between the United States Dollars and
Euro or the United States Dollars and the Australian Dollars. Such
structured deposits are designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition.
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BSILEEEBERSRAINEEREZ
TREEE)

RN-E—=FKr-_FE——F+-_HA=+—0H "
WA AEEERBREREALBEREZS
MEEZEBETRZ AL BEIIBIELH
BRI EAERAG (—HEAEE L EEE Y
BN A BB EGER)NZBER TG
EEHE  BHORREBZE—ZE—=F+=A4
=t+—RARHE-E——F+-_A=+—81It
FE BRECEBBESREARBEEEZ
TRMEEZAABAEKZE ARY?2,742,0007T
(FBE 13,471,000 7T) & A R #7,254,0007C
(FE78,956,000/87T) °

32. Htt R AR FR

31.FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of structured deposits classified as financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss as at 31st December,
2013 and 2012 have been arrived at the basis on the valuation carried
out at that date by Norton Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent
and qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group,
and resulted in fair value gains on financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss of RMB2,742,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,471,000) and RMB7,254,000 (equivalent to HK$8,956,000) for
the years ended 31st December, 2013 and 31st December, 2012.

32.0OTHER PRINCIPAL PROTECTED DEPOSITS

rRH
THE GROUP

2013
TExT

R B EREIE

HK$’000

Interest rate linked structured

TR deposits 221,386 216,613
H 17K Other deposit 103,940 -
325,326 216,613
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2. HRABEFR (4

@) FRBBEBUEETR

REBEE-Z—=F+-_A=+—HLFE &K
EEE—RRITIAAREE - AeB%E
A AR ®237,000,0007T (8 & 7 300,000,000
BIL)(ZE——F : AR®170,000,0007T (48
& 1209,877,000%7T)) - BIHABIEAN T —=
TZEA  FENTFR410%E4.80% (=2
—Z4F 1 4.90%ZE5.95%) Z RANEF) R B R 4
BIEFER -

RBE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HItEE -
N4 48 % A A R ¥ 237,000,000 7T (& B
300,000,000 L) (Z T —ZF : AR
150,000,0007¢ (#8E 7 185,185,000/8 7T ) ) Z
HEREFERE D NEDR - 73%—%—:¢+:
B=+—BZH&HEEHAN T T —mFErN
HE:%*E&/—\H(_;*Zi : :2*5
FUAE-_T—=Ft ) 2HEBEFR -

FZER/BBUF RN XA R LERTHERER
TR REF 7 - AFERE Iiﬁm%&”*ﬁﬁ
B R K R MUK IR I e SH A AR 1) B

fim B8R 7T R [R) SE 47 pOF SR B H B X FERR B R
MLt EF sk TR A ES0025F  AEBHE
BIZNE4.20% 2 R R AEEMNF SR EEE
MR —E-=F+-A=+—BKRINBz4E
BUER REBEOEEFSHWTEYMHE
@o%ﬁ'mémﬁwh&ﬁiﬁiﬂﬁ%
B2 A FEEASMTEE
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32.0THER PRINCIPAL PROTECTED DEPOSITS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Interest rate linked structured deposits

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group entered
into principal protected interest rate linked structured deposits that
were denominated in RMB with the aggregate principal amount
of RMB237,000,000 (equivalent to HK$300,000,000) (2012:
RMB170,000,000 (equivalent to HK$209,877,000)) with a bank
with maturity periods ranging from one month to twelve months and
carried interest ranged from 4.10% to 4.80% (2012: 4.90% to 5.95%)
per annum.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, structured deposits
with aggregate principal amount of RMB237,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$300,000,000) (2012: RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$185,185,000)) had matured and been redeemed. The balance as
at 31st December, 2013 represented structured deposits with maturity
dates ranging from April 2014 to June 2014 (2012: April 2013 to July
2013).

Interest rates of these structured deposits vary depending on the
movement of the SHIBOR. Such structured deposits are classified as
loans and receivables and stated at amortised cost.

The Group has options for early redemption of these outstanding
structured deposits as at 31st December, 2013 at par plus the
interest at interest rate of 4.20% per annum when SHIBOR increases
or decreases by at least 500 basis points comparing with SHIBOR
at initial recognition date. The early redemption options are not
closely related to the host contracts. However, the fair values of such
options at initial recognition and the end of the reporting period are
negligible.
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32. Ht R A B (4

(b) EffFR

REBEE_ZE—=F+_A=+—HLEFE "
NEBEZMBITEI MR IAA RS
B AN&4a5A ARE110,000,0007T (FHE R
139,241,000/ 7% ) 2 A AF 7 - R EEARE N T
—Z2+ =88 FMENT450%=25.25% °
ZEF M DB E R R RIS K a3 S K
AFIER ©

REE-_E—=F+-_A=+—HILFE
N& @5 B AR 300000007t (& R
37,975,0008 7T ) < Bt 7 5K E B B R A& o
N-T—=F+-"A=+—8  HibFHx24s&
HIEEIBE AT —NFENAZ—EEFK °

33.51EEERE

32.0THER PRINCIPAL PROTECTED DEPOSITS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Other deposit

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group entered into
other deposits that were principal protected and denominated in RMB
with the aggregate principal amount of RMB110,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$139,241,000) with banks with maturity periods ranging from
one month to twelve months and carried interest ranged from 4.50%
to 5.25% per annum. Such deposits are classified as loans and
receivables and stated at amortised cost.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, other deposits with
aggregate principal amount of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$37,975,000) had matured and been redeemed. The balance of
other deposit as at 31st December, 2013 represented a deposit with
maturity date in June 2014.

33.HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

rEE
THE GROUP

2013
FH
HK$’000

2012
THAT
HK$’'000

REBLIN ETHZ Equity securities listed outside
PR TE S Hong Kong 23,086 15,379
IE LM ARAE S Unlisted equity securities 2,403 2,403
25,489 17,782

REBEBAIN ETZBABZ TR AR BED
B - REREZAARBEDBREEBRZ MM
HMBEANEETE °

FEMBEAB S IERERPBIKIL 2 AR
T2 LEMEAES - AEBE I EMEHR
AR ERRERRZBERBRIIE  BEE
NABEZGABERK  HAKBZEER
RAEEF LN BETERSEMAE -

%% Annual Report 2013

Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong are stated at fair value
which is determined based on the quoted market bid price available
on the relevant exchanges.

Unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by the entities established in the PRC. They are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.
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M. T ERFEEERER

T

RZE—=F+HA++tH AXEEHHEFE=
FEIMLT —HhEEHE - REBEEWHZ -
ANEERE MU ARK67,470,000 7T (HHE R
85,405,000 70) 2 HEREHE —HREY
EREZHNBRARIZ 2 EmS - R_T—=F
+=ZA=+—H AEEERIZEEARE
45,000,0007T (48 1456,962,000/8 7T ) + :Z 1%
BEENES  ZEBENMEMEMERERA - RR
HHIR - RHEAKRTK - ERXRHTK * ANEE
MR EE I EMB A R AIES o

RARNTEBENZNBARIZEERAGBEN =
T —Et+ A+ HEAFEBENRSE
E(RTX) - HEEEBR D HIREFIRER
BRI EEEAEEYELEN(RHE6)
RZB—=F+_-"A=+—8  LEZHBA
RIZWATERBHERBEERBE 2 FER
E: At RECEERIBEATEERER
VEREEBIER -

WHBAGTEZHEBEy TBEENRAGBHE
Boan

34.ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 17th October, 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement, the Group agreed to sell its entire interest in a subsidiary,
which is engaged in property investment for a cash consideration
of RMB67,470,000 (equivalent to HK$85,405,000). As at 31st
December, 2013, the Group received a deposit of RMB45,000,000
(equivalent to HK$56,962,000) and included in trade, bills and
other payables. The transaction has not been completed at the end
of the reporting date. The Group will lose of control of the disposed
subsidiary when the transaction is completed.

As at 31st December, 2013, the assets and liabilities attributable to
the subsidiary in this note had been classified as assets and liabilities
held for sale (see below). The operations were included in the
Group’s property investment as appropriate for segment reporting
purposes (see note 6). The proceeds of disposal were expected to
exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities
at 31st December, 2013. Accordingly, no impairment loss had been
recognised upon the classification of these operations as held for sale.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the disposal

group classified as held for sale are as follows:

A%H

THE GROUP
2013 2012
FTHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
KEME Investment properties 169,000 -
B5  ERIREMEBWIR Trade, bills and other receivables 246 -
RITHEERRE Bank balances and cash 78,764 -
DEAGEEAE Assets classified as held for sale 248,010 -
B5  FRIHMENERR Trade, bills and other payables 87,366 -
f SR Interest-bearing borrowings 73,418 -
BEIEFIIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 10,457 -

PERFEEEZ Liabilities associated with assets
HEAE classified as held for sale 171,241 -
182 AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited



e MB®RWME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—ZT =—F+t-A=1T"HLFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

3.5 EBRHEHMEMKRN 35.TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

RBEHR  BESENER(BEEEZES - E  The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables by age,
BEREMEMRRAN)IBEZZHEZ%| 28 presented based on the invoice date, which are included in trade,

BT bills and other payables, at the end of the reporting period:
EE

THE GROUP
2013 2012
TExT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
=EAA Within 3 months 192,648 139,612
POz 75 E A Between 4 and 6 months 68,641 68,989
+Z=+=1@A Between 7 and 12 months 4,386 20,243
Bl+ @A Over 12 months 304,997 368,864
570,672 597,708

R-FE—=F+—_H=+—8 ~&EEFFFEB As at 31st December, 2013, the Group has received

HEWBARMHESREBYWELEESRY HK$2,116,309,000 (2012: HK$763,280,000) deposits for disposal
¥ 7B H8E 52,116,309,0007 T ( —=——=  of properties for development and properties under development

F 1 763,280,000 7C) - BENEZES - i through disposal of subsidiaries, which are included in trade, bills and
EEMBEZR o ;Z::/\%E/\#g(ttﬁgj{r‘ﬁkm other payables. The transactions have not yet completed at the end of

B o the reporting period.
36. IR A 36.SHARE CAPITAL
AEERAEQT
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
ZERKRAEE HE
Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
FATT
HK$’000
BIREE0.20/6 7T 2 EimARAR (7 Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each
EE - Authorised:
R-ZE——F+_A=+—HBK At 31st December, 2012 and
—E-=F+ZH=+—H 31st December, 2013 2,000,000,000 400,000
BEETRHE - Issued and fully paid:
RZZE——F+=-A=+—HK At 31st December, 2012 and
—E—=F+ZA=+—H 31st December, 2013 1,506,769,491 301,354

3%  Annual Report 2013 183
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37. (%
AEE

Hib R EH B R R BRIMES PIE £ 2
MERABEHE -

ERBERIZMBAR  BEQARREZEDR
% HAllE AP BRI 2 REDEFF B %R
WRARLE - YR FZFRAAMBRRE ZH
KA ME

FEEHZELRRE

37.RESERVES
THE GROUP

Other reserves comprise the fair value adjustment on properties
arising from acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries.

The remittance outside of the PRC of retained earnings of the
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures established in the PRC is
subject to approval of the local authorities and the availability of
foreign currencies generated and retained by these companies.

Revaluation reserves of the Group

CUES RE
EftfEE - EffEHE

Property Investment

revaluation revaluation et
reserve reserve Total

THT TAET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

WZZE——%—HA—H At 1st January, 2012 9,246 5,585 14,831
AR EERE Decrease in fair value

“RBEZ of available-for-sale

D investments - (10,190) (10,190)
AHEERE Impairment loss on

ZBIEEE available-for-sale

Egibon D investment reclassified to

B profit or loss - 8,987 8,987
R-TE——F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2012 9,246 4,382 13,628

AHHERE

Decrease in fair value

NRBEZ of available-for-sale

VoA investments - (28,368) (28,368)
AHEERE Impairment loss on

ZBIERE available-for-sale

Egibon D investment reclassified to

ikl profit or loss - 37,475 37,475
R=ZB-=%+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2013 9,246 13,489 22,735
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37. & #) 37.RESERVES (CONTINUED)
ZK A F] THE COMPANY
RAGE W EFZRE  EXEE
Share Special Capital  Exchange A
premium capital redemption translation  Retained w5t
reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
THL TEL TET TR TAL BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A=T——%F—f—H At 1st January, 2012 3,352,781 1,417,669 134,679 1,404,644 3,566,673 9,876,446
RELET Profit for the year - - - - 1,159,186 1,159,186
RENE Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - (60,271) (60,271)
RNZE——F+ZA=1—H At31st December, 2012 3,352,781 7,669 34,679 1,404,644 4,665,588 10,975,361
BEmEL v ERER Exchange difference arising on translation - - - 284,438 - 284,438
KEE R Profit for the year - - - - 1,188,591 1,188,591
BREAE Dividend recognised as distribution - - - - (60,271)  (60,271)
R-ZZ-=F+ZHA=1+—H At31st December, 2013 3,352,781 417,669 134,679 1,689,082 5,793,908 12,388,119

RZZE—=F+=-A=1+—8  ARQFA DK
?’“Hx?ZEﬁﬁZ%%a‘l‘mfﬁh,388,379,000?’557%
—ZT— % :1,616,482,000/87T) °

BB RITRE S EER K Z S S I FREAR
AR D EERRTE - SREDRR O EE
MEL ZERBABKERNGEE  EAQFR
—ZEENF=ZANBEZABEIEER UL
BTEEERPEAE R-_ZE—=F+=A8
=t+—8 ARFAR-_ZZTNF=ANBERE
EZBEP 18 14,064,0008 T( =T —=
F 1 14,064,000 7C) WARIFIE °

3%  Annual Report 2013

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31st December, 2013 represent the retained earnings of
HK$1,388,379,000 (2012: HK$1,616,482,000).

When sanctioning a reduction in nominal value of the Company’s
shares in 2004,
Administrative Region stipulated that the credit arising on the

the High Court of the Hong Kong Special

reduction be transferred to a special capital reserve, and that reserve
was not to be regarded as distributable until all of the liabilities of
the Company as at the date of the order, 9th March, 2004, were
settled. At 31st December, 2013, liabilities of the Company included
HK$14,064,000 (2012: HK$14,064,000) in respect of liabilities in
existence at 9th March, 2004.
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38. Mt B &R 38.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

FEE LN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2013 2012 2013 2012
FTERT TAT Tz THAT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BITEZ Bank loans 4,156,082 3,277,087 456,437 160,000
H g Other loans 83,581 62,885 - -

4,239,663 3,339,972 456,437 160,000

BHEMH Secured 3,218,044 2,919,927 - -
I Unsecured 1,021,619 420,045 456,437 160,000

4,239,663 3,339,972 456,437 160,000

M ZHIELAERE © Carrying amount repayable:

—F R Within one year 685,899 709,217 10,000 10,000
ZR—F - More than one year, but not

B EBBRE exceeding two years 650,398 256,623 = -
ZRME More than two years, but not

(ERN VRS exceeding five years 758,906 839,874 = -
ZRRF More than five years 668,663 845,469 = -

2,763,866 2,651,183 10,000 10,000

BEMIRENRER Carrying amount of bank loans that
EREIRITERZ contain a repayment on demand
ARTEE - clause:
—FRNEE Within one year 567,523 223,322 71,437 150,000
ZR—5F - More than one year, but not

B EAmRE exceeding two years 736,442 380,931 375,000 -
ZINMEE More than two years, but not

BB R exceeding five years 171,832 84,536 - -

1,475,797 688,789 446,437 150,000

4,239,663 3,339,972 456,437 160,000
JE FIRREIEESF  Less: Amounts due within one year

—FANEHR shown under
THR current liabilities (2,161,696) (1,398,006)  (456,437)  (160,000)
—FRIH 25 Amount due after one year 2,077,967 1,941,966 = -
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38. Mt B &= (2)

AEEEHZESERMREHNE T ZEHA
(HKEFEER)WT :

38.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the contractual
maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

2013 2012

FB b7

HK$’000 HK$’000

ERMER Fixed-rate borrowings:

—F A Within one year 1,329,895 772,089
RER—%F In more than one year but not

(ERN RS more than two years 277,947 179,835
RERME In more than two years but not

BTBR=F more than three years 314,740 343,153
MRER=%F - In more than three years but not

(ER b ElEE more than four years 192,193 266,254
RERUE In more than four years but not

BAEBAF more than five years 202,724 190,138
RERRAF In more than five years 668,663 845,469

2,986,162 2,596,938

R @ AEEZZ B ERTIREBIRITRIZEN
BIN—EME D - &EH0.95%E3.50%(=
T——4F : BEK0.13%E3.40%):TEF S -
WE— ZRANEAEFHERE -

3%  Annual Report 2013

In addition, the Group has variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus a certain
percentage that ranging from 0.95% to 3.50% (2012: ranging from
0.13% to 3.40%). Interest is repriced every one, three and six months.
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38. Mt E &R (4

AEEBRZERMER(ANEHE T ZHER)E
B

A
EaiER
Bk
g8 BN .1 2 R A T S MR

38.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

2013 2012

Effective interest rate:
5.00% to 10.00%
2.38% to 3.63%

4.50% to 10.00%
1.35%t0 7.87%

Fixed-rate borrowings
Variable-rate borrowings

The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

yi-

AEK%¥  Hong Kong st

RMB dollars Total

THT TET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E—=F 2013

RITREMER Bank and other loans 2,975,787 1,263,876 4,239,663
—T-—F 2012

RITREMER Bank and other loans 2,586,562 753,410 3,339,972

ZEES P HER R B W —ZE—pEZE  The loans bear interest at market rates and will be matured from

T _FRH - ABFRIDARAEEYE
MERMEERT -

188

2014 to 2022. The proceeds were used to finance the acquisitions of
properties and operating activities of the Group.
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39. R BER 39.INTEREST-FREE BORROWINGS

REE KA F]
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2013 2012 2013 2012
TER TAT TR TAT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

R B FEFERR AR Advances from non-controlling
& shareholders 494,325 448,430 - _
JENAZEDER Amounts due to joint ventures 6,899 189,224 =
JERTEE = A A IE Amounts due to associates 13,427 25,793 = -
NGB Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 85,272 81,401
514,651 663,447 85,272 81,401
IRESREL A TERE © Carrying amount repayable:
FIARENBE On demand or within one year
JEESRK T —F R shown under current liabilities 514,651 663,447 85,272 81,401
NEE R BER 7 REER N SEHE : The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest-free borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

BT
AEK®  Hong Kong et
RMB dollars Total
FA&T T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—z_=x 2013
EBEER Interest-free borrowings 508,697 5,954 514,651
-z - 2012
e BER Interest-free borrowings 635,970 27,477 663,447
ZEBEEERR 2 ERRNEERTER The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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40. —BHEF ZEZE WA

R-ZEZE-_FFA-+/,\H AEEE—FZH
PR —EEEMEEN —HAH=TF2
HEW  EhagxArRERAEEREZ
AW ENEEEF197,933,0008 7T © AR
BYNBAEBARAAFZEEHERS M
BRTFHRERRSAINEERERS - ¥
HE_ZZHAF+-_A=+—HLFERN -
REFEZZHEFEETGR - AAREERE
ZIREYEREE B REE] A67,308,000 %
T MB N EREPENEEEEHS SR
Do BWELRH  BAOBAAEEREZEER
F3130,625,0008 i DA —BHEF 2 EE
WA - Wieimh 2 BEFHATHEF U
BEHRETABSEAEARS KA - R=ZF—=
F+ZA=1+—H  #HR—FAFTABEZ—
ZHP ZETER S WA AE9,104,0008 T (==
— % : 8,879,000 L) ERFELEE S « Ri&
N E AR BRFRA ©

41. 8865

A%E%%m@%% 2% WRESFNEE
SR_TFRE  MABRREHNEERSE

%ﬁ%W%Eﬂ AN
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40.DEFERRED RENTAL INCOME FROM A TENANT

On 26th May, 2002, the Group entered into a tenancy agreement
with a tenant in respect of leasing of an investment property for a
period of 20 years. Pursuant to the agreement, the tenant agreed to
bear the costs of fitting out works of the investment property at an
agreed amount of HK$197,933,000 payable on behalf of the Group
in lieu of paying operating lease rental to the Group for a period of 6
years, and paying a monthly operating lease rental over the remaining
lease period. During the year ended 31st December, 2005, the Group
revised the terms of the lease and determined with the tenant that the
costs of fitting out works of the investment property to be borne by the
Group would be revised to HK$67,308,000 and the annual operating
rental payable by the tenant for the remaining period would be
reduced. Taking consideration of the substance of the arrangements,
the reduction of costs of fitting out works to be borne by the Group
of HK$130,625,000 was reclassified as deferred rental income from
a tenant and is released to the profit or loss as rental income on a
straight-line basis over the remaining lease term of 17 years. At 31st
December, 2013, deferred rental income from a tenant to be released
within one year of HK$9,104,000 (2012: HK$8,879,000) has been
included in trade, bills and other payables.

41.MEMBERSHIP DEBENTURES

Membership debentures represent golf guarantee fees which are
refundable to members twenty years after joining the golf club or can
be used by members to set off against the cost of purchasing villas at
the golf course.

AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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ELERIE 42.DEFERRED TAXATION

RAEERBAFERANEIEREENIEERZ The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

MEENMEZSHINT recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
years:
RRASE
SRR EHEFA
fritiAE VIELaPA
Adjustments RAMER
toconformto  K2JKEF| Elimination of
E3 the Group's ZBEH  inter-company
Business accounting ~ Withholding ~ charges in
combinations 1t policies tax on properties
) Revaluation of ( undistributed BEEE Hit
(Notea)  properties (Note b) earnings Tax losses Others
THL BT BT TAL THL FHL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AER THE GROUP
RZE—ZF-F-H At Ist January, 2012 1,002,709 1,089,797 (95,270) 50,870 (26,751) (4,563) 33 2,016,825
B 5 A% Exchange adjustments - (337) - 346 - - - 9
REREEEEE)  (Credit) charge to profit or
Bl loss for the year (2,307) 229,377 (42,532) 9,339 - - 103 193,980
P Reclassified from held for
BEE sale - 209,889 - - - - - 209,889
R-T-—F
+-A=1+-H At 31st December, 2012 1,000,402 1,528,726 (137,802) 60,555 (26,751) (4,563) 136 2,420,703
fE 3 HE Exchange adjustments 1,519 38,510 (767) 187 - - - 39,449
REREBEEE)  (Credit charge to profit or
Mk loss for the year (1,503) 224,937 (1,240 29,806 - - 68 252,068
PEAGE Reclassified to held for sale - (9,111) (1,346) - - - - (10,457)
RZE-=
+ZA=t-H At 31st December, 2013 1,000,418 1,783,062 (141,155) 90,548 (26,751) (4,563) 204 2,701,763
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IESERLIE (47)
Hiiz -

@ EBAMBARKHEEMBBEAABEFELFE
MELZ BREZERRTE

(b) #EETHBA R AERAEEERA R EE
BRAXABNMe 2 BREERRBEHRBEMELEZ
MR ERANIETE  SF L IEREN 2T B MR
BUEBEMGERYER T E B RNEER
ZESHEE Y BN ER BB E -

(© HEEHHAMBRRINERTYR BRIVES
ERREMERR 2 ARIREAMEEZ RFER
BIATE

ETEEHRREENBERERSMBEARREK
ZTFARMIELEE - U TRELERIRARA
1ERA TSRS B R EH DT

42.DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)
Notes:

(@) This represents the tax effect of the temporary differences arising from the
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities upon
acquisition of subsidiaries.

(b) This includes the tax effect of the temporary differences arising from the
adjustments to management accounts of certain subsidiaries to conform to
the Group’s policies of revenue recognition and capitalisation of property
development cost, which includes tax effect of the temporary difference arising
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax saving on LAT and amortisation of properties
for development and prepaid lease payments on land use rights.

(c) This represents the tax effect of the temporary differences arising from
the elimination of inter-company charges originally capitalised as cost of
properties under development, inventories of completed properties and
investment properties of subsidiaries.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2013 2012

THExT FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

EERIARE Deferred tax liabilities 2,873,466 2,544,158
RIEFIEE B Deferred tax assets (171,703) (123,455)
2,701,763 2,420,703

RMEHR  AEEHEEJHEER RN 2
RENFA I IEE18799,421,0008 T (—Z T — =
& 1602, 5960005&71) o W FIEEEF 2
18,252,000/ 7L (= ZF — =4 : 18,252,000/%
EDEEEM\%LL%RIEﬁF B A A TE AN R
Hom A - ﬁﬁliﬁﬁﬁﬁ%—l—zmlﬁﬁﬁa781/169,000
BIL(ZZ——4F : 584,344, ooo;‘%r‘n)ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ‘
MIBAE - RERRIEEBBREBRZ
FEPARTER B I HA 2 E518724,100, OOO/EE(f
T — —4F : 529,552,000/ 7T ) ° HAthE5EA] LA
R HARER -

192

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$799,421,000 (2012: HK$602,596,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$18,252,000 (2012: HK$18,252,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$781,169,000 (2012: HK$584,344,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$724,100,000 (2012: HK$529,552,000) that will gradually
expire until 2018. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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FEBLTE ()

RIFEHR  ANEBEEMA] THR 2 TREE
£711,099,000/8L( ZZ— =4 :569,811,000
FBTL) o SRR RN K AT BE A FE AR At S 1| 1 8
AESAZANAERER  WASEWERL
AMBERNEZRRELEHRIBEEE °

43. HEZH
AEEBAHERS

Mﬁ%%i’%?&ﬁ%%Zﬁﬂ%%*+
FRABEAMEAZMENZ L BiEE

Iﬂﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁm%fﬁmfmﬁ
SetE ﬁiﬂEJ\ZZﬂEjiIEEQH&)K(Ei?DKfi'ﬂﬁiR)
ZRELEER  BEEFZHEETIRETE
B Rt EMEX 2 HMEHH— i+¢&Ky
EHENW B TABEABOBLEE - XEE K
AT REE £ XMER RO EEHESIT

42.DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of HK$711,099,000 (2012: HK$569,811,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

43.LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, certain investment properties are
leased out for a period of 20 years from the date of commencement
of operation of a lessee that occupies the properties, with a renewal
priority at the end of the lease at the open market value. The rentals
are calculated at a certain percentage of the revenue (net of value
Other
investment properties were leased out for periods ranging from 1

added tax) of the lessee, with a minimum annual rental.

to 10 years and the majority of the leases did not have any renewal
priorities given to the lessees. The Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum lease payments:

AEE

THE GROUP
2013 2012
FEx FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R—FZA Within one year 279,890 257,971

RE_FEFRF In the second to fifth years

(BiEEEMT) inclusive 305,885 342,805
RAF 2% After five years 64,889 121,223
650,664 721,999

RAHAE R AW A R B 5 & SRR
#sk A % A39,100,0008 L (=T — — 4 :
38,134,000 7T) °

%% Annual Report 2013

Contingent rents which linked to the lessee’s turnover recognised
in income for the year amounted to HK$39,100,000 (2012:
HK$38,134,000).
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43. HEZH (&) 43.LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AEEREBES The Group as lessee

RIFEEAR - REBAFZESSIZATERIEE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

TR RUEN S EAESNEBYE  MEKKZR  future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

HWZARRRERS - leases in respect of rented premises and plant and equipment which
fall due as follows:

2013 2012

FET THET

HK$’000 HK$’000

R—F2ZR Within one year 5,589 2,603
MRE_FEEFRF In the second to fifth years

(BREERWE) inclusive 12,977 4,438

REFZ1% After five years 2,447 3,374

21,013 10,415

LEHSBRNEAEEHNETHAEY  Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
% HREREREZENES - AHKETHME  certain of its office properties and plant and equipment. Leases are

EHAE—Z_1+% HeT& - negotiated for a term ranging from 1 to 20 years at fixed rentals.
44, B E 44.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

AREH ART
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2013 2012 2013 2012
FTERT TAT FE&x TAT
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

EEAEGFE 2 EARS  Capital expenditure in respect of

HA: contracted commitments for:
—BEEANZ LM — acquisition of land use rights in

& e the PRC 390,344 380,706 - —
—BEWE  BENK - acquisition of property, plant and

B equipment 396,844 384,852 = -
—EERHNE — acquisition of available-for-sale

®’E investment 100,731 105,593 = -
—EARART — capital contribution to joint

BREE ventures 506,329 502,469 = -
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45. XEEE 45.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

@ AEBRAXFN-FB-=FR=
F+A=+—B2HERET :

(@) At 31st December, 2013 and 2012, the Group and the Company
had guarantees as follows:

TS ERF
THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2013 2012 2013 2012
TET THET TERT THAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

HK$’000 HK$’000

ML TYWEREESZ  Guarantees given to banks in respect

RiaE R MIRTT of mortgage loans granted to

TEH LR property purchasers 62,409 56,807 - -
L THEANDEA  Guarantees given to banks in respect

ZIRITIEEMIRTT of banking facilities granted and

TEHFELR utilised by:

— B AR — subsidiaries = - 2,255,637 1,975,215

——EEe8rE —ajoint venture 631,591 - - -

— A HERE — available-for-sale investments = 13,209 — -
AL ERNE  Guarantee given to a bank in respect

BEABAS of banking facility granted to
IRTTRLE (7 —FA but not yet utilised by
RITERER a joint venture 1,291,139 - = -

(b) H—EAEEEEMERMEA2,997,000 (b) A portion of a property for development that is held by a
BIL(ZZE——4 : 3,001,000/87T) 82010 joint venture with carrying value of HK$2,997,000 (2012:
FBERYE LW EHKEETERE T HK$3,001,000) is under idle land investigation by the local
Lo ZMBAEERERBZ LMERET authority. The piece of land owned by the joint venture was
REHFERE - BT 2D L EAREE held under several land use right certificates. The development
BEATERIN  BRE—FEHIHERET of more than half of the piece of land was either completed or
BB IEFEFEE © under development, except for a portion which is retained for the

remaining development of the whole project.

MASE —HNBEARFEMEEER
41,972,000 ZF—Z%F : &) BTN S —
RFERYE RS MARRETRE T
o ZMAMBARRAE 2 T HREE
TER  BRek 2L EFIREE
HEARREIFTAIIN - BB — ¥ TR
EE5 T8 © the local authority.

Another property for development that is held by a subsidiary of
the Group with carrying value of approximately HK$41,972,000
(2012: Nil) is also under idle land investigation by the local
authority. This piece of land owned by the subsidiary has been
developed by several phases and more than half was completed,
except the last portion which is under the planning approval by

ZRER B3R IE 3 L At i 358 A B R B S M B
ETRE - LRI BARELH - 81
B ERTRZAITH - REZEER -
AEBEEHERBEBIELRG - XRSE
Lo R ISR AT RE TN B A -

3%  Annual Report 2013

The Group is currently working diligently to prevent the possible
classification as idle land, including negotiating the feasibility of
development plans with local authorities. Based on legal advices,
the Group has assessed the issue and considers that the idle land
confiscation may not materialise.
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45. BFRE#E)

()

—ZBEABARI—ENEZER @ [
KRRl —HEZ2EWNBRAREEZFR
A BRBEHEEARRRE R HER
A £ #9145,605,000/8 T ( =& — —F :
142,010,000 7C) R EEE - RZZTZT+F
M ZFENF - 5145 ER B IR T %
F o B YEERBERA BRFET
R NS RAEEALTHUDEER 2%
ERHENMEERESE -RZT—Z=F
+Z A B TREREHETI  EmE
BRELENMENMEERE - RZZ

—=F  AEERYEERTHR —ELHE
6,456,000/ LA REERIZS - €5 F
BENMEE %Z%%%ﬁ%TFm%%

ZERER REARBERZSEER
FTAKE -
—EBMEER - AAKE—FHNBARRE
HIAR AR » BRRER R MR

ZYENEE(BRLALERMLE TE)
B B B 492,563,000 L (ZF ——F :
2,500,000870) ° 2 R4 IERF BERL R
B o AREEHHIBREETIHRE
BREEERE  RARBEF G REE
7 ETARHRE -

—HEBANBARII—EYEZER
MARAGR—HE2EWEB QA ERF
A BEREHEEE SR RRBE M IER KL
B {E 476,535,000 0 ( —T——4F : #&) -
AT S AR BB KRS AR EFF o
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45.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

A property purchaser who previously purchased a property in
Shenzhen initiated legal proceedings against a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company to rescind the sale contracts and claim
for total sales proceeds paid of approximately HK$145,605,000
(2012: HK$142,010,000) together with compensation. In 2007
and 2008, conditional settlement agreements were reached
between the parties whereby the property purchaser agreed to
settle the case on condition that the Group has to arrange the issue
of ownership certificates of the subject properties under the name
of the property purchaser. In December 2012, except for 2 units
of shop, all ownership certificates of the subject properties were
issued to the property purchaser. In 2013, the Group has placed
a RMB security deposit with amount equivalent to approximately
HK$6,456,000 to the property purchaser. The RMB security
deposit is agreed to be released to the Group following the issue
of ownership certificate of the remaining subject property under
the name of the property purchaser.

A property purchaser initiate legal proceeding against a subsidiary
of the Group claiming for total compensation of approximately
HK$2,563,000 (2012: HK$2,500,000) for the delayed handover
and the decrease in area of that property including private garden
and basement. The case is under trial by the court in the PRC.
The Group has assessed the claims and obtained legal advice,
and considers that it is too early to assess the possible liability at
this stage.

A company who claimed to be the property purchaser that
previously purchased a property in Shenzhen initiated legal
proceedings against a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
to rescind the sale contract and claim for sales proceeds paid
together with compensation of approximately HK$6,535,000
(2012: Nil). The court judgement was held in favour of the Group
and the plaintiff has the right to appeal.

AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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46. RIKEF 5T 8

AEE2ERBERERAG BRI E L 2 R
T8I ([ RG] RRIRRE S RA
R-TTZF+ - AR 2 BB EI([8E
tE]) - ZFABZEBERAEE 2 EED
FRFE  AXRABTEZEEESHAES - #
SREERTEIKLZ AT - RASBERRETEIKE
ZREREREES BBRRINGTEREER
BEHE - AR -ZZETZF T _A—H3
BMABZEEF2EBESHE -

HRBBEEEKE  EERASEE ZHK
BEESABEHS25% BHIMELERA
250008 (BT ——_F~A—HRE  HA
20,0008 7CiE00) - B TH/ A 2 EAFHCHA
25,0008 7T * ANEE IR VEL 5% 2 TR o

EERAEE 2T AHRAHFE RN ERE
B - MEENAEBZTHRFE EEZHE
RERBEKRFTE Z0%ZE5% @ mANEEBI1E5%
E10%2H®H - MAEREEZEFSEREI
HRE R AR DB R IRETE - bE 2 R
BRI AER Z ENERERE  c REE=Z
——F+ - A=+—BHUIFERARR=-Z—=
F+ZA=+—RHIEFER  WERERBE A
EMREREE - RRESPR  TERESR
£ BB 3 AR RT3 T AR 2 AR 5K T 00808 ZR PR
HIREE -

ARRRAH BRI HEB A RREER Ty hh E
BFE 2 BIREE R KB EI 2K E - M
BRAZERREEFHFZETEDL - FR
FZENRENGFEZES - AREZHE—BER
[AIEZ R AR ET BT 4 E A BER o

RBEZF—=F+-A=+—"HLEFE
AN AEBEXNZRARBFERZE
37,128,000/8 70 ( == — —4F : 30,938,000/%
JL) °
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46.RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(“ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance
in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees
who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO
Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join
the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, both employees’ and the Group's
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly
relevant income, with the mandatory cap of HK$25,000 (increasing
from HK$20,000 since 1st June, 2012), and the Group will make 5%
top-up contribution if an employee’s monthly basic salary exceeds
HK$25,000.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the
employees at rates ranging from 0% to 5% and from the Group
at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of service with the Group. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group are reduced
by the amount of forfeited contributions. During the year ended 31st
December, 2012 and 31st December, 2013, there was no forfeited
contributions used to set off contributions. At the end of the reporting
period, no forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees
leaving the ORSO Scheme, are available to reduce the contributions
payable in future years.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group made

contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of HK$37,128,000
(2012: HK$30,938,000).
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47. BERAEA T 2R B RER 47 .RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
REBHEEGEEAT CERR S RERIAT ¢ The Group had material transactions and balances with related parties
as follows:

2013 2012
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
@ FAEEATENZ (@) A major shareholder with significant
FERR influence
e tE(FE)BRAF Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited
(MBeEE |) REME AR K& (“APL”) and its subsidiaries and
HEBRERRARR its ultimate holding company and
HEEKERAT] subsidiaries of its ultimate
)= W] holding company
—AAREE — Rent, property management and
YgER Y air-conditioning fees charged
He  MEEBER to the Group
=AER 3,350 3,546
— AN B UEREY - Management fee charged to
TIBE the Group 20,400 18,150
— A B UEREY — Interest expenses charged to
MEEBR the Group 1,901 1,408
— AR EUEREY — Loan arrangement fee charged
ERLHE to the Group 92 92
— R & B BRER A - Loan arrangement fee earned
ERLHE by the Group — 450
— A B UEREY — Sundry expenses charged to
Hith & the Group 194 122
— HAbFETBR K — Other payable 5,160 5,021
—ERER (T i) — Loan payable (Note i) 38,690 37,725
(b) BE&EMEZ —RHERR] (b) A subsidiary of APL
BEARARI(TFIBE]) R Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited
HKtE AR (“SHK”) and its subsidiaries
(Kyat ii) (Note ii)
— MAEEWERRRE R — Insurance charged to the Group 1,510 1,494
—AEERRHER ~ Loan arrangement fee income
ZHBERA earned by the Group = 1,426
— REERIA — Leasing agency income earned
HERBKA by the Group 222 -
—REBERRHEE K — Rental and property
MEERE management fee income
WA earned by the Group 1,452 -
— R & B ERER A — Interest income earned by
MEWA the Group = 953
— HAbFETBR K — Other payable 5,274 1,777
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47. EREAN LT 2R G R EEsRE)

47 .RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(CONTINUED)

2013

TR
HK$’000

2012
TR
HK$'000

© FAEBEZMEBAFZ (c)  Non-controlling shareholders of
eSS AR B the Group's subsidiary
— AN B UG ER A — Management fee charged to
EEE the Group 90 55
— [AIZN£5 [ I ER &Y — Interest expenses charged to
MEER the Group = 891
—FEN &R (KT itii) — Loan payable (Note iii) 9,873 9,630
) RAR—(IFEMTEER (d) A partnership of which a
He ez B IkBE Non-Executive Director of
the Company is a partner
— [AIZN£5 [ I ER &Y — Legal and professional fees
FERBEXEER charged to the Group 1,565 2,011
— H M e AR K — Other payable 81 326
e) TEBEEASR (e) Key management personnel
i compensation
—Fa MHMEH — Salaries and other short-term
& benefits 33,884 34,598
—RIKENER — Post-employment costs 766 736
( EERmREERE ()  Associates and joint ventures
—REEDWHEE — Rent earned by the Group 741 -
—REEE W - Dividend received or
e B A B A receivable by the Group
(Bieziv) (Note iv) 80,406 263,505
—REBEBEEN — Properties purchased by
S the Group = 377,787
— [AIZN£5 [ I ER &Y — Property management fee
YIEERE charged to the Group 2,196 -
—REBBTHAR -~ Financial guarantee granted
EEA MM B HEE and utilised by the Group 631,591 -
3%  Annual Report 2013 199
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47. EEEAN LT 2R G Rt (E)

BRANBIEMBEME L RRERARIFI L ZE
FIATRUIR TS K T2 AR 7% 20 # thp s B AR A B E

Sz — I B A RIRT A 2 R AE IRTS ik
I A ERMBBEA LT ZR W RERAR R A
$E?FH§“\)5J% 5 EMAR AR EWIZR T R

AEBETIEEEBABR —FHEBARRF
BEARmZ ARREZEME QRS -
ZATRAEERMERRY - WAAEERR
FEANBREMAFAEE L TEEREAS
FIEHRBERER - ZBACBREANNE
M@ ECERED

Lz EBRBTIREREABNASEBEHEAT
NHZEHEE  YAoEE L FEERE
BAE - O L% 412,870,000 L (==
—Z4F :10,228,000/%7T) * WEBIEE L2
FEEEEASFHMA -

Haz -

() ENEXRAEEMER
—TmOELAEER -

'+ FF K 55.0% I F B

(i) HEHESRARA Tﬁ‘%ﬁ ST MABEREE
WERN—ENBA

(i) BNERAEERER - FHEEI23%LHFTR
Z-NE+—AE+-AEE-

(iv) BRSHERARIREECER_T—=F1+=A
=+— El¢¢E7%ZH§%\80,406,000§%ﬁ(:%
—Z4 :263,505,000) % - NEBRAFEDI
HX192,279,00078 70 ( = Z — —4F : 206,714,000/

7)) - HRNEFEE AN EEARTFEE SRR R R
REEFEH R SRR REPRE+ —EAR
”&u&"
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47 .RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

Apart from the renewed sharing of administrative services and
management services agreement entered into by the Company with
the ultimate holding company of APL and insurance brokerage
services agreement entered into by the Company with a subsidiary
of SHK, none of the above related party transactions constitutes a
discloseable connected transaction as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Certain key management personnel of the Group received
remuneration from a company, or a wholly-owned subsidiary of such
company, which has significant beneficial interests in the Company.
Such company provided management services to the Group and
charged the Group a fee, which has been included in management
fee as disclosed in part (a) of this note, for services provided by those
personnel as well as others who were not key management personnel
of the Group.

The above-mentioned management fee is calculated by reference
to the time devoted by the management personnel on the affairs of
the Group and can be apportioned to the above key management
personnel. The total of such apportioned amounts, which has been
included in the key management personnel compensation above, is
HK$12,870,000 (2012: HK$10,228,000).

Notes:

(i) The loan payable bears interest at 5.0% per annum, is unsecured and
repayable in July 2014.

(i)  APL has significant influence on the Company and SHK is a subsidiary of APL.

(iii) The loan payable bears interest at 9.23% per annum, is unsecured and
repayable between November to December 2014.

(iv) The associate and joint ventures declared dividend of HK$80,406,000 (2012:
HK$263,505,000) during the year ended 31st December, 2013, while the
Group received HK$192,279,000 (2012: HK$206,714,000) in the current year.
The over balance received are for the prior years declared dividend and the
balance of dividend receivable is expected to be received by the Group within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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48. EE KR
RZE—=F+-HA=+—H"

(@ AEBEHEHETHBARZE ZRITHE
RN EREE - M BERRE
ERYME  BEGDYE BERINERF
g REWERR KB AR 2R
E{E S 5 45,680,000 7T ( Z 8 — — 4 :
5,800,000 7T ) ~ 11,393,000/ 8 T (=&
— 4 ) 326,148,000 (=T —=
F : 243,395,000 7% 7T ) * 1,390,970,000
B (ZZF — ZF : 1,015,243,000 /&
7T ) -~ 1,590,401,000 % 7t ( — & — —
% : 369,997,000 & 7L ) * 556,210,000
BT (= Z — = & : 875,417,000 B
JT) ~ 7,072,113,000/ 8 L ( =& — —F :
6,347,609,000 & 7T ) & 425,236,000 /& JT
(ZZ——4 :130,818,000/8T) 4R $R1TIE
AASEERRITEECER -

(b) NEEBRMEES1,452,0008 T (==
— —%F : 1,643,000 70) ZFEREREE
BEMERZ T o

(0 AEBEEREEESDRA6,766,000%8 T (=
— % : 73,598,000 7T) 279,212,000
BIL(ZZ— 4 : 38,457,000/8 L) Z iR
TEXREMRERREERIEAEMNZE 2
A o

(d) NEE®ER®EEA139,0008T(ZE—=
F 942,000 7)) ZIBITHEARIERMEE
FIERIZIEE R 2 HIF -

W=B——fE+=A=+—0 AREEEE

{8/43,951,0008 T 2 EWEBIERBEMERZ
PRI o
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48.PLEDGED ASSETS

At 31st December, 2013,

(a)

Bank deposits, bills receivable, property, plant and equipment,
properties for development, properties under development,
inventories of completed properties, investment properties and
interest in a subsidiary of certain subsidiaries with carrying
values of HK$5,680,000 (2012: HK$5,800,000), HK$11,393,000
(2012: Nil), HK$326,148,000 (2012: HK$243,395,000),
HK$1,390,970,000 (2012: HK$1,015,243,000),
HK$1,590,401,000 (2012: HK$369,997,000), HK$556,210,000
(2012: HK$875,417,000), HK$7,072,113,000 (2012:
HK$6,347,609,000) and HK$425,236,000 (2012:
HK$130,818,000) respectively were pledged to banks for banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Properties for development with carrying value of HK$1,452,000
(2012: HK$1,643,000) were pledged against other loans.

Bank deposits and other principal protected deposits with
carrying value of HK$6,766,000 (2012: HK$73,598,000) and
HK$79,212,000 (2012: HK$38,457,000) respectively were
pledged against the bills payable.

Bank deposits with carrying value of HK$139,000 (2012:
HK$942,000) were pledged against mortgage loans granted to
property purchasers.

At 31st December, 2012, bills receivable with carrying value of
HK$3,951,000 were pledged against other loans.
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49. EHIBEREIE
RZZB—=F+_A+tH AEEE—FFEL
F=FFIMEEWSE  BRELE —RHNEA
A]4756.06%#Em + & (B %532,800,000/%
T o B AR Z BRI EE R AT ER LT M
ZMBARERHILREM G EAEERE
B - AR REN - BBE/KRRRE TR
7% o ﬁé:;ﬁ—mifﬂ —+NH ARAEKE
REEREARENERRAZRBBIEEE
MR FERZZ—MF = AMAE K °

B’\ —FE—ARNE @ NEEE—FBIEF

aTL%EWJm  BRALE—RHNE QA
100% = 32 R {E A& AR 360,000,000
TT(FBE R 4455,696,00078 7T ) © #E H & 2 M
BRAREES BN EVEZRRNZEWBA
ETO
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49.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 7th December, 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party in relation to the
disposal of approximately 56.06% interest in a subsidiary at the cash
consideration of HK$532,800,000. The shares of the subsidiary are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the subsidiary
is engaged in the manufacture and sales of cement, clinker and slag,
trading of cement and provision of technical services with operations
in Shangdong Province and Shanghai in the PRC. On 28th January,
2014, the ordinary resolution for approving the sale and purchase
agreement was duly passed by the shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting and the transaction was completed on
4th February, 2014.

On 6th January, 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party in relation to the
disposal of 100% interest in a subsidiary at the cash consideration of
RMB360,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$455,696,000).
The subsidiary to be disposed of owns another wholly-owned
subsidiary which is engaged in property development.

AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited
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50. EEMBEATFE
50.1 B AR —RER

Fr= BRI -
MK WEETEERFELE
LU

HEATEE

Name of subsidiary

All - Shanghai Inc. i

All = cement Limitedi

HAORERARA
Allied Cement Holdmgs Limitedv

EREHEERBERRAFD
Beijing Nanhu Huayuan Apartment
Co., Ltd.i

CBHREBRAH

CBI Investment Limited

RERLZEWERZEARAFY
Changchun Tian An Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

BINRLHMERABR AR
Changzhou Tian An City
Development Co., Ltd.

EMRZEGEZRRRAR

Changzhou Tian An Landmark Co.,
Ltd. (i

%% Annual Report 2013

FBEFXrZEWBRARBESRS
E

50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

50.1General information of subsidiaries

15

Particulars of principal subsidiaries which are incorporated and are
operating principally in Hong Kong except where otherwise indicated

are as follows:

ERITHRE
EERRE
CHREMER
Paid up issued
ordinary share
capital/Paid up

registered capital

US$15,376,500

US$1

HK$6,600,000

US$15,600,000

HK$151,031,629

RMB50,000,000

US$2,650,000

US$8,000,000

ERTEERRAHEE
ARz
Proportion of nominal value of
issued ordinary share capital/
registered capital

LN\
WEARRHE
held by FEEEN
the Company*/ attributable ETEEH
subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % % %
83.33 83.33 62.50  62.50 REERR
Investment holding
100 100 75 75 WEEK
Investment holding
75 75 75 75 WERERK
Investment holding
100 100 100 100 MEBRRRE
Property development
and investment
99.97  99.97  99.97  99.97 RAEMK
Investment holding
100 100 100 100 MEER
Property development
100 100 100 100 ME#ER
Property development
100 100 100 100 MEHFRMEE

Property development
and investment

203



mEMB®R WM
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=Ft-A=t—RHLLFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

50. X EME A RSB Z) 50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
50.1 i AR —RER(Z) 50.1 General information of subsidiaries (continued)

ERTEERREAEE
EMER LA
Proportion of nominal value of
BRTHE issued ordinary share capital/
EBERRE registered capital
EHREMER b NG

Paid up issued MEARRE

ordinary share held by rEEENL
MEARERE capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable TEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % % %
FMRLZTHREHEZRBRLF  US$32,300,000 100 100 100 100  #ME#ER
Changzhou Tian An Yuan Cheng Property development

Real Estate Development
Company Limited

ERBRA (i US$1 100 100 100 100 W% E

Cheerch0|ce Limited® & i Property investment

ERERBRAA HK$200 100* 100* 100 100 HEEK

Chinaland Management Limited Investment holding

BIMREE(LB)ARRAY US$620,000 100 100 100 100 #MEEEREELR

Cornell Properties Services Property management

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.@ and investment

holding

AERLZFEMERERROAD US$6,800,000 60 60 60 60 MEEE

Dalian Tian An Property Property development

Development Co., Ltd.

REBERLZBEKEBR AR US$29,000,000 100 100 100 100 HEXERITE
Dalian Tian An Tower Co., Ltd.® Property development
and investment

ETESERAR HK$2 100 100 100 100 MERE
Grandview Square Limited® Property investment
ETSEERARY HK$2 100 100 100 100 #EEE
Grand Kings Limited® Property investment

204 AZHEREFRAE Tian An China Investments Company Limited



e MB®RWME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE—ZT =—F+t-A=1T"HLFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2013

50. X EME A RIFEZ)

501 B AR —MER (&)

WEAREE

Name of subsidiary

Grand Rise Investments Limitedti

ELRSARRAFD
GRP VI Limited?

B TR A GRERER AR
Huiyang Danshui Xinyangcheng
Construction Company Limited®

ERERERDA

Jack Rock Development Limited

RERBRAT

Join View Development Limited

Kylie Nominees Limited

HMRAMERBRRE
Nanjing Tiandu Industry Co., Ltd.®

ERAEELARA
Nanjing Tianning Real Estate Co.,
Ltd.

HBRZBEHREERAE0
Nantong Tian An Cyberpark

Development Company Limited

%% Annual Report 2013

50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

50.1General information of subsidiaries (continued)

ERTHE
BERRE
EHRERER
Paid up issued
ordinary share
capital/Paid up
registered capital

US$1

HK$3,756

HK$50,000,000

HK$604,108,798

HK$2

HK$2

Us$13,500,000

US$41,000,000

RMB121,621,830

ERTEERRAEE
&R Z A

Proportion of nominal value of

issued ordinary share capital/
registered capital

AT
KMEQREE
held by
the Company*/
subsidiaries
2013 2012
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
68.40 68.40
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

AEEEMN

attributable

to the Group
2013 2012
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
68.40 68.40
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

TEXK

Principal activities

KA

Investment holding

WERE

Property investment

MEERIITE
Property development
and investment

RERR

Investment holding

PR RTS

Money lending services

REAEARS
Provision of nominee
services

MEERRIRE
Property development
and investment

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development
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50. X EME A RSB Z)

501 B AR —RER (2)

HERREE

Name of subsidiary

K?x?( M)
NS
Pacific (Fuzhou) Golf Club Ltd.®

MABLAER

ILREEA T RAKRARAFD
Shandong Allied Wangchao Cement
Limited

WER _EBOKRE R AR AR
Shandong Shanghai Allied Cement
Co., Ltd.

EBBEIRBRAF®
Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd.®

BIOEREERAT
Shanghai Allied Cement Holdings
Limited

LBEEEEARAR
Shanghai Greentree | Company
Ltd.

LBgEEXARAR

Shanghai Greentree Il Company
Ltd.

206

50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

50.1General information of subsidiaries (continued)

CRITHR
BERRE
EREEMER
Paid up issued
ordinary share
capital/Paid up

registered capital

US$3,000,000

Us$14,360,000

US$1,000,000

Us$24,000,000

HK$10,000,000

RMB275,933,200

RMB266,315,300

BRTEERRAHEE
AEMER b

Proportion of nominal value of

issued ordinary share capital/
registered capital

AT
HEARRE
held by EEEENL
the Company*/ attributable
subsidiaries to the Group
2013 2012 2013 2012
Y% Y% % %
100 100 68.40 68.40
100 100 75 75
100 100 75 75
60 60 37.50 37.50
100 100 75 75
100 100 100 100
100 100 100 100

TEXR

Principal activities

LEEELRE
Golf course operation

B RIHEAORM

Manufacturing and
sales of cement and
clinker

FEREEEYD
Manufacturing and
sales of slag

BERMAR
Trading of cement and
clinker

RERR

Investment holding

MEBRRRE
Property development
and investment

MEERIITE
Property development
and investment
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50. X EM B A RS @)

501 B AR —MER (&)

WEAREE

Name of subsidiary

HEEHELERARY

Shanghai Haibo Real Estate Limited(

FEEEEMELLERR AT
Shanghai Haiguang Real Estate
Holdings Limited

LBEREFBRAR
Shanghai Haisen Real Estate

Limited?

LEBREZARNF

Shanghai Haiyi Real Estate Limited®

EERLARALSER AR
Shanghai Sheshan Country Club
Company Limited®

LBRZHORERRARD
Shanghai Tian An Centre Building
Co., Ltd.i

LERZMEERAR AR
Shanghai Tianan Riverview Co.,
Ltd.

EFEEREERAFY

Shanghai Tianyang Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (i

3%  Annual Report 2013

50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

50.1General information of subsidiaries (continued)

ERTHE
BERRE
EHRERER
Paid up issued
ordinary share
capital/Paid up
registered capital

RMB260,000,000

RMB37,000,000

RMB140,000,000

RMB66,000,000

US$36,240,000

US$28,000,000

RMB50,000,000

RMB50,000,000

ERTEERRAEE
&R Z A

Proportion of nominal value of

issued ordinary share capital/
registered capital

AT
KMEQREE
held by
the Company*/
subsidiaries
2013 2012
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
98 98
99 99
100 100

AEEEMN

attributable

to the Group
2013 2012
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
98 98
99 99
100 100

TEXK

Principal activities

ESEE

Property investment

IESEE

Property investment

WERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MEER

Property development

MEZRIITE
Property development
and investment

MEZFRIIRE
Property development
and investment

MEERIITE
Property development
and investment
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50. X EME A RSB Z) 50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
50.1 i AR —RER(Z) 50.1 General information of subsidiaries (continued)

ERTEERREAEE
EMER LA
Proportion of nominal value of
BRTHE issued ordinary share capital/
EBERRE registered capital
EHREMER b NG

Paid up issued MEARRE

ordinary share held by rEEENL
MEARERE capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable TEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % % %
Strait Investments (Shanghai) US$47,500,000 99.99 99.99 99.99 99.99  ®EIEK
Limitedi Investment holding

MEBRBRAR US$30,000,000 100 100 100 100 WMEHRMREEKR

Sun Hai Tung Co., Ltd.® Property development
and investment
holding

R (FE)BRARY HK$2,000,000 100* 100* 100 100 YERE

Sun Hung Kai (China) Limited® Property investment

TARERBERAF HK$2 100 100 100 100 REWERS

T.A. Secretarial Services Limited Provision of secretarial
services

Tanya Nominees Limited HK$2 100 100 100 100 IRMEREARE

Provision of nominee

services

XL PEEEARAT HK$2 100* 100* 100 100 HEEBRMEHEE

Tian An China Enterprise Limited Investment holding and

securities dealing

AP EBEEFHERAARAT HK$2 100* 100* 100 100 REZR
Tian An China Hotel and Property Investment holding
Investments Company Limited
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50. X EME A RSB (E)

50.1 B AR —RER (&)

i) PNCEEE

Name of subsidiary

ARERECRINBR AT
Tian An Investments (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.

ARZ(RT)ERBRAA
Tian An Pearl River Company
Limited

A& (LB REBRRAA
(IRZ L& w

Tian An (Shanghai) Investments Co.,

Ltd. (“TASH")i

X% (RY) EEHRARAA
Tian An (Shenzhen) Enterprise
Development Ltd.®

BORLTEEBWEXER A

Tianan Intelligent Park Properties
(Wuxi) Co., Ltd.®

AREE (RBE) FHERZEEAR
NGI

Tianan Summit (Fujian) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

%% Annual Report 2013

50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

50.1 General information of subsidiaries (continued)

ERTHE
BERRE
EREEMER
Paid up issued
ordinary share
capital/Paid up
registered capital

HK$360,000,000

HK$2

Us$30,000,000

HK$150,000,000

RMB197,174,341

US$52,000,000

ERTEERREAEE
A&z Ll
Proportion of nominal value of
issued ordinary share capital/
registered capital

AQFS
MEAREE
held by
the Company*/
subsidiaries
2013 2012
% %
100 100
100* 100*
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

AEEEMN
attributable
to the Group
2013 2012
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
68.40 68.40

TEXE

Principal activities

MERBERIEER
Property investment
and investment

holding

KA

Investment holding

WEERIIRER
REER

Property development
and investment and
investment holding

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development

MEER

Property development
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50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

50. X EME A RSB Z)

501 B AR —RER (2)

50.1General information of subsidiaries (continued)

ERTEERREAEE
A&z
Proportion of nominal value of
ERTHE issued ordinary share capital/
EBERRE registered capital
EREEMER N
Paid up issued MED RS
ordinary share held by rEEENL
MEARERE capital/Paidup  the Company*/ attributable TEEK
Name of subsidiary registered capital subsidiaries to the Group Principal activities
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % % %

RAERZ M ERZEARAR  RMB550,000,000 100 100 100 100 MEER
Tianjin Tian An Science Parks Property development

Development Limited®
EnEX (L8) ARAR US$16,000,000 100 100 100 100  MEEE
Value Harvest Real Estate (Shanghai) Property development

Co., Ltd.
BEATILNERBRAF US$5,000,000 95 95 95 95  MEER
Wuxi Redhill Properties Co., Ltd® Property development
BHAGEFRARARD US$18,400,000 100 100 100 100 MEER
Wuxi Tianxin Properties Co., Ltd.® Property development
EERSRRERARARD US$12,000,000 88 88 87.97 87.97 MEREBEEKKZE
Zhao Qing Golf and Development BB RERSG

Co., Ltd.® Property development

and golf course
operation

REEERMAZREBFAERE  RMB273,500,000 100 100 100 100 MEER

BRAR® Property development
HEEREREHEERAR US$50,000,000 100 100 99.99 99.99 MEERE

Property development

FEIRMTCEERAR AT RMB900,000,000 100 100 100 100  WMEERE
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50. X EME A RIFEZ)

50.1 YR A R —RER (&)
(i) EBREPBKEERE-

(i) AEP BRI A EESE -
(i) ERBHERBESEMAKL o

(iv) ARREEFERLT LB60%ER @ MR T Z240%
SRR —REMBAREE -

(v ERSHSEMKL - ZHBARR T ——F—
ATABETELT  AEZRRZE—FH
HAZRAR -

AEFSIEETEESRAREAEE 2 RERE

ERBEAYEZMBAR - EFERRIIHEM
MBARZFHIEECEBRILE -

BEARFRIRAE EMIHNE A HEREEE
%O

3%  Annual Report 2013

50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

50.1General information of subsidiaries (continued)
Notes:

(i)  Operating principally in the PRC.

(ii) Established and operating principally in the PRC.

(iii) Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

(iv) The 60% interest in TASH is held directly by the Company and the remaining
40% is held by a subsidiary.

(v) Incorporated in the Cayman Islands. This subsidiary is listed in Hong Kong
as at 18th January, 2012 and further details are available in its published
accounts.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year.
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50. T EMf B A BFEE)

502 EEARFERECRNEZTENE
NI

TRIEEEEAFERERNIEDEHBA

AlFE

R HER
TEEERY

Place of incorporation

G P

Name of subsidiary business

BaKRERERAF RERS

and principal place of

50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

50.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

FERERFIECRT
EERALLA
Proportion of ownership of
issued ordinary share capital

BN(ER)2EZ
FERER

Profit (loss) allocated to non-

Zit i RER
held by non-controlling Accumulated non-controlling

interests interests

controlling interests
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

TR TR
) : HK$'000  HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

:Fraﬁ
HK$'000

Allied Cement Holdings Limited Cayman Islands 25 25 21,713 16,850 635,844 615,359
BEEEARAA BE
Jack Rock Development Limited Hong Kong 31.60 31.60 (21,296) (15,386) 271,729 290,795
BAFERES  ERFEANBLT
Individually immaterial subsidiaries wnh
non-controlling interests (4,456) (1,217) 45,462 47,775
(4,039) 247 953,035 953,929

AR AREE—EREEFHEREDNIFE
BB AR EEMBANT o T5IBR
BERERENEHAEE °

212

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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50. X EME A RIFEZ)

S02EEERFERBENFZENS

NCIESE )

BeARERAERARARENBAR(HE

50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

50.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (continued)

Allied Cement Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“ACHL

KESEE ]) Group”)
2013 2012
FET AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MENEE Current assets 1,109,738 1,064,620
ERBEE Non-current assets 516,258 547,226
MENAE Current liabilities (319,332) (378,795)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (96,356) (71,987)

aRERARA
PR E (R 2 e

Equity attributable to owners of
Allied Cement Holdings Limited 780,139 741,633

SEIORERARA

Non-controlling interests of

Wi nalz subsidiaries of Allied Cement

FEIE R A Holdings Limited 430,169 419,431
DREE Equity attributable to the

A EERT 2 non-controlling interests

FEfzE HQ% i before fair value

JE(G 2w adjustments 625,204 604,839
NRfBE Equity attributable to the

BEkLc - non-controlling interests

SRR AE after fair value

FE(G 2 ez (PRE) adjustments (Note) 635,844 615,359
YA Revenue 703,468 704,698
& /A Expenses (51,866) (46,678)
R[S g A Profit for the year 46,222 37,132
AFEHMEE Other comprehensive income

Wz (ER) (expense) for the year 29,299 (845)
RFEREWER Total comprehensive income

4RE for the year 75,521 36,287
PN S Profit attributable to owners of

JE A% ) (P 7E) the Company (Note) 24,670 20,148
FEE IR A Profit attributable to the

FEAE & A1 (B ) non-controlling interests (Note) 21,713 16,850
R A (B EE) Profit for the year (Note) 46,383 36,998
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50. T EMf B A BFEE)
502 EEARFERECRNEZTENE
DEIFEEE)

BEKEERARARAREMBAT(BE
KIEEE ) (&)

50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

50.2 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (continued)

Allied Cement Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“ACHL
Group”) (continued)

2013
TET
HK$’000

2012
THT

HK$’000

A RIRERFE(S Other comprehensive income

Hiv 2 AW (expense) attributable to owners

(BRA) (M) of the Company (Note) 14,974 (557)
FERAR R RS Other comprehensive income

Hib2mias (expense) attributable to the

(BA)(W:E) non-controlling interests (Note) 15,148 (634)
RFEE 7 B2 ER S Other comprehensive income

(BA) (W) (expense) for the year (Note) 30,122 (1,191)
RARIRERFE(S Total comprehensive income

ZEWE attributable to owners of

mEE (M) the Company (Note) 39,644 19,591
FEIEIRE R RS Total comprehensive income

FHEKE attributable to the

4EE (MI5E) non-controlling interests (Note) 36,861 16,216
AEEPERE Total comprehensive income

@ () for the year (Note) 76,505 35,807
E'T"HFT S Dividends paid to non-controlling

[idSN interests 13,077 13,681
(AR)REEEXS Net cash (used in) from operating

ReFE activities (64,462) 45,311
RE(ARIREERZ Net cash from (used in) from

WReFE investing activities 105,664 (86,787)
RRREREZ Net cash used in financing

ReFE activities (32,527) (28,958)
REFERACKL) Net cash inflow (outflow) 8,675 (70,434)

ik S EEEER BT AEUBHBA T - B
WE - BEREE  DtERE BREERR
RIS R AL BEAE - ZSHEAH
B A AR KA RA RS -

214

Note: The amounts have been adjusted for the fair value adjustments on property,
plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments of land use rights and
inventories of completed properties upon acquisition of subsidiaries in 2009.
These subsidiaries are currently held by Allied Cement Holdings Limited.
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50. X EM B A RS @) 50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

S02BMEBERFEEREZWIEZEKE 502 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
YNCIES =) material non-controlling interests (continued)

BEZRARATARAKNE AT

Jack Rock Development Limited and its subsidiaries

2013

TExT
HK$’000

2012
TATT
HK$'000

MENEE Current assets 57,141 121,341
ERBEE Non-current assets 382,804 363,408
mEAE Current liabilities (186,125) (187,398)
MBI EE Non-current liabilities (11,392) (9,630)
AREBEFABAZ Equity attributable to the

FEPER AR non-controlling interests before

&ML 2 fEws fair value adjustments 76,607 90,920
NRBEFARRL Equity attributable to the

FEFE R R AR non-controlling interests after

JE 1 2 M2 (I aE) fair value adjustments (Note) 271,729 290,795
1 ON Revenue - -
s Expenses (53,051) (33,459)
REEEE Loss for the year (52,349) (32,242)
RFEz Hfp 2 EW R Other comprehensive income

(8A) (expense) for the year 7,057 (238)

p Y

rFEETHER Total comprehensive expense for

Haza the year (45,292) (32,480)

3%  Annual Report 2013
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50. T EMf B A BFEE) 50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

S02MBERFEEZEREZNWIIEZEKE 502 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

NBFEE) material non-controlling interests (continued)
BEERREERATRENBAE(E) Jack Rock Development Limited and its subsidiaries (continued)
2013 2012
FTET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
KRB IEIL B 1R Loss attributable to owners
(BR3E) of the Company (Note) (46,095) (33,302)
PR i R IR B 1R Loss attributable to the
(BEEE) non-controlling interests (Note) (21,296) (15,386)
NEEEE ) Loss for the year (Note) (67,391) (48,688)
RNABIRREG Other comprehensive income
Hib2miis(ER) (expense) attributable to owners
(B&E) of the Company (Note) 4,827 (163)
FEPEIR T RS Other comprehensive income
Hib2ms(ER) (expense) attributable to the
(P ) non-controlling interests 2,230 (75)
RER 7 Bt 2 E R Other comprehensive income
(BA) (expense) for the year 7,057 (238)
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50. X EM B A RS @) 50.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

S02BMEBERFEEREZWIEZEKE 502 Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have

NG -10:)) material non-controlling interests (continued)
EERRARATREMBLARE) Jack Rock Development Limited and its subsidiaries (continued)
2013 2012
THERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RABIREREG Total comprehensive expense
THEREE attributable to owners
(B 5E) of the Company (Note) (41,268) (33,465)
FEFER S B Total comprehensive expense
2HEMEHE attributable to non-controlling
(B 5E) interests (Note) (19,066) (15,461)
rFEETHER Total comprehensive expense
e (HEr) for the year (Note) (60,334) (48,926)
EANELEl ¢ £ Dividends paid to non-controlling
[585) interests = -
ANEERBZ Net cash used in operating
ReFE activities (18,574) (117,352)
ANREEBZ Net cash used in investing
HEFE activities (41,593) (57,533)
(AR)REMEEBZ Net cash (used in) from financing
HEFE activities (39,497) 61,215
HeFEmL Net cash outflow (99,664) (113,670)

Wt b BEARKESBERGRARE - HEE  Note: The amounts have been adjusted for the fair value adjustments on properties

BRVERBRTYERFEZAABERR - for development and inventory of properties under development upon
acquisition of Jack Rock Development Limited.
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EoEMEFE 51.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES
Jﬁ/\iﬁiﬁﬂiﬁ KEBER TG ECEEGE At the end of the reporting period, the Group had interests in the
BREARAN  BERFEERESESF  following joint ventures which are corporate joint ventures established
Eﬁﬁﬁ){ﬁ&@% E1E - in the PRC except where otherwise indicated:
AR E A R
o 28 4R 4 B i=¢:Nad ]|
RELEER Principal place Proportion of registered  FE%7%
Name of joint venture of operation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2013 2012
% %
ERRLZKEGRAT] BL 400 400 MEEKE
Beijing Tian An Building Company Beijing Property investment
Limited
BN EBSEMREERER AT ] 506 5000 IR NKE
Guangzhou Panyu Hi-Tech Ecological ~ Panyu Property development
Park Development Co., Ltd. and investment
Multi Major Investment Corporationti  HB4REEE 50 50 WEZR
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
SunCore Holdings Ltd(i RBHEES 50 50  REER
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
Ultimate Success Investment RBERES 50 50  REERK
Corporation(i British Virgin Islands Investment holding
EMRLBBEREEFRAF =M 506 500 WRERKLKRE
Changzhou Property development
and investment
BERRRZEBHAR AT BE 500 500 ¥R
Chongqing Property development
REMAZHERER A £ 394 390 PIRBRERNKE
Dongguan Property development
and investment
FLT R L BB AR QR Bl 456 450 MEHRNERE
Foshan Property development
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and investment
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For the year ended 31st December, 2013

51. TESELEFNB®) 51.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)
2 £ [ P 4 = 11
FTERKEE B A
EELEZRE Principal place Proportion of registered — FEHK
Name of joint venture of operation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2013 2012
0/0 OAI
TRRZEBNEXBR A Ik 506 500 WRBERLIRE
Jiangyin Property development

and investment

RYIRZ LB ERAR I 50 50 MEERREARR
Shenzhen Property management
and investment
holding
RYITBE R R & B FT B[R A A 3l 5000 500 MIERBRELIKE
Shenzhen Property development

and investment

RYNRELEFREBHRABRAOA 3l 50 50 WEERE
Shenzhen Property development
REZEIEW(EE)BR A 23l 50 50 WREFERAIRERRKRE
Shenzhen AR

Property development
and investment and
investment holding

RERLZHEHRER A A RE 500 5000 PEERREE
Tianjin Property development
and investment

FERRHYEHBR LA 58 500 500 WEEERE
Qingdao Property development
Hiat - Notes:
iy RESEEZENSRBE AEEEEMSEE () Based on the contractual agreements between the venturers, the Group and
R R I R BB R RS o other venturers have joint control over the financial and operating policies of

the company.

(iiy ZARAB— Fﬁ TE(RZHER (EB)ERA (i) The company is a subsidiary of a joint venture, X% 25 (% &) B[R A 7
GIDPAR)=FN
(i) ZARBBEREMBARREAE EWRD - (i) The company holds Taiwan listed shares through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
FAEL FET FATL FAEL TER
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$/000
E RESULTS
WA Revenue 1,083,528 1,411,986 1,986,707 1,410,086 1,733,315
FRARRIREREN Profit for the year attributable to
pdi:v) owners of the Company 1,067,379 1,326,748 747,019 401,403 337,564
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BERE Total assets 18,985,033 20,433,978 22,885,881 24,864,834 28,603,998
BEE Total liabilities 7,599,516 7,723,931 8,952,042 10,452,520 13,586,625
Sl G Non-controlling interests 501,201 767,658 785,323 953,929 953,035
AARIREIENS Equity attributable to owners of
P 3 the Company 10,884,316 11,942,389 13,148,516 13,458,385 14,064,338
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
BEREE PER SHARE BASIS
FREARZEF (B Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 70.84 88.05 49.58 26.64 22.40
Shshz S (L) Dividend per share (HK cents) 7 10 4 4 6.5
BREEFE(ET) Net assets per share (HK$) 7.2 7.9 8.7 8.9 9.3
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